Waves Singer Pakistan Ltd
Directors’ Report to the Shareholders

The directors of Waves Singer Pakistan Limited (WSPL) are pleased to submit the annual report

and audited accounts for the year ended December 31, 2018. During the year, the Company

posted:

FY18 FY17
OPERATING RESULTS Rs. in ‘000 Rs. in ‘000
Gross Sales 10,268,910 4,772,736
Gross Profit 2,394,205 1,097,284
Admin, Marketing, selling and distribution Expenses (1,539,462) (924,397)
Other Expenses (108,768) (118,760)
Finance Costs (net) (272,827) (216,878)
Profit/(Loss) from core business activities 473,148 (162,751)
Other Income 37,359 498,264
Profit for the year before taxation 510,507 335,513
Taxation (128,432) (23,381)
Profit after taxation 382,075 312,132
Other comprehensive income - net of tax 15,197 (15,749)
Surplus transferred to accumulated profits 3,235 1,440,563
Un-appropriated profit brought forward 1,586,439 (150,507)
Profit available for appropriation 1,986,946 1,586,439
APPROPRIATIONS:
Final dividend 2017 Rs. 1.25 per share (177,320) 0
Un-appropriated profit carried forward 1,809,626 1,586,439
Earnings Per Share 2.34 1.91

Business Overview

Company'’s Principle Activities

WSPL is a public company limited by shares and is quoted on the Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX).
The Company is principally engaged in manufacturing and assembling of domestic consumer
appliances and other light engineering products as well as whole sale retailing and trading of the
same.



During 2017 Singer Pakistan Limited entered in an amalgamation arrangement to acquire Cool
Industries Private Ltd (the manufacturer of a strong Brand Name in the home appliance industry
- "WAVES “Naam hi Kafi hai”.

The Company also entered in to a demerger arrangement to carve out its retail business network
of 139 outlets to Electronics Marketing Company Private Ltd (EMCPL).

The Merger and Demerger arrangement was approved by the honorable High Court on 22" May
2018 with retrospective effect from 1°* July 2017. Accordingly, the first consolidated accounts were
issued as of 31 December 2017 consolidating operating results of Singer Pakistan Ltd for the full
year and Cool Industries Private Ltd for six months. The year under review (2018) is the first year
showing consolidated results for the complete year.

WSPL is now the holding company with two fully owned subsidiary companies and operates as
follows:

Waves Singer Pakistan Limited-Holding Company (WSPL). The Company is listed on the PSX
and is Manufacturing Waves and Singer Brand Products including Deep Freezers, Refrigerators,
Air Conditioners, Washing Machines, Microwaves, Water Heaters, Cooking Range and allied items.
The company also import Singer Brand Sewing Machines in CBU condition. The Company sells its
production through its subsidiary companies as follows:

Waves Marketing Private Ltd (WML) - Wholly owned subsidiary of WSPL sells Waves and
Singer Brand products to a strong network of 1400 dealers across Pakistan.

Electronics Markeing Company Private Limited (EMCPL) - Wholly owned subsidiary of WSPL
sells Waves and Singer Brand home appliances as well as all other leading brands of home
appliances industry in Pakistan through its network of 139 retail outlets across Pakistan.

Operating Performance Analysis

Gross sales increased by Rs. 5.5 billion i.e. 115% growth over the previous year. This
remarkable growth in sales is partially due to increased volumes and better pricing and is
partially due to the reason that consolidates results for 2018 include full year sale of both
Waves and Singer brands as compared to 2017 when Waves Brand sales were
consolidated only for six months after the merger. It is worth mentioning here that your
company achieved this notable growth in revenue despite the fire incidence that
occurred in Waves Production Facility during the peak season of May 2018. Due to
this fire incidence, the Company sacrificed sales estimated in the range of Rs. 1.50 billion.



Alhamdulillah, the damage caused by fire was fully repaired within a short period of 2
months.

Gross profit for the year improved by Rs. 1.3 billion i.e. 118%, profit from core business
activities improved by Rs. 636 Mn and the net profit for the year before tax improved by
Rs. 175 million i.e. 52% compared to last year. These extra ordinary gains are also partially
due to growth in business volume and partially due to full year consolidation as stated
above.

Earnings per Share is Rs. 2.34 compared to Rs. 1.91 of 2017.
Financial Position Analysis

Financial position stands as follows:

2018 2017
Financial Position Analysis Rs.in ‘000 Rs.in ‘000
Non-Current Assets 7,753,985 7,686,631
Current Assets 6,959,554 5,516,459
Total Assets 14,713,539 13,203,090
Shareholders’ Equity 8,389,125 8,166,643
Non-Current Liabilities 1,127,014 919,888
Current Liabilities 5,197,400 4,116,559

Total Equity and Liabilities 14,713,539 13,203,090




Dividend

The Board appreciates the confidence and trust of its shareholders. Keeping in view the
Company'’s recent merger, financial performance and future cash flow requirements, the
Directors are recommending a final cash dividend of 12.5 % i.e. PKR 1.25 per share (2017:
12.5% i.e. PKR 1.25 per share) for the approval of shareholders. This is in addition to
Interim Bonus Shares in proportion of 15 share(s) for every 100 share(s) held i.e.15%. The

bonus shares were issued from the Share Premium Reserve.
Appropriations

Following is the summary of appropriations made during FY 2018:
Net Profit After Taxation: Rs. 382.075 million

Total comprehensive income for 2018: Rs. 397.272 million

For details of movement in the retained earnings and other reserves please refer

Statement of Changes in Equity in the financial statements.

Key Operating and Financial Data of Last 6 Years

As per the regulatory requirements, key financial and operating data for the last 6 years

has been provided in the financial analysis section of this Annual Report.

Economic Analysis

Pakistan’s economy grew at a CAGR of 5.5% during 2014-18, which is in line with country's
long-term average growth rate. This growth was accompanied by a sharp increase in
private consumption and improving investment to GDP ratio. More importantly, lower oil
prices helped keep interest rates low, which with the flow of CPEC led investments and
easing security concerns helped breakout country’s falling investment to GDP indicator.



That said, overall, 2018 was a tough year as it
saw Pakistan's economy buckle under
increasing pressure, with decreasing foreign
exchange reserves, increasing trade deficit,
circular debt as well as foreign loans taking a
toll on macroeconomic health. As a result, the
economy suffered while resources were
diverted to handling power crises, impPoOrt oo 5005 200608 A 2005.13 A 2004.18 A 201523 &
bills, and other issues. The country's foreign *

exchange reserves also remained under pressure.
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Given that this was an election year, the outgoing PML-N government presented a
populist budget, considerably slashing income tax slabs which put a further burden on
the economy. However, after the regime change, the newly elected government increased
taxes on utilities and luxury goods to mitigate the deficit. Side by side, a significant
depreciation in the value of local currency was

witnessed which led to increasing inflation. Inflation

) ) ) 9%
Meanwhile, Pakistan was available to secure 8%

investment from Saudi Arabia and United Arab 7%
Emirates of USD 3 billion each to maintain foreign g;’
exchange reserves. In another major positive 4%
development Pakistan also secured USD 3 billion 2;
deferred oil payment facility from Saudi Arabia.

Cumulatively, the USD 6 billion package from KSA

amounts to roughly 50% of Pakistan’s FY19 net financing gap. Most importantly the

package gives Pakistan room for negotiation with International Monetary Fund (IMF).
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With the beginning of 2019, Pakistan would be entering into the second phase of China
Pakistan Economic Corridor (CPEC). This means that the government would focus on trade
policies and industry development, moving on from infrastructure. Large multinational
companies are already interested in setting up industries in the automobiles,
telecommunications, energy and electronics industry, in order to tap the undiscovered
potential of the people of Pakistan.

We expect that GDP growth would take a breather in FY19 and slow down to 4%; as we
see, (1) high base effect to kick in (especially in manufacturing/agriculture sectors), (2)
investor confidence to take some time to recuperate post entry into IMF program and
elections, and (3) impetus from government to weaken. A stricter fiscal deficit target and
rising interest rate environment would squeeze development outlay.



However, we believe that due to supportive macroeconomic supply and demand policies
being undertaken by the current government will result in a renewed confidence of the
private sector resulting in fiscal discipline. Major international institutions anticipate that
global economic growth will increase from previously subdued levels, which will be a
welcome development for Pakistan as well.

The near-term outlook for economic growth is challenging but towards stability
supported by improved power supply, investment relating to CPEC, strong consumption
growth and ongoing recovery in industrial sector.

Industry Overview

A look at the macroeconomic environment also suggests that Pakistan's consumption
story is poised for growth, which makes it a high-potential market for the retail and
consumer goods sector:

e Pakistan is one of the fastest growing major economy and sixth largest by
population, accounting for approx. 3% of the world’s population with a population
density of 265 per Km2. It has one of the highest consumption growth amongst the
growing economies of the world.

e Per capita income in Pakistan has CONSUMPTION TO GDP%

93.20%

increased exponentially since the £ 2 & & 8
start of the century, rising from S g s & ® ¢
2,750 USD in 2000 to 6,100 USD in 5

2018 based on Purchasing Power

Parity (PPP theory). This has put

more disposable cash in the 1

pockets of consumers who are not o Pakiston = India china i Lanka

shy of spending it.

Bangladesh m Vietham  ® Turkey

e 52% of the population is under the

age of 25 years, with average annual population growth rate of 2.7%. Burgeoning
youth with growing middle class and their freewheeling attitude towards rising
incomes have turned the nation into the world's fastest growing retail market.
Pakistan is also among the most urbanized countries of South Asia. Pakistan is
expected to largely shift from majority rural to majority urban within the next two
to three decades, urbanizing at a yearly rate of three percent — the fastest pace in
South Asia. The United Nations Population Division estimates that, by 2030, nearly
half the country’s population will live in cities.



e Increase in the female participation in the workforce is also creating a time-starved
consumer group which is likely to pay a premium for convenience. Nuclear families
are also increasing, with 70% households with a nuclear construct up to 13% over
the past two decades — and nuclear families spend 20-30% higher than joint
families.

e The rapid rate of urbanization and the growth of a young population that is
enjoying rising incomes is creating a large emerging middle class in Pakistan. This
segment of the population is expected to grow by 20% over the next decade
constituting about 40% of the country’s total population.

e Euromonitor International has identified
Pakistan as one of the world’s top three
markets by household kitchen Aus & Japan 98%
penetration growth and as per its latest ~ NorthAmerica 98%
report Pakistan has one of the lowest R e e R
penetration rates with respect to home
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markedly lower than urban areas.
Continued flows of remittances and growth in farming incomes are going to be
driving forces for electronics sales.

In line with these discussions, Pakistan's home appliances market has been witnessing
sustained double-digit growth which is evident from escalation in production by 10% (5-
yr CAGR FY13-FY18) for Refrigerator & Deep Freezers. Future volume growth projected
@ 10% for the next 2 years and 5% onwards till FY 2025 and has recently reached a size
of PKR 275 billion with a growth of 15% in the year 2018, main factors include (i) increasing
urbanization levels, (ii) sustained rise in income over the past three years, (iii) improved
electrification, (iv) thriving housing market, and (v) change in lifestyle leading to increased
adoption of appliances.

Risks, Uncertainties and Mitigations

The Company is exposed, inter alia, to the following general risks which are mitigated
through specific response plans:



Operational Risks

The operational risks are related to product development, manufacturing, distribution,
environment, health and safety and supply chain management. The Company addresses
these risks by allocating dedicated resources with requisite skills and expertise. The
management determines risk response strategies for such risks which includes avoid,
transfer, reduce or accept strategy.

Financial Risks

Financial risks have been described in detail in the attached financial statements which
include market risks, credit risks and liquidity risks. The key risks currently being faced by
the Company include increasing cost of doing business due to devaluation of the Pakistani
rupee and continued inflation.

Compliance Risks

The Company understands that non-compliance with laws and regulation may result in
imposition of penalties, debarment, black listing, license cancellation etc. Hence, the
Company has zero tolerance policy for non-compliance activities and behaviors. In
addition, to mitigate such risks, a very comprehensive and effective compliance function
is in place in the Company. Further, the Business Conduct Guidelines clearly defines the
Company's expectations from all directors, executives and employees of the Company
and from those with whom it conducts business. The Company encourages employees
and business partners to report compliance violations that they may encounter, with
confidence that there will be no adverse consequences for them.

Adequacy of Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors have set up effective internal financial controls across all functions.
The independent Internal Audit function of the Company regularly monitors the
implementation of financial controls, whereas the Audit Committee reviews the
effectiveness of the internal control framework.

Environment, Health & Safety (EHS)

The Company ensures that the EHS commitments are understood and prevention
drills/measures are adopted at all levels, from senior management to workers so as to
reduce work related risks across all operations of the Company. The company actively



trains all employees to ensure their safety at both the workplace and beyond. Besides, our
manufacturing, distribution and retail operations have developed SOPs that seek to
reduce the risk of accidents.

Corporate Social Responsibility

WSPL takes pride in aligning its business strategy to meet the Company's societal needs.
Our CSR policy aims to enhance the quality of environment, communities and above all
to promote the welfare of ourpeople. We believe in giving something back to the society
because we care. For us it's about more than just aligning our activities with our
stakeholder’'s expectations whether it's our clients, suppliers, the community, our
employees and society as a whole.

WSPL has been consistently running the following diverse CSR initiatives each fulfilling in
achieving our goals towards our CSR vision.

Literacy Program

In efforts to aid literacy among the marginalized communities, WSPL has initiated Literacy
program through informal education system at the elementary level, targeting the
underprivileged children of Thatta District, Sindh. The school has been out-sourced to a
registered NGO, ECHO body and is being administered and maintain by the said NGO.

Sewing/Stitching Classes

Globally and locally, Singer sewing machines have been assisting in honing stitching and
sewing talent to its customers since decades. Tailoring is a vital source of income for many
households in Pakistan. Through regular stitching classes, Waves Singer Pakistan aims to
provide earning prospects to low income women to overcome their financial dependence.
As a result, thousands of females have not only benefitted but have also achieved
successful placements in various apparel companies across Pakistan.

Investment in Human Capital

At Waves Singer Pakistan, we believe in attracting the best talent in the marketplace and
giving them the skills and opportunities they need to become high-achievers.



Human Assets

The Company treats its people as its most important asset. We are always on the lookout
to recruit, train and promote the best human resource talent available. Besides attractive
remuneration packages, our corporate culture is designed to boost employee
performance. Our succession planning framework proactively guides our recruitment and
promotion activities.

Learning & Organizational Development

Our workforce regularly undergoes trainings in their respective functional areas. The
Singer Retail Academy is instrumental in taking the employees through a comprehensive
workforce training calendar. We also conduct workshops to make our employees aware
of new developments in the field to remain abreast of the changing market landscape.

Company’s Future Outlook/Forward Looking Statements

The Company continues to face challenges of rapid escalation in costs owing to inflation
and devaluation of the Pak Rupee. During the current year, the Company cost of
production has increased. However, the management was able to mitigate impact of
increased cost by partially passing over the cost to the end consumers and further by
improving efficiency to reduce cost of production.

As we look to the year ahead with added vigor, we will continue to build on our
competencies and review our strategies to ensure that they remain relevant, in line with
changing dynamics in the local market place. While the inflation is expected to stabilize,
strengthening of US dollar can exert some pressure on our input costs specially when
coupled with rising interest rates.

The outlook for our industry remains robust. There has been a renewed focus on
infrastructural spending, reflecting in corresponding growth in households and
consequently increase in demand of home appliances. Improving electricity availability
coupled with rise in urbanization and changing lifestyle are major drivers of industry
growth. Demand for white goods has increased at a 5-yr CAGR of 9% and we expect sales
momentum to sustain ahead.

Adherence to the Best Practices of Corporate Governance

The Company is determined to meet and wherever possible, exceed in all legal and ethical
requirements and to conduct all business according to the highest professional and
ethical standards and practices. The Board defines a path of continuous improvement



constantly challenging existing processes. It also requires the Company to embrace
change so that the Company is in the right place when new opportunities open up.

Statement of Compliance

The Company strictly adheres to the principles of Corporate Governance mandated by
the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) and has implemented the
prescribed stipulations. The same has been duly summarized in the enclosed Statement
of Compliance with the best practices of the Code of Corporate Governance duly reviewed
by the external auditors.

Directors’ Statement

As required by the Code, we, the Directors of the Company, are pleased to state that:

h)

The financial statements, prepared by the management of the Company, present
fairly its state of affairs, the result of its operations, cash flows and changes in
equity;

Proper books of account have been maintained by the Company;

Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of
financial statements;

The accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment;
International Accounting Standards (IAS) and IFRS, as applicable in Pakistan, have
been followed in preparation of financial statements;

The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively
implemented and monitored;

There are no significant doubts upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern; and

There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate
governance, as detailed in the listing regulations.

Meetings and Activities during the Financial Year

During the year, four meetings of the Board of Directors, four meetings of the Audit
Committee and two meeting of the HR&R Committee were held.



The member-wise record of attendance at these meetings is as follows:

Board of Directors

Name of the Member Meetings Held Meetings
Attended
Mr. Umair Khan 4 4
Mr. Haroon Ahmad Khan 4 4
Mrs. Nighat Haroon Khan 4 4
Mr. Moazzam Ahmad Khan 4 2
Brig. Mukhtar Ahmed (Retd.) 4 4
Mr. Zafar Ud Din Mehmood 4 0
Mr. Yousuf Muhammad Farooq 4 3
Mr. Mohammad Saqib Jillani 4 0
Audit Committee
Name of the Member Meetings Held Meetings Attended
Mr. Zafar Ud Din Mehmood- Chairman 4 0
Mr. Umair Khan- Member 4 4
Mrs. Nighat Haroon Khan- Member 4 4
Human Resource and Remuneration Committee
Name of the Member Meetings Held Meetings Attended
Mr. Umair Khan- Chairman 2 2
Mrs. Nighat Haroon Khan- Member 2 2
Brig. Mukhtar Ahmed (Retd.) - Member 2 2

During the year Mr. Mohammad Sagqib Jillani resigned from the board of directors, with
effect from 19" June, 2018. Mr Zafar Uddin Mehmood was appointed as a Director of
your company on 25™ June, 2018 to fill the casual vacancy arising from the resignation of
Mr. Mohammad Saqib Jillani.

Evaluation of the Board’s Performance and Directors’ Training Program

As required under the Code, the directors have developed a mechanism for the annual
performance evaluation of the Board. Every member of the Board ensures his participation
in the meetings of the Board. Detailed discussions are held on strategic matters and clear
directions are provided to the management, which are regularly monitored by the Board
and its committees. The Board ensures that the Company adopts the best practices of
corporate governance. The Board also reviews performance of business segments during



each quarter with the aim to advance the opportunities of growth in all segments. For
details on the Director’s Training Program, please refer to the Statement of Compliance.

Shareholders Information

The Company is listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Ltd. The detailed pattern and
categories of its shareholding including shares held by directors and executives, if any,
are annexed to the Annual Report.

Investor Relations & Website

Waves Singer Pakistan is committed to providing full information and disclosures to all of
its shareholders. We follow the relevant statutory requirements of timely informing and
facilitating both the current and potential investors about any price-sensitive or material
information about the Company'’s business. This is done through the timely hoisting of all
relevant information on the Company's web site (www.wavessinger.com) such as the
Company’'s financial, operational performance, pattern of shareholding, material
disclosures and any other information deemed essential for the investors

External Auditors

The present auditors, KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co., Chartered Accountants retire at the
conclusion of the upcoming Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offer themselves
for reappointment. As suggested by the Audit Committee, the Board recommends this
reappointment for FY 2019 to the shareholders.

Post Balance Sheet Event or Significant Developments

During the Board meeting the Directors recommended a final cash dividend of 12.5 %
i.e. PKR 1.25 per share for the year ended 31 December 2018.

No material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the Company
have taken place between the end of the year and the date of this report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT
To the members of Waves Singer Pakistan Limited

Review report to the Members on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017 prepared by the Board of Directors of Waves Singer
Pakistan Limited (“the Company”) for the year ended 31 December 2018 to comply with the
requirements of regulation 40 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Code is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our
responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance Statement of Compliance reflects the
status of the Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not
and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Code. A review is limited primarily to
inquiries of the Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to
comply with the Regulations.

As part of our audit of financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit
approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal
control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal
controls, the Company's corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and
approval of its related party transactions and also ensure compliance with the requirements of section
208 of the Companies Act, 2017. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this
requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors
upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out any procedures to determine
whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm’s length price or not.Based on our
review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of
Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company’s compliance, in all material respects, with
the best practices contained in the Code as applicable to the Company for the year ended 31
December 2018.

Further, we highlight below instances of non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations as
reflected in the paragraph reference where these are stated in the Statement of Compliance:

Paragraph
Reference Description
i Para 2 Executive directors are more than the prescribed limit of
one third of the Company’s board of directors as required
by the Regulations.
ii. Para 8 Formal Policy and transparent procedures for remuneration

of directors was not approved during the year in accordance
with the requirement of the Act and the Regulations .



jii. Para 12 Chairman of the Audit Committee and Human Resource
and Remuneration Committee was not an independent
director for most part of the year

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Lahore
Date: 5" April, 2019



WAVES SINGER PAKISTAN LIMITED

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE)

REGULATIONS, 2017

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2018

The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following
manner:

The total number of directors are 07 as per the following:
a. Male: 06
b.  Female: 01

The composition of board is as follows:

a) Independent Directors: 03
b) Other Non-executive Director: 01
c) Executive Directors: 03

The Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017 (“the Regulations”) states
that the executive directors, including the chief executive officer, shall not be more than one-third of
its board of directors. However, the number of executive directors in the present Board exceeds the
prescribed limit as the Board has not been reconstituted after enforcement of the said Regulations.
Therefore, it will be ensured in the upcoming elections that the composition of the Board is in

accordance with the Regulations.

The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than
five listed companies, including this company (excluding the listed subsidiaries of listed
holding companies where applicable).

The company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have
been taken to disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and
procedures.



10.

11.

12.

The board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and
significant policies of the company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies
along with the dates on which they were approved or amended has been maintained.

All the powers of the board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have
been taken by board/ shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and
these Regulations.

The meetings of the board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a
director elected by the board for this purpose. The board has complied with the
requirements of Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and
circulating minutes of meeting of board.

The board of directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of
directors in accordance with the Act and these Regulations.

The Board has arranged Directors’ Training program for the following:
Mr. Haroon Ahmed Khan

There was no new appointment of Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Company Secretary and
Head of Internal Audit during the year. The changes in remuneration including terms and
conditions of employment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of
Internal Audit were approved by the Board and complied with relevant requirements of the
Regulations.

CFO and CEO duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the board.
The board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

a) Audit Committee (Name of members and Chairman)

Mr. Zafar Uddin Mehmood Chairman
Mr. Umair Khan Member
Mrs. Nighat Haroon Khan Member



13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

b) HR and Remuneration Committee (Name of members and Chairman)

Mr. Umair Khan Chairman
Brig. (Retd) Mukhtar Ahmed Member
Mrs. Nighat Haroon Khan Member

The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and
advised to the committee for compliance.

The frequency of meetings (quarterly/half yearly/ yearly) of the committee were as per
following:

a) Audit Committee: Quarterly
b) HR and Remuneration Committee: On required basis (twice during the current year)

The board has set up an effective internal audit function who are considered suitably
qualified and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and
procedures of the company.

The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a
satisfactory rating under the quality control review program of the ICAP and are registered
with the Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they or any of the partners of the firm, their
spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the company and that the firm and all its
partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines
on code of ethics as adopted by the ICAP.

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to
provide other services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other
regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC
guidelines in this regard.

The Company is following the requirements and regulations laid down in section 208 of
the Companies Act, 2017 except for the definition of “Related Party”, compliance of which
is dependent on the clarification from Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan. The
Company has presented the details of all related party transaction as disclosed in the
financial statement before the Audit Committee and upon their recommendation to the
Board for review and approval.



19. We confirm that all other requirements of the Regulations have been complied with.

MR. UMAIR KHAN
Chairman



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the members of Waves Singer Pakistan Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements of Waves Singer Pakistan Limited
and its subsidiaries (“the Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity, the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we
have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2018 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.



Following are the Key audit matters:

Sr.
No.

Key audit matters

How the matter was addressed in our audit

1.

Valuation of intangible assets

Refer to note 5.3 and 20 to the consolidated
financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2017,
the Group acquired Cool Industries
(Private) Limited and Linkwel (Private)
Limited. Provisional goodwill arising from
this acquisition was recognized amounted
to 2,975.12 million, which represented the
excess of the consideration paid over the
Group’s share of the fair value of the
identifiable net assets.

During the year ended 31 December 2018,
the fair values of separately identifiable
intangible assets were assessed by the
management based on the valuation
prepared by an external valuation expert
which required the exercise of significant
judgement and  estimation,  hence
provisional goodwill was revised and other
intangible assets i.e. brand value and
customer relationships were identified.

The Group annually tests the carrying value
of goodwill and intangible assets. The
testing is subject to estimates and judgments
made by the management of the Group with
respect to future sales growth and
profitability, cash flow projection and
selection of appropriate discount rate.

We identified the valuation of separately
identifiable intangible assets and goodwill
and their impairment testing as a key audit
matter because significant degree of
management judgement is involved in
making the above assessment and in
forecasting the future cash flows of the
Group which are inherently uncertain.

Our audit procedures, amongst others, included
the following:

obtaining an understanding of the process
and testing the design and implementation
of relevant key internal controls over
valuation of intangible assets;

assessing the appropriateness of the
Group’s accounting policy for recognition
of separately identifiable intangible assets
and goodwill and compliance of the policy
with applicable accounting and reporting
standards;

evaluated the professional valuer’s
competence, capabilities and objectivity
and assessed the appropriation of
methodology used by the professional
valuer to estimate the value of identifiable
intangible assets;

obtaining and inspecting the valuation
report prepared by the external valuer
engaged by the Group and on which the
management assessment of the fair value of
the separately identifiable intangible assets;

discussing with the Group’s management
key assumptions used in valuation model
and testing the mathematical accuracy of
the model;

involving our internal valuation specialists
to assist us in assessing the valuation model
and significant estimates, assumptions and
judgements applied in the valuation of
intangible assets and goodwill on the date
of acquisition and assessing the
recoverable amount at the year end,
including discount rate, growth rate,
terminal value and attrition rate, with
reference to available market information;

comparing the recoverable amount with the
goodwill and intangible assets recognized
to identify impairment, if any; and

assessing the adequacy of disclosure made
in the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with the requirements of the
applicable accounting standards.

Sales

Refer to note 5.14 and 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group principally generates revenue
from manufacturing and assembly of

Our audit procedures, amongst others, included
the following:

obtaining an understanding of the process
relating to recording of sales and testing the
design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of relevant key internal
controls over recording of sales;




Sr.

No.

Key audit matters

How the matter was addressed in our audit

domestic consumer appliances along-with
retailing and trading of the same.

We identified revenue recognition as a key
audit matter because it is one of the key
performance indicator of the Group and
gives rise to an inherent risk of
misstatement to meet expectations or
targets.

assessing the appropriateness of the
Group’s accounting policy for recording of
sales and compliance of the policy with
applicable accounting and reporting
standards;

comparing a sample of sale transactions
recorded during the year with sales orders,
sales invoices, delivery challans and other
relevant underlying documents;

comparing a sample of sale transactions
recorded near the year end with the sales
orders, sales invoices, delivery challans
and other relevant underlying
documentation to assess if the sale was
recorded in the appropriate accounting
period;

inspecting on a sample basis, credit notes
issued near to and subsequent to year end
to evaluate whether the adjustments to sales
had been accurately recorded in the
appropriate accounting period; and

scanning for any manual journal entries
relating to sales recorded during and near
the year end which were considered to be
material or met other specific risk based
criteria ~ for  inspecting  underlying
documentation.

Valuation of Stock in trade

Refer notes 5.8 and 22 to the consolidated
financial statements.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s has
gross carrying amount of stock-in trade
amounting to Rs. 3,091.70 million.

We identified valuation of stock in trade as
a key audit matter as it involves significant
management judgment in determining the
carrying value of stock in trade.

Our audit procedures, amongst others, included
the following:

assessing the appropriateness of Group’s
accounting policy for valuation of stock in
trade and compliance of the policy with
applicable accounting and reporting
standards;

obtaining an understanding of internal
controls over valuation of stock in trade and
testing, on a sample basis, their design,
implementation and operating effectiveness;

obtaining an understanding and assessing
reasonableness of the management’s
determination of net realizable value (NRV)
and the key estimates adopted, including
future selling prices, future costs to
complete work-in-progress and costs
necessary to make the sales and their basis;
and

comparing the NRV, on a sample basis, to
the cost of stock in trade to assess whether
any adjustments are required to the value of
stock in trade in accordance with the
accounting policy.




Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. Other information comprises the information
included in the annual report for the year ended 31 December 2018, but does not include the
consolidated and unconsolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the
requirements of Companies Act, 2017(XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.



If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Mr. Bilal Ali.

Lahore KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Date: 5™ April, 2019 Chartered Accountants
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Waves Singer Pakistan Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended 31 December 2018

2018 2017
Note (Rupees in "000)
(Revised)
Sales - net of sales return 10,268,910 4,772,736
Sales tax and trade discount on invoices (1,752,894) (1,087.113)
Sales - net 26 8,516,016 3,685,623
Cost of sales 27 (6,121,811) (2.588,339)
Gross profit 2,394,205 1,097,284
Marketing, selling and distribution costs 28 (1,161,544) (727,966)
Administrative expenses 29 (377,918) (196,431)
Other expenses 30 (108,768) (118,760)
Other income il 37,359 498,264 |
(1,610,871) (544,893)
783,334 552,391
Earned carrying charges 157,676 79357
Finance costs 32 (430,503) (296,235)
(272,827) (216,878)
Profit before taxation 510,507 335,513
Taxation 33 (128,432) (23,381)
Profit for the year 382,075 312,132
(Rupces)
(Restated)
Earnings per share - basic and diluted
34 2.34 1.91

The annexed notes | to 45 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

WL

Lahore Director Chief Exccutive Officer Chief Financial Officer



Waves Singer Pakistan Limited

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 December 2018

2018 2017
(Rupees in '000)

Ll
2

Profit for the year 382,075 3121

Other comprehensive income

ltenm thar will not be reclassified o profit and loss:

- Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment - 150,688
- Related deferred tax on surplus - (44,846)
- Deferred tax reversal on investment property - =
- Actuarial gain / (loss) on employee retirement benefits 15,197 (15,749)

15,197 90,093
Total comprehensive income for the year 397,272 402.225

The annexed notes | to 45 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

78 [T

Lahore Director Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer



Waves Singer Pakistan Limited
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year emded 31 Decomber 2008

Asat 01 January 2017 previously reported
Impact of change in poliey as explained in note § 1
Asar 01 January 2017 - restored

Torad comprediensive paeome_for e year

Profit after tnxation
Oiher comprelicusive tncome for te year

Remeasurement of defined henefit obligation

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and
equipment arisen

Related deferred tax on surplus arisen

Deferred tax reversal on investment property

Sucpidus frawsferred fo aecmmudated profits

Transfer against sale of land and building - net ol tax
Transfer of related deferred tax
Incremental depreciation relating to

surplus on revaluation = net of tax

seticis with empiers of the Comprany’
regoatzed directly i equty

Shares 10 be issued pursuant 1o amalgamation
Balance as at 31 Decemiber 2007 - resrated
Towul cormpreliensive income for the yoar
Profit after taxation

ilrer comprehensive income for the year
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation

Swrplus transferred o accunulated prifie

“Transfer against sale of building - net of tax
Incremental depreciation relating to

surplus en revalustion - net of tax
Adjustment resulting from change of tax rate

Trimsiictions with ovwaers of e Company
recagnized direcily in equiry

Shares issucd under scheme of amalgamation

Shares issued o5 fully paid bonus shares @ 15%

Final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2018 @ Rs: 125 per share

Babince as a1 31 December 200§

The annexed notes | 1o 45 form an integral part of these

Capital Reserves Revenne Reserve

Tssued, Shares o be Surplus on (Accumulated
subscribed and  issucd purswant  Sharve premivm Other capital revaluation of loss) /
. : Total
parid-up 1 reserve reserve land and Unappropristed
capital unlpamation building profit
(Rujees in '000)
| 454,056 I % o 5,000 § (150,507) 308,549
- - . - 1,095,855 - 1,095,855
454,056 k, . 5,000 1,095,855 (150,507) 1,404,404
. = = - - 312,132 312,152
2 ; S & = (15,749) (15,749)
- - - - 150,688 - 150,688
. s - . (44,846) . (44,396)
- - - - 105,842 296,383 402,225
- - - - (1.072,4352) 1,072,432 .
- - - - - 356,906 356,906
. - - - {11,165) 11,165 -
- - - (1,083,597} 1,440,563 356,966
. 96,500 5,038,548 . - . 5,003,048
4840506 964,500 538,548 S000 118,100 1,546,439 R.166,043
= 3 3 - - I2,078 382,078
- - - - - 15,197 15,197
5 . " & (967) 967 s
= = - - (2.268) 2,168 -
3 5 i s 2,830 . 2,530
5 % = - (705) 400,507 359,802
964,500 (964,500) = = = - -
212,784 - (212,784) - - . -
. < = - - (177,320} (1773100
1177284 {964,500) {212,784) - - {177,320) {177,320
1,631,340 = 4,825,764 5,00 117,395 1,609,620 8,359,125

d financial

Pu S~

Lahore Director

Chiefl Executive Officer

Chief Financial Oicer




Waves Singer Pakistan Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Far the year ended 31 December 2018

Cuash Flows From Operating Activitics

Profit before taxation

Adjustments for non-cash items:

- Depreciation on praperty, plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible asset

- Finance costs

- Netloss on insurance claim of lixed assets written off due to fire
Loss of inventory due 1o lire

- (Gain) [ loss on sale of property, plant and equipment

- Unrealised gain on investment property al fair value

- Liabilities no longer payable writien back

- Amortisation of deferred income

- Provision against stock-in-trade

- Provision against trade debts and other receivables
Pravision Workers welfare fund

- Provision Workers profit participation fund

= Provision for employee retirement benelits

I'rofit before working capital changes

Effect on eash flow due to working capital changes

(Increase) /decrease in current assets
Stores, spares and loose tools
- Stock-in-trade
- Trade debts
- Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables

Increase ! (decrease) in current liabilities
Trade and other payables

Cash used in aperations

Income tax - net

Warkers' Profit Participation Fund paid
Workers' Welfare Fund paid

Employee retirement benelits paid
Long term deposits - net

Net eash used in operating activities

Cush flow frone investing activities

Capital expenditure

Net proceeds against insurance claim against assets written off due to fire
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

Net cash Mows from investing activities

Cash flow from financing aciivities

Lease rentals - net

Finance costs paid

Dividend paid

Short term finances availed - net

Long term loans - net

Net cash Mows from fnancing activities

Net (decrease) / inerease in eash and eash equivalents during the year
Cash and eash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and eash equivalents aequired in g business combination

Cash and eash equivalents at end of the year

The annexed notes | to 46 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,

KL

Lahore Director

Chicl Executive Officer

Nate 2018 20017
(Rupees in "000)
{Revised)
s10,507 335,513
19.1.4 193,829 136,814
20.3 40,185 19,005
430,503 296,235
6,838 -
(186,098) >
5,550 (456,951}
. (30,800}
(21,134)
(6,322) (2,452)
- 1,790
10,388 88,562
9,118 -
27,430 -
13,113 13,351
1,033,808 401,067
(8,117) 9,033
(499,371) (247,755)
(1,100,080) (449,269)
(42,864) 91,353
(1.650,432) (396,638)
607,647 (454,206)
(8,977) (649777)
(90,385) (35,196)
(12,248) -
(6,071) -
(6,543) (26,185)
3,528 (7,224)
(120,696) (718.382)
(521,401) (188.840)
429,037 =
12,600 2,048,292
(79,764) 1,859,452
(13,639 (10,657)
(406,931) (304,406)
(175,803) -
(414,989) 207,859
364,063 (396.875)
(647,299) {504.079)
(847,759) 636,991
(576.860) (747.299)
- {466,552)
35 {1,424.619) (376,860)

Chiel Finaneial Officer




Waves Singer Pakistan Limited

Notes to the Consclidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2018

1 Status and nature of business
The Group comprises of:

Holding Company

- Waves Singer Pakistan Limited
2018 2017
(Holding percentage)
Subsidiary Companies

- Waves Marketing (Private) Limited 100 100
- Electronics Marketing Company (Private) Limited 100 100

Waves Singer Pakistan Limited (the Holding Company) was incorporated in Pakistan under the repealed
Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017) as a public company limited by shares and is quoted on
the Pakistan Stock Exchange. The company is principally engaged in the manufacturing and assembly of domestic
consumer appliances alongwith retailing and trading of the samc and other light engineering products. The
registered office of the company is located at 9-K.M, Hanjarwal, Mulian Road, Lahore.

Geographical locations of the manufacturing facilities of the Group are located at:

- 9-K.M, Hanjarwal, Mulian Road, Lahore.
- Dina Nath, Mouza Rakh Serai Cheenba, Tehsil Pattoki, District Kasur.

Waves Marketing (Private) Limited - Subsidiary Company

Waves Marketing (Private) Limited (WMPL) is a private limited company which was incorporated on 10 April
2017 under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017). The registered office of the
company is located at 15/3 A Model Town, Lahore. The principal activity of the company is the sale, distribution
and marketing of consumer appliances being a trading concern.

Electronics Markering Company (Private) Limited - Subsidiary Company

Electronics Marketing Company (Private) Limited (EMCPL) is a private limited company which was incorporated
on 09 September 2016 under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017). The principal
activity of the the company is to carry out distribution / wholesales / retail business of all kinds of electronic
appliances, its components and accessories, etc.

2 Summary of significant events and transactions in the current reporting period

2.1 The Group's consolidated financial position and performance was particularly affected by the following
events and transactions during the reporting year:

- Effective 01 July 2017, the Honourable Sindh High Court through its order dated 22 May 2018
approved the Scheme of Arrangement as proposed and granted sanction order for the amalgamation
of Cool Industries (Private) Limited (CIPL) and Link Wel (Private) Limited (LWPL) with and into
Singer Pakistan Limited (now Waves Singer Pakistan Limited - the Holding Company) and demerger
of retail business from the Holding Company and amalgamate the same into the Electronics
Marketing Company (Private) Limited (EMCPL). The Board of Directors of the Holding Company, in
their meeting held on 27 November 2017, approved and resolved to present the Scheme of
Arrangement with and into the Company before the sharcholders of the Holding Company for their
approval. Approval of the secured creditors was obtained on 29 December 2017, while the

(12 LV WY PN



shareholders of the Holding Company approved the Scheme of Arrangement in their Extraordinary
General Mecting (EOGM) held on 29 December 2017. In consideration, the Holding Company will
issue 96,450,000 ordinary shares in aggregate in favour of the shareholders of CIPL (93,975,000
shares) and LWPL (2,375.000) on the basis of swap ratio of 1 (one) ordinary share of the CIPL for
every 1.79 ordinary shares of the Holding Company and | (one) ordinary share of the LWPL for every
0.33 ordinary shares of the Holding Company.

For the purpose of demerger, 24,800,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each of EMCPL shall be allotted
and issued by EMCPL to the Holding Company.

The Group expects several benefits after this merger including the synergies of operations, (merging
entities being engaged in the similar nature of business), utilization and the benefits of the "Waves"
brand (held by CIPL) along with the Singer brand already held by surviving company, enhancement
of the marketing and advertising opportunities, increased market penetration, a large equity and asset
base of the merged entity and reduction in administration cost, etc.

- As fully explained in note 30, a fire broke out at production facility located in Lahore causing damage
to the finished goods under dispatch, production facility (i.e. Plant and machinery) along with its
related building area and work-in-process which were adequately insured. Consequently, the Group
has written off property, plant and equipment and stock in trade with carrying value of Rs. 249.78
million and Rs. 186.10 million respectively.

Subsequently, the Group has incurred capital expenditure amounting to Rs. 474.22 million in
ageregate (building and plant and machinery) for the replacement and expansion of its current
manufacturing facility.

- Change in accounting policy for surplus on revaluation of land and building as detailed in note 5.1 to
these consolidated financial statements.

- Due to the first time application of financial reporting requirements under the Companies Act, 2017,
including disclosure and presentation requirements of the fourth schedule of the Companies Act,
2017, the Company has presented additional disclosures in these financial statements and represented

- For detailed discussion about the Group's performance, please refer to the Director's report.

=] Basis of preparation

31

3.2

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan comprise of:

— International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companics Act, 2017;

—  Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017; and

—~  Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan as notified under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS Standards,
the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

Basis of measurement

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for
land and buildings (including the investment property) which are stated at revalued amounts less
subsequent depreciation and impairment losses as referred 1o in note 19, recognition of lease liability and
certain employee retirement benefits as referred to in note 10 and 11 at present value respectively,



Hid Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistani rupee which is also the Group's
functional and presentation currency and have been rounded off to the nearest thousand.,

34 Basis of consolidation

These consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Holding Company and its
subsidiary companies as at 31 December 2018. These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared from the information available in the audited separate financial statements of the Holding
Company for the year ended 31 December 2018 and the audited financial statements of the subsidiaries for
the year ended 31 December 2018.

341 Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has richts to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the activities of the
entity. The subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the
Holding Company obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

The financial statements of the subsidiary companies have been consolidated on a line-by-line basis and
the carrying values of the investments held by the Holding Company have been eliminated against the
sharcholders’ equity in the subsidiary companies. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting year as of the Holding Company, using consistent accounting policies.

Intra - Group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra - group
transactions, are eliminated in full.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group.
The cost of an acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued and
liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any non-
controlling interest. The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. Any goodwill that arises is tested annually for
impairment.

Nou-coitrolling interest

Non-controlling interest is that part of net results of operations and of net assets of the subsidiaries which
are not owned by the Holding Company either directly or indirectly. Non-controlling interest is presented
as a scparate item in the consolidated financial statements. The Group applies a policy of treating
transactions with non-controlling interests as transactions with parties external to the Group.

Changes in the Group's interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transaction.

Loss of control

On the loss of control, the Group derecognizes the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, any non
controlling interests and other components of equity related to the subsidiary., Any surplus or deficit
arising on the loss of control is recognized in consolidated statement of profit or loss, In addition, any
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that subsidiary are reclassified
to the consolidated profit or loss. If the Group retains any interest in the previous subsidiary, then such
interest is measured at fair value at the date that control is lost. Subsequently that retained interest is
accounted for as an equity-accounted investee, joint venture or as an available for sale financial asset
depending on the level of influence retained.
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Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of these consolidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards
requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under circumstances, and the
results of which form the basis for making judgment about carryirg value of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates,

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which estimates are revised if the revision affects only that period. or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the Group's financial statements or where judgment
was exercised in application of accounting policies are as follows:

Note

- Residual value, market values and useful lives of

property, plant and equipment 3.2
- Useful lives of intangible assets 5.3
- Investment property 35
- Provision for employee retirement benefit plans 36
- Stock in trade and stores and spares and loose tools

at net realisable value / net of impairment losses J.7& 5.8

- Provision for impairment of trade debts
- Provisions

- Provision for warranty obligation

- Taxation

Lo b,
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- Impairment of financial and non-financial assets
Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these consolidated
financial statements, except as disclosed in note 5.1.

wn

.1 Change in accounting policy

Up to 31 December 2017, surplus on revaluation of land and buildings was being measured under the
repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, The surplus arising on the revaluation was credited to the surplus
on revaluation account. With effect from 01 January 2018, Companies Act, 2017 has become applicable
and section 235 of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 relating to treatment of surplus arising on
revaluation of fixed assets has not been carried forward in the Companies Act, 2017. Accordingly the
management has changed the accounting policy to bring accounting of revaluation surplus in accordance
with the requirements of 1AS 16 "Property, plant and equipment”. The effect of this change in accounting
policy, which is applied with retrospective effect. has resulted in transfer of surplus on revaluation of
property, plant and equipment - net of tax amounting to Rs. 159.50 million and Rs. 1,095.86 million as at
31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 respectively to statement of changes in equity.

5.2 Property, plant and equipment
Owned

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if
any, except for the land which is stated at revalued amount less impairment loss, if any, and buildings
which are stated at the revalued amounts less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost
includes expenditure directly attributable to the acquisition of an asset.
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Land and Buildings are revalued by professionally qualified valuer with sufficient regularity to ensure that
the net carrying amount does not differ materially from the fair value (market value). In case of revalued
assets, any accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying
amount of the asset and the net amount restated at the revalued amount of the asset,

Depreciation is charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss applying the straight-line method
whereby the depreciable amount of an asset is depreciated over its estimated useful life. Depreciation on
additions is charged from the month in which the asset is available for use and up to the month of disposal.
Amount equivalent to incremental depreciation charged for the year on revalued assets is transferred from
surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment to retained earnings. The rates of depreciation are
stated in note 19 to these consolidated financial statements.

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if impact
on depreciation is significant. Normal repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss as and when incurred.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the
item of property, plant and equipment. Gains and losses on disposal of assets are taken to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. When revalued assets are sold, the amount included in surplus on revaluation of
property, plant and equipment is transferred to consolidated retained earnings.

Leased

Leases in terms of which the Group assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Upon initial recognition, an asset acquired by way of finance lease is stated at
an amount equal to the lower of its fair value and the present value of minimum lease payments,
determined at the inception of the lease. Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is stated at the amount
determined at initial recognition less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any,

Each minimum lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost so as to achieve a constant
rate on the balance outstanding, The interest element of the rental is charged to consolidated statement of
profit or loss over the lease term.

The related rental obligations, net of finance cost, are included in liabilities against assets subject 1o
finance lease as referred to in note 10. The liabilities are clussified as current and non-current depending
upon the timing of the payment.

Depreciation is charged on the same basis as used for owned assets,

Suale and lease back

Where the sale and lease back transactions result in a finance lease, any excess of sale proceeds over the
carrying amount is deferred and amortised over the lease term. However, sale proceeds less than the
carrying value is immediately recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Capital work in progress

It is stated at cost less impairment losses, if any. It includes expenditure incurred and advances made in
respect of assets in the course of their construction and installation. These cost are transferred to relevant
assels category as and when assets are available for intended use.
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5.3 Intangible assets and goodwill
Gaodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of business represents future economic benefits arising from assels
that are not capable of being individually identified and separately recognized. Goodwill is initially
recognized at cost which is determined as the excess of the cost of business combination over the Group’s
interest in the net lair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquiree.
Subsequent to initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Goodwill is tested annually for impairment.

Other Intangible asset

Other intangible assets, including customer relationship, that are acquired by the Group and have finite
useful lives are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Intangible assets such as brand value that have infinite lives are measured at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives and is generally recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss. The rates of
amortization are stated in note 20 to these consolidated financial statements.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the
specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditures, including expenditure on internally generated
soodwill and brands, is recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Amortisation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if
appropriate.

Gain or loss from derecognition of intangible assets are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

5.4 Business combination

As per the requirement of International Financial Reporting Standards 3, business combinations are
accounted for by applying the acquisition method (other than those of the businesses / entities under
common control unless it is transitory in nature as was the case in Company's case). The cost of
acquisition is measured at the fair value of assets given, equity instruments issued and the liabilities
incurred or assumed at the date of acquisition. The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any
liability resulting from a conlingent consideration arrangement, if any.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The excess of the consideration transferred over the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If this is less than the fair value of the net assets acquired in the
case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognized directly in the consolidated statement of profil or

n
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Investment property

Property, comprising land or a building or part thereof, held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or
both are classified as investment property. These are not held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes. The Group's business model i.e. the Group's intentions
regarding the use ol a property is the primary criterion for classification as an investment property.
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Investment property is initially measured at cost (including the transaction costs). However when an owner
occupied property carried at fair value becomes an investment property because its use has changed, the
transfer to the investment property is at fair value on the date of transfer and any balance of surplus on the
revaluation of the related assets, on the date of such a transfer continues to be maintained in the surplus
account on revaluation of property, plant and equipment. Upon disposal, any surplus previously recorded
in the revaluation surplus account is directly transferred to retained earnings / accumulated losses and the
transfer is not made through the consolidated statement of profit or loss. However any gain or loss on
disposal of investment property (calculated as the difference between the net proceeds from disposal and
the carrying amount of the item) is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The transfer (o investment property is made when, and only when, there is a change in use, evidenced by
the end of owner occupation. In case of a dual purpose properties, the same is classified as investment
property, only if the portion could be sold or leased out separately under finance lease.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures the investment property at fair value at each
reporting date and any subsequent changes in fair value is recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss (i.e. in cases where the owner occupied property carried at fair value becomes an investment
property, (he fair value gain to be recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss would be the
difference between the fajr value at the time of initial classification as investment property and fair value
at the time of subsequent remeasurement). The revaluation of investment properties are carried out by
independent professionally qualified valuers on the basis of active market price,

Employee retirement and other service benefits

Defined benefit pluns

The Group operates a funded defined benefit pension scheme for the eligible executives and managers and
a funded gratuity scheme for all of its eligible employees {old Singer Pakistan Limited's employees), The
Group also operates an unfunded gratuity scheme for its eligible field staff. Benefits under the scheme are
payable to siaff on the completion of prescribed qualifying period of service, Provisions / contributions are
made in these consolidated financial stalements 1o cover abligations on the basis of actuarial valuation
carried out annually under the Projected Unit Credit Method.

Amount recognised in consolidated statement of financial position represents the present value of defined
benefit obligations as reduced by the fair value of the plan assets, if any. Al actuarial gains and losses are
recognised in 'Consolidated Other Comprehensive Income’ as they occur. Past service cost resulting from
the changes to delined benefit plan is immediately recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss. Current service costs together with net interest cost are also charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

Calculation of gratuity and pension requires assumptions to be made of future outcomes which mainly
includes increase in remuneration, expected long term return on plan assets and the discount rate used to
convert future cash flows lo current values. Calculations are sensitive to changes in the underlying
assumptions,

Defined contribution plan

The Group operales a recognised provident fund scheme covering all eligible employees. The Group and
employees make equal monthly contributions to the fund.

Staff Compensated abserices

The Group recognises the liability for compensated absences in respect of employees in the period in
which they are earned up to the reporting date on the basis of un-availed earned leaves balance at the end
of the year.
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Stores, spares and loose tools

These are valued at lower of cost determined on first-in-first-out basis and impairment losses if any. Items
in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thercon up to the
reporting date less any impairment losses.

Provision for obsolete and slow moving stores, spares and loose tools is determined based on
management's estimates, these are based on their future usability. Provision is made for any excess of
carrying value over the estimated net realizable value and is recognised in the consolidated statement of

5.8 Stock-in-trade

Stock-in-trade is valued at the lower of cost determined on first-in-first-out basis and net realisable value
excepl for stock in transit which is stated at invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon upto the
reporting date. Cost in relation to work in process and manufactured finished goods represents direct cost
of materials, direct wages and appropriate allocation of manufacturing overheads, Cost of goods purchased
for resale comprises of purchase price, import duties, taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable by
the entity from tax authorities) and other directly attributable cost wherever applicable.

Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less estimated cost of completion and the estimated cost necessary to be
incurred to make the sale,

The management continuously reviews its inventory for existence of any items which may have become
obsolete, Provision is made for slow moving inventory based on management’s estimation. These are
based on historical experience and are continuously reviewed.

5.9 Trade debts

These are initially recognised at fair value plus directly atiributable transaction costs and are subsequently
measured at amortised cost.

Provision for doubtful debts is established where there is objective evidence that the Group will not be
able to collect amount due according to the original terms of the receivable is based on management's
assessment of anticipated uncollectible amounts based on Group’s past experience, historical bad debts
statistics and ageing analysis. Debts are written off when considered irrecoverable.

5.10  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand, and deposits held with banks with original maturities
of three months or less and where these are held for the purpose of meeting short term cash commitments
rather than for investments or other purposes, Short term running finance facilities availed by the Group
are also included as part of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of consolidated statement of cash
flows.

511 Trade and other payahles

Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for goods and services that have been acquired in the
ordinary course ol business from suppliers. Account balances are classified as current liabilities if payment
is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycles of business if longer). If not, they are
classified as non-current liabilities.
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Trade and other payvables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method. Exchange gains and losses arising on translation in respect of liabilities
in foreign currency are added to the carrving amount of the respective liabilities.

Provisions

A provision is recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect current
best estimates.

Warranty obligations

The Group accounts for its warranty obligations based on historical trends when the underlying products
or services are sold,

Revenue recognition

- Sales are stated net of sales 1ax, rebate and sales return and are recognised when persuasive evidence
of a sale exists. The key area of judgment in recognising revenue is the timing of recognition, which
reflects the point or period when the Company has transferred significant risks and rewards of
ownership to third parties. Revenue from sale of goods is measured at fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and is recognised as revenue on dispatch of goods to customers.

- Revenue from services rendered is recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss when the
related services are performed.

- Carrying charges representing the difference between the cash sale price and hire purchase price are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss using the effective interest rate method over
the period of the sale under the hire purchase arrangement.

- Income on investments and profit and loss sharing bank accounts are recognised on accrual basis
using the effective interest rate method.

- Rental income from investment property is recognised as other income on a straight-line basis over
the term of lease.

Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in
equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current

Current tax is the amount of tax payable on taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date, and any adjustment to the tax payable in respect of previous
years. Provision for current tax is based on current rates of taxation in Pakistan after taking into account
tax credits, rebates and exemptions available, if any. The amount of unpaid income tax in respect of the
current or prior periods is recognized as a liability. Any excess paid over what is due in respect of the
current or prior periods is recognized as an asset.
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The Holding Company has opted for Group Taxation under section S9AA of the Income Tax Ordinance.
2001. Under this approach, the Holding Company is accounting for the related taxes under standalone
taxpayer approach. Under this approach, current and deferred taxes are recognised as if the entity was
taxable in its own right.

Deferred

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet method in respect of all temporary differences arising
from differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of the taxable profit. However, deferred tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of transaction neither affects accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax
assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilized.

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences reverse
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, The
carrving amount of all deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax assets to be utilized. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
excepl in the case of items credited or charged to other comprehensive income or equity in which case it is
included in other comprehensive income or equity.

Borrowings

All interest bearing borrowings are initially recognized at the fair value of the consideration received less
directly attributable transaction costs. After initial recognition, interest bearing borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. Borrowings are
classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional / contractual right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date.

Finance cost are accounted for on an accrual basis and are included in accrued finance cost to the extent of
the remaining amount unpaid.

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognized in consolidated statement of
profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Financial instruments

The Group recognises a financial asset or a financial liability when it becomes a party to the contractual
pravision of the instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are recognised initially at cost, which is the fair
value of the consideration given or received respectively. These are subsequently measured at fair value or
amortised cost, as the case may be depending on the particular accounting policy.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual right to cash flows from the asset expire, or when
substantially all the risks and reward of ownership of the financial asset are transferred. Financial liability
is derecognised when its contractual obligations are discharged. cancelled or expired. Gain or loss on
derecognition is recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss.

A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is objective evidence that it
is impaired. A financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred after
the initial recognition of the asset, and that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated future cash
flows of the asset.
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5.18  Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the consolidated
financial statements only when the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts
and the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and setile the liability
simultaneously.

5.19 Impairment
Financial assets

A financial assel is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective evidence
that it is impaired. A financial asset is impaired if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and that loss event(s) had an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably. Objective evidence
that the financial asset is impaired includes default or delinquency by a debtor, restructuring of an amount
due to the Group on the terms that the Group would not consider otherwise, indications that a debtor or
issuer will enter bankruptcy, adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers or issuers, economic
conditions that correlate with defaults or the disappearance of an active market for a security.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the
difference between its carrying amount and the present value of estimated cash flows discounted at the
original effective interest rate. When an event occurring alter the impairment was recognised causes the
amount of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is reversed through consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Individually signiticant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. All impairment
losses are recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets other than deferred tax assets and stock in trade, are assessed
at each reporting date to ascertain whether there is any indication of impairment, If any such indication
exists then the assct's recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised, as an expense in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. Value in use is assessed through discounting of the estimated future cash flows using a
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units), An impairment loss for goodwill, if any, is
not reversed. For other assets, an impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

5.20  Foreign currency transactions and translation

Transactions and balances

All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees using the exchange
rate at the reporting date. Exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translations at the year end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are taken to profit or loss. Non-monetary assets and liabilitics denominated in foreign
currency that are measured in terms of historical cost are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency that are
measured at fair value are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined. Exchange differences are generally included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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5.21 Dividends and appropriations to reserves

Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recognised in the consolidated financial statements in the
period in which these are approved. Transfer between reserves approved subsequent to the reporting date
is considered as non-adjusting event and is recognised in the consolidated financial statements in the
period in which such transfers are made.

5.22 Earnings per share

As required under International Accounting Standard 33 Earnings Per Share, the Group presents the
carnings per share (EPS) information based on the consolidated financial statements. Basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the profit after tax attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Group by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. The Group is not exposed 1o the
dilutive effect on EPS.

5.23 Common control transactions

A business combination (or a demerger for that purpose) involving entities or businesses under common
control is a business combination in which all of the combining entities or businesses are ultimately
controlled by the same party or parties both before and after the combination. Such common control
transactions have been excluded from the scope of International Financial Reporting Standards 3 dealing
wilth Business Combinations., Accordingly, as an accounting policy choice, the assets acquired and
liabilities assumed / assets and liabilities transferred are recognized under the book value basis (carry-over
basis) of accounting.

524  Grantin aid (deferred income)

Grant in aid represents the amount received from the World Bank under a project to phase out the Ozone
Depleting Substances (ODS) by acquiring asset (production facility) which manufactures such products
which are free from such substances. This grant is classificd as deferred income and is being amortized
over the useful life of such asset.

5.25  Operating lease assets and assets obtained under Ijarah arrangement

Rentals paid for the assets obtained under the operating lease, if any are recognized as an expense of the
period to which these relate to.

Leased assets which are obtained under ljarah agreement arc not recognized in the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position and are treated as operating lease based on Islamic Financial Accounting
Standard (IFAS) 2 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountant of Pakistan and notified by Securities
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan vide S.R.0. 43(1) / 2007 dated 22 May 2007. ljarah Payments
under the agreement are recognised as an expense in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on a
straight line basis over the lease period of ljarah agreement.
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Operating segments

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources
and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the Board of Directors of the
Holding Company that makes the strategic decisions. Segment results that are reported to the Board of
Directors include items directly attributable to a segment as well as allocated on a reasonable basis.
Unallocated item comprise mainly corporate assets, head office expenses and tax assets and liabilities.
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527  Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved International Financial
Reporting Standards

The following International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) as notified under the
Companies Act, 2017 and the amendments and interpretations thereto will be effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after 01 January 2019:

(4, TIPS

IFRIC 23 *Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments' (effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 01 January 2019) clarifies the accounting for income tax when there is uncertainty over income
tax treatments under IAS 12, The interpretation requires the uncertainty over tax treatment be
reflected in the measurement of current and deferred tax. The application of interpretation is not
likely to have an impact on the Group’s financial statements.

[FRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after
01 July 2018). IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much
and when revenue is recognized. It replaces existing revenue recognition guidance, including IAS 18
‘Revenue’, 1AS 11 ‘Construction Contracts’ and IFRIC 13 ‘Customer Loyalty Programmes’. The
Group is currently in the process of analysing the potential impact of changes required in revenue
recognition policies on adoption of the standard.

[FRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ and amendment — Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation
(effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 July 2018 and 01 January 2019 respectively).
[FRS 9 replaces the existing guidance in IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement. IFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the classification and measurement of financial
instruments, a new expected credit loss model for calculating impairment on financial assets, and new
general hedge accounting requirements. It also carries forward the guidance on recognition and
derecognition of financial instruments from 1AS 39. The Group is currently in the process of
analysing the potential impact of changes required in classification and measurement of financial
instruments and the impact of expected loss model on adoption of the standard.

[FRS 16 ‘Leases’ (effective for annual period beginning on or after 01 January 2019). IFRS 16
replaces existing leasing guidance, including 1AS 17 ‘Leases’, IFRIC 4 ‘Determining whether an
Arrangement conlains a Lease’, SIC-15 ‘Operating Leases - Incentives™ and SIC-27 *Evaluating the
Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease’. IFRS 16 introduces a single, on-
balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognizes a right-of-use asset representing
its right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease
payments. There are recognition exemptions for short-term leases and leases of low-value items,
Lessor accounting remains similar to the current standard i.c. lessors continue to classify leases as
finance or operating leases. The Group is currently in the process of analyzing the potential impact of
its lease arrangements that will result in recognition of right to use assets and liabilities on adoption
of the standard.

Amendment 1o 1AS 28 ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures' - Long Term Interests in
Associates and Joint Ventures (effective for annual period beginning on or after 01 January 2019).
The amendment will affect companies that finance such entities with preference shares or with loans
for which repayment is not expected in the foreseeable future (referred to as long-term interests or
*LTI"). The amendment and accompanying example state that LTI are in the scope of both IFRS 9
and [AS 28 and explain the annual sequence in which both standards are to be applied. The
amendments are not likely to have an impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to [AS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’ - Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (effective
for annual periods beginning on or afier 01 January 2019). The amendments clarify that on
amendment, curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan, a company now uses updated
actuarial assumptions to determine its current service cost and net interest for the period; and the
effect of the asset ceiling is disregarded when calculating the gain or loss on any settlement of the
plan and is dealt with separately in other comprehensive income. The application of amendments is
not likely to have an impact on Group’s financial statements.
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Amendment 1o IFRS 3 *Business Combinations’ — Definition of a Business (effective for business
combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of annual period beginning
on or after 01 January 2020). The IASB has issued amendments aiming to resolve the difficulties that
arise when an entity determines whether it has acquired a business or a group of assets, The
amendments clarify that to be considered a business, an acquired set of activities and assets must
include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs. The amendments include an clection to use a concentration test. The
standard is effective for transactions in the future and therefore would not have an impact on past
consolidated linancial statements.

Amendments 1o IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes
in Accounting Estimates and Errors (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January
2020). The amendments are intended to make the definition of material in IAS 1 easier to understand
and are not intended to alter the underlying concept of materiality in IFRS Standards. In addition, the
IASB has alsu issued guidance on how lo make materiality judgements when preparing their general
purpose financial statements in accordance with IFRS Standards.

Annual Improvements to [FRS Standards 2015-2017 Cyele. The new cycle of improvements addresses
improvements to lfollowing approved accounting standards:

IFRS 3 Business Combinations and IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements. The amendment aims to clarify the
accounting treatment when a company increases its interest in a joint operation that meets the
definition of a business. A company remeasures its previously held interest in a joint operation when
it obtains control of the business. A company does not remeasure its previously held interest in a joint
operation when it obtains joint control of the business.

IAS 12 Income Taxes. The amendment clarify that all income tax consequences of dividends
(including payments on financial instruments classified as equity) are recognized consistently with
the transaction that generates the distributable profits.

IAS 23 Borrowing Costs. The amendment clarify that a company treats as part of general borrowings
any borrowing originally made to develop an asset when the asset is ready for its intended use or sale.

The above amendments are effective from annual period beginning on or after 01 January 2019 and are not
likely to have an impact on the Group's financial statements.

2018 2017 2018 2017
Share capital Note (Number of shares) (Rupees in '000)
6.1 Authorized share capital 6.1.1 175,000,000 145,000,000 1,750,000 1,450,000
6.1.1  During the year, the Holding Company has increased its authorized share capital by 30,000,000 shares.
The authorized shure capital thus stands enhanced at Rs. 1,750 million, divided into 175.000.000 shares of
Rs. 10 each, and accordingly the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Holding Company have
been amended.
6.2 Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
2018 2017 2018 2017
(Number of shares) (Rupees in "000)
Fully paid-up ordinary shares of
Rs. 10 each
Issued for cash 11,461,568 11,461,568 114,616 114,616
Issued for consideration other than cash 703,733 703,733 7,037 7.037
Issued as paid bonus shares 54,518,664 33,240,321 545,187 332,403
[ssued under scheme of amalgamation 96,450,000 - 964,500 &
163,133,965 45,405,622 1,631,340 454,056




6.3 Reconciliation of ordinary shares

2018 2017 2018 2017
Note (Number of shares) (Rupees in '000)
Balance as at 01 January 45,405,622 45,405,622 454,056 454,056
Ordinary shares issued
under scheme of arrangement 0.5 96,450,000 - 964,500 -
Ordinary shares issued
as fully paid bonus shares 0.6 21,278,343 B 212,784 -
Balance as at 31 December 163,133,965 45,405,622 1,631,340 454,056
6.4 Ordinary shares of the Holding Company held by associated persons and undertaking at year end are as
follows:
2018 2017 2018 2017
(Percentage held) (Number of shares)
*Poseidon Synergies (Private) Limited 6.00% 18.74% 9,785,377 8,509,024
Chief Executive Officer and
his spouse and minor chifdren
- Haroon Ahmad Khan (CLO) 37.95% 15.42% 61,916,108 7,002,209
- Nighat Haroon Khan (Wile of CEO) 15.64% 6.39% 25,518,500 2,900,000
- Dependent children of CIEO 1.66% 5.17% 2,702,500 2.350.000
61.25% 45.72%

* Owned by Chief Executive Officer and his wife,

6.5 Pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement, approved by Honourable Sindh High Court through its Order dated
22 May 2018, the authorized share capital of Singer Pakistan Limited has been merged and combined with
the authorized share capital of each of Cool Industries (Private) Limited and Link Wel (Private) Limited.
The Holding Company has issued 96,450,000 shares to the sharcholders of Cool Industries (Private)
Limited and Link Wel (Private) Limited pursuant to the same scheme.

6.6 During the year, the Holding Company has announced 15% bonus shares in lieu of dividend to its existing
sharcholders, in proportion of their shareholding.

6.7 The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared (if any), and are entitled to one
vole per share at meetings of the Holding Company.

6.8 13,509,024 shares having face value of Rs. 10 cach are pledged as security with a financial institution.

7 Share premium
This represents excess of market value over the face value of shares issued under the scheme of arrangement as

explained in note 2.1. This reserve can only be utilized by the Group for the purpose specified in Section 81(2) of
the Companies Act, 2017.
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%  Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment - net of tax Note 218 017

{Rupees in 000}

Surplus on revalualion of leasehold land and buildings - as on 01 January 167,990 1,462,460
Surplus on revaluation of land recognised during the year } - 134,854
Surplus on revaluation of buildings recognised during the year - 15,834
Surplus on sale of leasehold land 1ransferred to retained earnings 8.1 - {1,416,606)
Surplus on sale of buildings on freehold land transferred o retained earnings (1,2458) -
Surplus on sale of buildings on Ieaschold land transferced 1o retained eamnings 8.1 - (12.792)
Incremental depreciation trans(erred to equity (4,798) (13,760)

161,944 167,990
Deferred tax liability - as on 01 Janvary {49,890y (366,605)
Deferred tax on revaluation recognised during the year - (44,846)
Tax cffect on sale of leasehold land transferred to retained carmings on sake - 353,891
Tax ¢lfect an sale of buildings on frechold land transferred to retnined earnings 281 -
Tax effect on sale of buildings on leaschold land iransferred to retained earnings - 3,075
Tax effect on teansfer of incremental depreciation (o relained eamings 1.3 4,595
Adjusiment resulting from change of tax rate 1,530
Delerred tax lability {45,488) {49,890)
Balance as a1 31 December: land: Rs. | riilion {2017 [ million) and building:
Rs. 115.26 million (2017: Rs. V17.1 million} 82 116,256 118.100

8.1 During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group sold its entire factory land and building of Singer Pakistan Limited and accordingty
surplus on revaluation of the land and building have been wransferred 10 equity. This includes balance of Rs. 202.75 million and Rs. 2.25
million tepresenting surplus on the revaluation of the portion of land and building respeclively earlier classified as investment property.

8.2 The latest revaluation was carried out on 31 December 2017. Freehold land was revalued on the basis of current market vatue whereas
building on freehold land was revalued on the basis of depreciated market values. The most significant input into Lhis valuation approach
is price per kanal for land and price per square foot for buildings and other assets.

9  Long term loans - Sceured Note 2008 2017
{(Rupees in '000)

Long lerm loans - Banking Company oLt 568,200 649,458
Long term leans - Non-banking Company 2,42 443,312 -
Current maturity presented under currens liabilities i7 (281,250) (81,182}
732,271 368,276
2.1 Long term finances ulilized under mark-up arrangements from banking and non banking companies are composed of’
i 1
Bank Name Faciliey 2018 2017 Mark-up as per Agrecment Tenure and hasis of principa
Rupees Rupees repayment
9.1.1 Sindh Bank Limited Term 568,200 649,458 3 Months KIBOR plus 3% per  Balance payable in 7  semi-
Finance annum, payable quaricrly. annually instalments ending on 16
March 2022,
9.1,2  Puk Brunei Iavesiment© Term 445,312 3 Months KIBOR plus 3% per  Balance payable in 15 quartedy
Finance - annum, payable quarterly. instalments ending on 30 August

2021,

9.1.1  This facility is secured by way of first parri passu charge of Rs 1,267 million on present and future fixed assets of the Group and personal
puarantees of the directors of the Group. Further, Spansors / Directors have pledged 13,509,024 shares of the Group with Sindh Bank
Limited as security as referred to in note 6.8. This facility has heen obtaincd to meet long term working capital requirements of the Group.

9.1.2  This facility is sceured by way of firsi parri passu charge of Rz, 967 million an present and future fixed assets of the Group and personal
guarantees of the directors of the Group. This facility has been obtained (o meet long lerm working capital requirements and batance sheet
re-profiling of the Group.
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10 Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease

The future minimum lease paymenis and their present values, 1o which the Group is committed under various lease arrangements are as

follows:
10138 2017
Minimum  Finance Present Minimum Finance Present
lease charge value of lease charge value of
paymenis minimum payments minitnum
lease lease
payments paymenis
{Rupees in '000)
Not later than one year 28,885 581 23,074 20974 3,574 17,400
Later than one year and not Later
than five years 46,950 4,496 42,454 41,154 2,900 38,254

75,835 __ 10347 65528 62.128 6474 55,634
% —

The ahove reprasents finance Jeases eniered into with certain financial institution for plant and machinery and vehicles. Monthly payments of
leases carry mark-up rates a1 KIBOR plus 1.5% 10 5% per annum (2017: KIBOR plus | % to 5% per annum}). KIBOR is one, three and six
menths average ask side. At the year-cnd the applicable rates ranged between 8.43% 1o 14.07% (2017: 7.14% to 11%) per annum.

During the current year, the Group entered into lease arrangements of assets amounting 10 Rs. 38.5 million. These obligations are payable in
monthly instalments of Rs. 0.13 million o Rs, 0.53 million and carry mark-up rate ot 6 month KIBOR plus 3% per annum.

The Group intends to acquire the assets at the end of the lease term through adjustment of lease security deposit. Taxes, repair and
maintenance and insurance costs are bome by the Group,

2018 2017
Note {Rupees in '000)
11 Employce reticement benelits

Classified under non-curvent fiabilitivs
Employee retirement benafits
. Pension fund . 5713
- Grawity fund - permanent employees 11.2 42,480 31,723
- Gratuity - Aeld s1aff 1.2 19,343 17,091

01,823 54,527
Classified nitder oR=citrrent gssefs
Employee resirement benefits - obligation
- Pension fund i1,2 9.960 -

11,1  Pension scheme is available w alt permanent whole-time employees in the executive and manager grades including the whole-time
working dircciors but excluding persons working as temporary, trainecs of apprentice employees. Minimum years of service for
qualifying Lo pension is 15 years. Employees are entitted to Pension on retirement al 57 years of age. Gratuily 1o the permanent
employees is payable on normal retirement at the age of 57 years, natural death, etc. and js payable only on the minimum completion
of 5 years of service with the Group, Gratuity is payable 10 ficld staff afler al least 5 years of service with the Group.

The details of employee retirement benelit based on actuarial valuations carried out by an independent actuary as at 31 December
2018 under the Projecied Unit Credit methed are given below.

The principal assumptions used in the actuarial valuation are as follows:

Pension Fund Gratwity
Permanent employces Ficld stalT (unfunded)
(funded)

2018 2017 2018 2017 2ms 2017

(%) (%) (%%) (%) (%) (%}
§) Discount rate per annum 1325 8.25 13.25 825 13.25 B.25
2} Expected per annum rate of increase in

future salaries f commission 11.25 6.25 11.25 625 H).25 5125

3 Expected rate of increase in pension Nil Nil
4) Monality rales SLIC SLIC SLIC SLIC SLIC SLIC

(2001-D5)-1  {2001-05) (2001-05)-F  (2001.05)-1  (2001-05)-1  (2001-05)-1

ALt
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13 Deferred income Note

Details of the movement in the balance

Balance as at 01 January
Gross balance of deferred income

Accumulated amortization
Unamortized balance of deferred income as on 01 January

Transactions during the vear

Sale and lease back arrangement 13.1
Grant for the asset recognized on business combination 3.2
Amortization for the year
- on sale and lease back arrangement 13.1
- on grant 13.2

Unamortized balance of deferred income

Curient portion of deferred income

- on sale and lease back arrangement 13.1
- on grant 13.2

Balance as at 31 December

Reconciliation:

Gross balance of deferred income

Accumulated amortization

Unamortized balance of deferred income

Details of the elosing balance

Unamortized balance of the excess of sale proceeds over the

2018 2017
(Rupees in "000)
32,580 18,627

(16,868) (14.416)
15,712 4,211
17,949 -

- 13,953
(5.236) (1,871)
(1,086) (581)
(6,322) (2,452)
27,339 15,712
(4,955) (1,871)
(2,170) (1.162)
(7,125) (3,033)
20,214 12,679
50,529 32,580

(23,190) (16,868)
27,339 15,712
16,137 2.340
11,202 13,372
27,339 15,712

carrying value of assets 13.1
Unamortized balance of grant 13.2
13.1 The Group has entered in sale and lease back arrangements of specific items of plant and machinery

13.2

m‘-\;&l—-\

resulting in a deferred income (representing excess of sale proceeds over the carrying amount of
respective assets) of Rs. 17.95 million recognized during the year. The deferred income will be
amortized and recognized in the statement of profit or loss over the lease term.

Grant in aid represents the amount received from the World Bank under a project to phase out the
Ozone Depleting Substances (ODS) by acquiring asset (production facility) which manufactures such
products which are free from such substances. This grant is classified as deferred income and is being
amortized over the useful life of such asset. Amortization for the year is based on 8.33% of the
balance in accordance with the depreciation charged on plant and machinery for which the grant was

received.
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2018 2017
Trade and other payables Nate (Rupees in "000)
Trade creditors 739,901 526,675
Bills payable 519,182 229 843
Accrued liabilitics 223,586 199,586
Advance from dealers 11,371 51,429
Security deposits from dealers 14.1 12,815 44.846
Retention from employecs 4.2 88,623 70,649
Provisions in respect ol warranty obligations 12,922 7,767
Sales tax and excise duty - net - 8510
Workers' profits participation fund 14.3 27,331 12,248
Workers' welfare fund 9,118 6,071
Advance from employees against vehicle 10,835 2,098
Income tax deducted at source f4.4 55,774 15,709
Payable to the provident fund 36 8,434 14,397
Others 14.3 69,725 1,109

1,789,617 1,190,937
14.1 The Group is in the process of transferring this amount to a separate bank account to comply with the

requirements of Companies Act, 2017.

14.2 This represents security deposits of employees held by the Group and carries interest at 5% per

annum, Arrangements are being made to deposit the balance in special bank account as required

under section 2017 of the Companies Act, 2017.

2018 2017

14.3 Workers' profits participation fund Note (Rupees in '000)
Balance as at 01 January 12,248 6,682
Add: Allocation for the year 30 27,331 9,947
Interest on WPPF accrued during the year 498 437
Acquisition through business combination - 2,301

40,077 19,367

Less: Payment made during the year (12,746) (Z115)
Balance as at 31 December 27,331 12,248

14.4 Amount of Rs. 27.38 million has been paid subsequent to year end.

14.5 Included in other liabilitics are provisions aggregating to Rs. 61.74 million (2017: Rs 61.74 million)

in respect of probable loss from pending litigation of the Holding Company against Income Tax,
Sales Tax and Custom Authorities (the authorities). The above provisions have been made as per the
management’s best estimate against various demands raised by the authorities that are being contested

by the Holding Company at various forums as explained in note 18,

2018 2017

Mark-up acerued on borrowings (Rupees in '000)
Mark-up based borrowings from banking companies
- Long term loans - secured 19,655 12,445
- Short term borrowings - secured 62,837 36,068
- Liabilities against asscts subject to finance lease - 447
Mark-up based borrowings from non-banking companies
- Long term loan from [inancial institution 5,101 -
- Short term borrowing rom financial institution - 17,653
- Loan from a private group - 975
Islamic mode of borrowings
- Short term borrowings - secured 9,745 6,178

97,338 73,766

(8L TTAACN
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2018 2017

Short term borrowings Note (Rupees in "000)

From banking companics - secured

Running finance under mark-up arrangements lo.1 1,529,866 868,507
Finance against trust receipt 16.3 1,032,528 837,277
Short term finances under Murahaba arrangement 16.4 397,892 306,101

From non banking companies

2,960,286 2,011,885

Short term finances from associated undertaking - wnsecired 16.6 35,000 -
Short term finances from a financial institution - secured 16.7 - 725,000
Loan from a Private Group - unsecured 16.8 - 12,031
35,000 737,031
2,995,286 2,748,916

The above financing facilities relates to the Holding Company,

16.1

16.2

16.3

16.4

Particulars of borrowings

Interest / mark-up based financing 2,597,394 2442815
Islamic mode of financing 397,892 306,101
2,995,286 2,748,916

Short term running finance

This represents utilized amount of short term running finance facilities under mark-up arrangements
availed from various commercial banks aggregating to Rs. 1,536 million (2017: Rs. 1,362 million).
These facilities are secured by way of equitable mortgage charge on owned shops, freehold land and
building on frechold land of the Group, charge over all current assets and fixed assets of the Group
and personal guarantees of the directors of the Group and carry mark-up ranging from 8.91% to
11.88% (2017: 7.65% to 9.15%) per annum, payable quarterly in arrears. These facilities are expiring
on various dates (Latest by March 2019 and maximum by September 2019).

Payment Against Trust Receipt

This represents Payment Against Trust Receipt (FATR) available from commercial banks aggregating
to Rs. 1,854 million (2017: 1,165 million). These facilities are secured against charge over all current
assets and fixed assets of the Group and personal guarantees of the directors of the Group and carry
mark-up rate ranging between 8.66% to 12.94% (2017: 8.65% to 10.16%). These borrowings are
repayable between 26 February 2019 to 29 June 2019,

Islamic mode of borrowings

This represents utilized amount of Murabaha / Istisna borrowings available from banks aggregating to
Rs. 417 million (2017: Rs. 352 million). These facilities are secured against charge over all current
assets and fixed assets of the Group and personal guarantees of the directors of the Group and carry
mark-up rates ranging from 7.66% to 12.41% per annum (2017: 7.29% to 10.16%). These borrowings
are repayable between 13 January 2019 to 28 November 2019,

% AT
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18

16.5

16.6

16.7

16.8

Unavailed credit Tacilities

"The facilities [or opening of letter of credits and guarantees as at 31 December 2018 amounted to Rs,
1,916 million of which remaining unutilized amount was Rs, 1,101 million.

Short term borrowings from associated undertaking

This represents an interest free loan obtained from Poseidon Synergies (Private) Limited, an
associated undertaking, for working capital requirement and is repayable on demand.

Short term borrowings from a financial institution

This represents short term finance facility from a Development Financial Institution up to a limit of’
Rs. 725 million (2017: Rs, 725 million), This carries interest at 6 months KIBOR plus 350 basis
points per annum, carrying mark-up rates ranging from 9.66% to 10.54%. The amount was repayable
by 30 August 2018. The outstanding balance of Rs. 475 million as on 30 August 2018 was converted
into a long term finance facility as referred to in note 9.1.

Loan from a Private Group

During the vear ended 31 December 2017, the Group received Rs. 80 million from a Private Group.
The principal amount of Rs, 68 million was paid off by the Group during the same year as per the
agreed repayment schedule and remaining amount was paid during the current year. The borrowing
carried fixed profit at 26.15% per annum payable on quarterly basis for each principal repayment.

2018 2017
Nowe (Rupees in '000)
Current portion of long term liabilities
Long term loans - secined 9 281,250 81,182
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease ] 23,074 17,400
Deferred income 13 7,125 3,033
311,449 101.615

Contingencies and commitments

18.1
18.1.1

Contingencies - Holding Company

‘The Holding Company has liled a Constitutional petition before the Honorable Sindh High Court at
Karachi, challenging the vires of Rule 58T of the Sales Tax Special Procedure Rules relating to 2%
extra sales tax on certain home appliances. This is based on the view that the said vires are not
applicable on the Holding Company. The case is pending before the Honorable Sindh High Court. An
interim order was received in favour of the Holding Company. The Holding Company is confident
that ne liability is expected to occur. Amount involved is Rs. 84.80 million as of 31 December 2018
against which no provision has been made as the Holding Company, based on the legal advisor's
advice, is conlident of a favorable decision.

During the financial year 2014, the Holding Company received a show cause notice from the Federal
Board of Revenue (FBR) in respect of short payment of 2% extra sales tax under the Sales Tax
Procedures Rules, 2007 as amended by SRO. 896(1)/2013 dated 04 October 2013 and deduction of
input tax more than the limit defined under section 8 read with chapter IV of Sales Tax Rules, 2006,

The tax authority in the said notice raised a demand of Rs. 19.91 million and Rs. 11.15 million

respectively for the period from 01 January 2014 to 30 September 2014, The Holding Company after
consultation with its tax advisors has replied and submitted explanation with the tax authorities along
with revised workings for the apportionment of input tax which in the case of the Holding Company
for the above period was Rs. 0.52 million (regarding the 2% extra sales tax matter, please refer the
above paragraph). Since then, no further action has been initiated by the tax authoritics.



The Holding Company had earlier received u sales tax recovery order from the sales tax authorities
amounting to Rs, 195.63 million, for the financial year ended 31 December 2010 against which the
Holding Company had filed an appeal with the Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A).
CIR-A had deleted one item while the remaining matters were set aside. Moreover, the management,
based on consultation with its tax advisor, is of the view that matter would be decided in favour of the
Helding Company. However, CIR has filed an appeal against Holding Company on the matters of
SRO 647/2007 regarding input tax adjustments against 90% output tax and payment of sales tax on
instalment sales at the time of receipt of instalment instead at the time when instalment sales are
actually being made for which no hearing has yet taken place, Amount involved is Rs. 171.71 million.
However, as mentioned above no potential liability is expected to oceur.

18.1.2  Income tax assessments of the Holding Company have been finalized up to and including the tax year
2007, The Holding Company had applied for Income tax refund for the tax ycars from 2006 to 2011,
Income tax refund orders were earlier determined for the tax years 2009, 2010 and 2011. Income tax
refund was released for the tax year 2009. However, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue
(ACIR) amended the deemed assessed orders under section 122 (5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance,
2001 for the tax years from 2009 to 2012 and raised additional income tax demand of Rs, 19.98
million. However, the Holding Company had filed an application for the rectification of orders afier
which the net tax additional demand was reduced to Rs. 2.02 million (after the adjustment of the
refund of related years) under section 221 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Appeals have been
filed to Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A) against these orders.

Holding Company has received appellate orders for the tax years from 2009 to 2012, dated 29 June
2015, where the CIR-A has set aside certain issues for reassessment, deleted certain items and
maintained certain disallowances. The financial impact of the items set aside for reassessment and
continued disallowances amount to Rs. 43.72 million. Appeal has been filed with Appellate Tribunal
Inland Revenue (ATIR) against these issues. The Holding Company based on the merits of matters is
of the view that ultimate decisions are expected in its favour. However, adequate provision is held in
the consolidated financial statements in respect of the above balance.

18.1.3 The Finance Act, 2017 introduced a tax under section 5A of the Income Tax ordinance, 2001 on every
pubic company other than a scheduled bank or Modarba, that derives profit for the tax year and does
not distribute at least 40% of the after tax profit within six months of the end of said tax year through
cash or bonus issue. Under the earlier section tax was not mandatorily leviable in case the Company's
reserves were not in excess of the paid up capital (which was the case with the Company as it had
accumulated losses). Provision for the above referred tax amounting to Rs. 9.35 million has not been
paid as the Holding Company's management is of the view that the amendment was made after the
closure of Holding Company's financial year ended 31 December 2016 and for certain other legal
reasons. The Holding Company has filed a Constitutional petition before the Honorable Sindh High
Court at Karachi challenging the vires of Section 3A of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and a stay
order has been granted against any coercive action against the Holding Company under the newly
inserted Section SA.

Former - Cool Industries (Private) Limited (CIPL)

18.1.4 The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR), via order dated 30 April 2014, under section
161(1) and 205(3) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the tax year 2014 raised a tax demand of
Rs, 0.83 million for non deduction of advance income tax for the period from 01 November 2013 to
30 April 2014 under section 236(G) and 236(H) of the aforesaid Ordinance. CIPL filed an appeal
before the Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A) which was decided in against the
Holding Company. The Holding Company filed an appeal against the order of CIR-A in Appellate
Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR), which is pending adjudication. However, adequate provision is held
in the consolidated financial statements in respect of the above balance.

(12| PIPSARN



18.1.5

18.1.6

18.1.7

18.1.8

18.1.9

18.1.10

18.1.11

During the financial year 20135, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR), vide order
dated 30 April 2015, under section 122(5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the tax year 2010,
raised an amended demand of Rs. 7.83 million after disallowing certain expenses amounting to Rs,
29.15 million. CIPL filed an appeal for the rectification of order before Commissioner Inland
Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A) who vide its order dated 30 December 2015 deleted certain items
amounting to Rs. 19.94 million. ACIR has filed an appeal before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue
(ATIR) against the order of CIR-A which is pending adjudication. However, adequate provision is
held in the consolidated financial statements in respect of the above balance.

During the financial year 2014, the Holding Company received a notice by Commissioner [nland
Revenue - Zone | for selection of audit under section 214C for the tax year 2012. The Holding
Company filed an appeal against the said notice before honorable Lahore High Court which was
decided against the Holding Company and audit proceedings were initiated. The Deputy
Commissioner [nland Revenue issued an amended assessment order under section 122(1) and 122(5)
through which certain additions were made and demand order was raised amounting to Rs. 48.10
million. Being aggrieved, the Holding Company has filed an appeal before Commissioner Inland
Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A) against the above order which is pending adjudication.

During the year. the Holding Company received a show cause notice issued by Deputy Commissioner
Inland Revenue under section 161 for the tax year 2017 on non deduction of withholding tax
amounting to Rs. 6.03 million on payments against purchase of plant and machinery, packing material
and other miscellaneous payments. The Holding Company filed an appeal before Commissioner
Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A) where the case was remanded back to the Department. Being
agerieved, the Holding Company filed an appeal before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR)
which is pending adjudication.

The Taxation Officer, after conducting audit under section 177 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001
(the Ordinance) for the tax year 2014, passed an amended assessment order under section 122 of the
Ordinance raising tax demands of Rs. 25.29 million during the year alleging that the Holding
Company suppressed its sales and adjusted inadmissible expenses. The Holding Company is in
process of filing appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A).

Former - Link Wel (Private) Limited (LWPL)

During the financial year 2016, the Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue raised an order under
section 161/205 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for non-deduction of tax amounting Rs. 6.45
million and Rs. 3.76 million for tax years 2009 and 2010 respectively. CIPL filed an appeal before the
Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A) which was decided against the Holding Company.
The Holding Company filed an appeal against the order of CIR-A in Appellate Tribunal Inland
Revenue (ATIR), which is pending for adjudication. However, adequate provision is held in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of the above balance.

During the financial year 2017, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) amended the
deemed assessed return vide its order dated 19 June 2017 under section 122(5A) of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 for the tax year 2011, The ACIR disallowed certain expenses amounting to Rs. 9.58
million and raised the additional income tax demand of Rs. 1.02 million. LWPL filed an appeal
before the Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A) which is pending for adjudication.
However, adequate provision is held in the consolidated financial statements in respect of the above

During the financial year 2014, the Assistant Commissioner Inland Revenue imposed penalty vide
order dated 27 April 2014 under section 182(1) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 amounting Rs.
0.91 million for the tax year 2013 for the late filling of income tax return under section 114 of the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. LWPL filed an appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals
(CIR-A) against the above order. The CIR-A decided the matter against LWPL vide order dated 25
March 2014. LWPL filed an appeal before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) against the
order of CIR-A which is pending adjudication. However, adequate provision is held in the
consolidated [Tnancial statements in respect of the above balance.



18.1.12 During the financial year 2017, Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) issued an amended
assessment order under section 161/205 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and certain additions
were made due to non-deduction of withholding tax amounting Rs 122.54 million for tax year 2015.
The Holding Company filed an appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A)
against the order where the Holding Company was granted stay of tax demand. The CIR-A passed an
order in which demand against purchases and discounts have been deleted and amended demand of
Rs. 33.85 million has been raised. LWPL filed an appeal before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue
(ATIR) against the order which is pending adjudication. However, adequate provision is held in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of the above balance.

18.1.13 During the year, the Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) issued an amended assessment
order under section 122(1) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 raising a tax demand of Rs, 30.41
million for the tax year 2015, Being aggrieved, the Ilolding Company filed an appeal before
Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A) against the order. The CIR-A, via order dated 27
July 2018, directed DCIR to apply minimum tax under section 113 at the rate of 0.2% instead of 1%
and remanded back the case to DCIR. LWPL filed an appeal before Appellate Tribunal Inland
Revenue (ATIR) against the order which is pending adjudication.

18.1.14 During the year, the Holding Company received three show cause notices issued by Additional
Collector Customs for payment of Rs 7.33 million and Rs. 6.18 million against Goods Declaration
No. LAPR-EB-20087-25-05-2018 and Goods Declaration No. LAPR-EB-22231-27-06-2018
respectively alleging short payment due to misclassification of imported glass for refrigerator doors
outer part. The Holding Company is in process of making suitable response against the said notices.

18.1.15 During the year, the Holding Company received a show cause notice issued by Collector of Customs
for payment of Rs. 9.42 million alleging that the Holding Company cleared consignment of
Polymethylene Isocynate by misinterpreting SRO 659/2007 dated 30 June 2007. The Holding
Company is in process of making suitable response against the said notice.

Based on the opinion of the legal and tax advisors handling the above litigations, the management believes that
the Holding Company has strong legal grounds against each case and that no financial liability is expected to
accrue. Accordingly, no provision (in addition to already held in respect of certain cases of former CIPL and
former LWPL as explained above) has been made in these consolidated financial statements.

18.2 Commitments - [olding Company

18.2.1 Commitments. for the import of stock in trade, outstanding at year end were for Rs. 247.88 million
(2017: Rs. 516.75 million).

18.2.2 Commitments. for capital expenditure, against irrevocable letters of credit outstanding at year end
were for Rs. 14.33 million (2017: Rs. Nil).

18.2.3  Commitments in respect of ljarah rentals payable in future period as at 31 December 2018 amounted
to Rs. 0.76 million (2017: Rs. 2.38 million) for vehicles and plant and machinery.

2018 2017
(Rupees in '000)

Not later than one year 764 1,447
Later than one vear and not later than five years - 931
764 2,378

(& STPAN
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19.1.1 Had there been no revaluation of the frechold land and buildings thereon, the net book value as of 31
December 2018 would have been as follows:

2018 2017
(Rupees in '000)

Land 2,364,500 2,364,500
Buildings 507,357 445,511
2,871,857 2.810.011

19.1.2 The latest revaluation was carried on 31 December 2017 by Asif Associates (Private) Limited. As per the
revaluation report, forced sale value of frechold land, buildings on leasehold land and buildings on free hold
land was Rs. 2.128.10 million, Rs. 156.20 million and Rs. 287.70 million respectively.

19.1.3  Particulars of immovable property (i.e. land and building) in the name of Holding Company are as follows:

Location Usage of immovable property Total area Covered area
(Kanals) (Square Feet)

9-K.M, Hanjarwal. Mulian Road. Head Office & manufacturing 61.90 340,134

Lahore. facility

Dina Nath, Mouza Rakh Serai  Manufacturing facility 8.45 18,069

Cheenba, Tehsil Pattoki, District

Kasur.

19.1.4 Depreciation for the year has been allocated as follows: 2018 2017
Note (Rupees in '000)

Cost of sales 27.1 108,080 70,283

Marketing, selling and distribution costs 28 47,217 30,681

Administrative expenses 29 38,532 15,850
193,829 136,814

19.1.5 During the year, fire at production facility damaged certain items of property, plant and equipment with
carrving value of Rs. 249,78 million. The Company has received claim against such loss from its insurance
provider in accordance with relevant insurance policies as referred to in note 30.1

2018 2017
(Rupees in '"000)
19.2  Capital work-in-progress

Balance as at 01 January 86,363 72,148
Additions during the year 128,853 72,762
Acquisition through business combination - 86,501
Transfers to operating fixed assets (181,709) (145,108)
Balance as at 31 December 33,507 $6,363

Breakup of capital work in progress is as follows:

- Building 3,770 -

- Plant and machinery 18,400 85,364

- Electric installation 1,155 -

- Advance against purchase of land / vehicle 10,182 999
33,507 86,363

~
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Disposal of operating fixed assels

Particolars of Particulars of Helationship Recv:le:{l Nel book Nct sale Gain / {loss) on Mode of
useets purchaser with the Group ansount value proceeds disposal dispasal
{Rupees in 000y
Building Jubiles Insurance Insurance provider 61,335 60,016
~ Plant anit machinery Jubilee Insurancg Insurance provider 190,845 172,597 242939 (6,838)( | Insurance claim
1rnity i cquipmen Jubilee Insurance Insurance provider 13,513 12,164
265,913 249,777 42934 6,R38)
12 chine,
Phosphale Tank Zahash Third party sale 1,020 874 152 (722)]] Negotialion
‘Water Rising Tank Zohaih -do- 428 315 152 (163) -do-
35 Tank Zahait: -do- 1,156 1,003 152 (B51) <o -
Paint Shap Oven Zahait -do - 1,481 1,310 187 {1,123) -do-
Heat Exchanpe System For Oven  Zohaib -do- 3.609 2,375 150 (2.125) -do-
Power Tester Zohaily -do - 9 75 3 {69) «do.
Hydrolic Press Assyline Zohaib -do- 124 363 55 (308) -de-
Television Machinery Zohaily -do - 15,466 3,387 397 (2.991) -do-
Green Gas Plant Zobaib - do - 1,772 - 46 46 -do-
Notehing Machine Zohaib ~da - 10,696 998 275 1723) ~do -
Waier Tank Zohaib -do- 440 215 11 (204) - do -
itu h i 31}
Glass Partition Zohaib -do- T | | 66 | [ Gyl -do-
Vehiclps
Japuae Car Salnan Mahboob Thicd parly sale 2,000 1,467 3.800 2,333 Negotiation
Tayata Corolla Yasin Amin Sundal -do- 1,000 783 1,300 517 «do~
Henda City Yasin Amin Sundal =do - 1,000 783 976 193 -do-
Toyata Corolla GLi Yasin Amin Sundal =do- 800 627 873 246 -do-
Suzuki Cullus Yagsin Amin Sundal -do - 350 74 407 133 -do-
Suzuki Mehran Yasin Amin Sundal -do- 350 271 267 N «do-
Suzuki Alto Yasin Amin Sundal «do - 350 274 313 39 ~de-
Suzuki Alta Yasin Amin Sundal -do- 350 M kel ] &7 -do-
Suzuki Alta Yasin Amin Sundz! = de - 350 274 308 34 -do-
Suzuki Alta Yasin Ainin Sundal ¢lo - 250 196 234 a0 sdo.
Honda CG 125 Muhaimad 1Rikbar -do- 40 30 40 it -do-
Honda CD 70 Muhammad Zaman -do- 20 3 19 4 -do-
Honda CO Muhammad Zaman «do - 20 13 19 4 -do-
Yamaha Mubammnzd Zaman -do- 18 14 19 5 -do-
Henda CD 70 Muhammad Zaman o - 5 n 13 2 ~do-
Henda CD 70 Mubammad Zaman -da- 15 11 13 2 -do-
Honda CD 70 Muhammad Zaman -do- 15 11 13 2 -do-
Honda CD 70 Muhkannad Zaman - do - 15 11 13 2 «do-
Honda CD 70 Muhammad Zaman -do- 15 1n 13 2 - da -
Pak Herp 70 Muhaimad Zzman -do- 13 1 14 3 < ¢la -
Pak Hero 70 Muhaiwmad Zaman = do - 15 11 14 3 «do-
Honda CD 70 Muhammad Zaman - do - 10 8 ] 1 «do -
Honda CO 70 Muhanmad Zaman -do- 10 g 9 1 -do-
Honda CD 70 Muhammad Zainan - do - 10 g 9 1 -do-
Honda CD 70 Mubammad Zaman <do- 8 -] 7 1 -da-
Pak Hero 70 Muhaimmad Nasir -do- 5 4 7 3 -do-
Siar DS 70 Mutiaiminad Nasit -do- 5 4 7 3 -do-
SiarDS 0 Muhanunad Nasir -do- H L 7 3 -do-
Honda CD 70 Muhargnad Zaman «da- 5 4 5 | ~do -
Pak Hero 70 Muhanimad Zarman ~do- H 4 5 1 -do -
Pak Hero 70 Muhaninad Zaman «do- ] 4 5 ] -do -
Pak Hera 70 Muhananad Zaman -do. 5 & b3 i -de -
Sohrab 70 Muhannnad Nasir -do - 3 2 T 5 « o+
Yarnaha 70 Muhannnad Zaman -do- 3 2 3 1 - de -
Schrab 70 Arshad Ali -do - 3 2 51 49 -do-
Suzuki Cultus Massoor Ahmed -do - n2 356 400 44 -do-
Suzuki Swifl DLX EFU General knsurance Insurance previder 1,463 1,341 1,300 {41) -de-
Compuler
Dekstops, lapiops aid printers Ralia Computers Third party sale [ 1302 |[ - | 25| 25 [ MNegotiation |
2018 314,782 267!927 25;540 { II!JSS!
017 9% 4491 5120 629




2018 2007

Nore (Rupees in '000)

20 Intangible assets and goodwill (Revised)
Software 36,678 18,716
Goodwill 1,070,206 1.070.206
Brand value 1,582,147 1,582,147
Customer relationships (subsidiary company) 276,659 307,393

20.1 2,965,690 2,978,462
20.1  Reconciliation of carrving amounts
Customer
Deseription Note Software Goodwill  Brand value mlm"’,nfl"ps Total
(subsidiary
company)
(Rupees in "000)
(Revised) fRevised) (Revised)
Cost
Balance at 01 January 2017 49,761 = - - 49,761
Acquisition through
business combination - provisional 20,2 - 2,975,122 - - 2,975,122
Balance at 31 December 2017 49,761 2,975,122 - - 3.024,883
Allocation of intangible assels 0.2 - (1,904.916) 1,582,147 322,769 -
Transfer to investment in subsidiary - + - - -
Balance as at 31 December 2017 49,761 1.070.2006 1.582,147 322,769 3,024,883
Additions during the year 28,426 - B - 28.426
Balance at 31 December 2018 78,187 1.070,206 1,582,147 322,769 3,053,309
Accumulated amartisation and
impairment losses
Balance at 01 January 2017 (27.416) - - - (27.416)
Amortisation for the year (3,629) - - (15,376) (19,005)
Balance at 31 December 2017 (31.045) - - (15.376) (46.421)
Amortisation for the vear (10.464) - - (30,734) (41,198)
Balance at 31 December 2018 (41,509) - - (46,110) (87,619)
Carrying amounts:
At 31 December 2017 18,716 1,070,206 1,582,147 307,393 2978 462
At 31 December 2018 36,678 1,070,206 1,582,147 276,659 2,965,690
Rates of amortization 5-10 years 10.5 vears

20.2

K in

Goodwill and other intangible assets acquired in business combination

Effective 01 July 2017, Singer Pakistan Limited, now Waves Singer Pakistan Limited (The Holding Company),
completed a 'Scheme of Arrangement' as approved by the Honourable Sindh High Court through its Order dated 22 May
2018 for the amalgamation of Cool Industries (Private) Limited [CIPL] and Link Wel (Private) Limited [LWPL] with
and into the Company and demerger of retail business from the Company and amalgamate the same into the subsidiary.
This represents excess of the amount paid over the fair value of the net assets of CIPL and LWPL on its acquisition as of
the start of business on 01 July 2017. International Financial Reporting Standard 3, (IFRS 3) “Business Combinations™,
requires that all identified assets and liabilities acquired in a business combination should be carried at fair values in the
acquirer's statement of financial position and any intangible assets acquired in the business combination are required to
be separately recognised and carried at fair values. IFRS 3 allows the acquirer a maximum period of one year from the
date of acquisition to finalise the determination of the fair values of the assets and liabilities and to determine the value
of any intangible asscts separately identified. The fair valuation exercise of the recorded tangible assets and liabilities
was completed at the time of acquisition resulting in recognition of provisional goodwill amounting to Rs, 2,975.12
million as the determination of separately identifiable intangible assets was in progress at as 31 December 2017,



During the period. the Holding Company engaged an independent valuer for determination of separately identifiable
intangible assets. Bascd on the valuation report, provisional goodwill has been allocated to "Goodwill' amounting to
Rs.1,070.21 million, 'Brand value' amounting to Rs. 1,582.15 million and 'Customers relations’ (Subsidiary company)
amounting to Rs. 322,77 million inline with the requirements of International Accounting Standard 38, (IAS-38)
'Intangible Assets’. As at 30 June 2017, the Company, inline with the requirements of 1FRS 3 relating to change in
recognition of assets and liabilities within measurement period, has retrospeetively adjusted the change in provisional
amount recognized at the acquisition date to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed
as of the acquisition date. Accordingly. comparative information has been revised due to recognition of additional
intangible assets as tabulated in note 20.1 above.

Following key assumption has been used for valuation of ‘Brand value' and 'Customer relations’. whercas 'Goodwill has
been taken as differential amount:

Brand value:

For 'Brand value, 'Royalty rate method' has been used with royalty rate of 2.5%, compound annual growth rate for
revenue of 22% from financial year 2017 to 2022, terminal growth rate for revenue of 3% from financial year 2023 to
2037. discount ratc of 17.66% with an infinite useful life.

Customer relationships (Subsidiary company):

For 'Customer relationships, 'Multi period excess earning method' has been used with iteration rate of 2.5%. compound
204

annual growth rate for revenue of 22% from financial year 2017 10 2022, terminal growth rate for revenue of 3% from
financial year 2023 to 2027, discount rate of 17.66% with useful life ol 10.5 years.

Impairment testing

The recoverable amount of goodwill including intangible assets (brand value and customer relationships) acquired
through a business combination has been tested for impairment as at 31 December 2018, by allocating the amount of
goodwill and intangible assets to respective assets on which it arose, based on value in use in accordance with IAS 36
"Impairment of Assets”. The recoverable amount was calculated on the basis of five years business plan approved by the
Board of Dircctors which includes a comprehensive analysis of existing operational deployments of the Group along
with strategic business plans and business growth, The value in use caleulations are based on cash flow projections
derived from aforesaid business plan, which have been extrapolated beyond five years. by using a sieady 3.00% growth
rate. The cash flows are discounted using a discount rate of 14.99% (goodwill) and 18.45% (intangibles) for use in
calculation of value in use which is sensitive to discount rate and local inflation rates. Based on this calculation no
impairment is required to be accounted for against the carrying amount of goodwill and other intangible assets.

2018 2017

20.3  Amortisation for the ycar has been allocated as follows: Note (Rupees in '000)
(Revised)
Marketing, selling and distribution costs 28 38,276 18,642
Administrative expenses 29 1,909 363
40,185 19,005

21 Long term deposits
Depasits

-shaps and warchouses = 16,166
- leases 2,752 9,572
- other long term deposits 20.885 1,427
23,637 27.165

kebuuge




22 Stock-in-trade

Ravw and packing maierials
- in slores (in hand)
- in third party premises
- in bonded warchouse
- In transil

Work in process

Finished gouds
- own manufactured
- purchased for resale

Provision for slow moving and damaged stock

2018 2017
Nove (Rupees in "000)
637,537 494,510
- 7.677
22,1 341,054 477.664
639,419 229,841
1,618,010 1,209,692
164,841 161,946
1,076,713 1,058,503
262,005 192.055
1,338,718 1,250,560
222 (29,868) (29,868)
3,091,701 2.392,330

22.1 Stock amounting 1o Rs. 65.63 million (2017: Rs. 426.42) million was cleared subsequent to the year end.

222 Movementin provision for slow moving and damaged stock

Balance as at 01 January
Provision for the year
Balance as at 31 December

29,868 28.078
- 1.790
29,868 29,868

22,3 During the vear, firc at production facility damaged certain items of stock in trade with carrying value of Rs. 186.10
million. The Group has received claim against such loss from its insurance provider in accordance with relevant

insurance policies as referred to in note 30,1

23 Trade debts
23.1  Retail network - unsceured

Cansidered good

Hire purchase
- Retail
- Institutional (employ ces of the corporate entitics)

Unearned carrying charges
Considered doubtful
Provision [or doubtiul debts
23.2 Wholesale (dealers) - unsecured
Considered good
Considered doubtful
Provision for doubtful debts
233 Movement in provision for doubtful debts
Balance as at 01 January

Provision for the year
Balance as at 31 December

'|dM Lo~

2018 2017
Note (Rupees in "000)
789,756 522630
124,007 133,647
913,763 656,277
(33,638) (73.316)
860,125 582,961
240,544 240,544
1,100,669 823,505
(240,544) (240.544)
860,125 582,961
2,386,358 1,573,830
33,821 23433
2,420,179 1,597,263
(33,821) (23.433)
233 2,386,358 1,573,830
263,977 177,580
10.388 86.397
274.365 263,977




2018 2017
(Rupees in '000)
24 Advances, deposits, prepayments and other reeeivables

Advances - considered good

- Employees and executives 24.1 6,527 7,700
- Suppliers 5,054 32,609
- Expense to store 5,977 -
- Against letter of credit 4,107 5.565
21,665 45,874
Deposits
- Shops and leases 24,312 6,476
- Customs 5,761 23,197
- Utilities - 18,749
- Others 621 900
30,694 49,322
Prepayments 9,711 7,378
Other receivables
- Claims 24.2 12,201 15,893
- Sales tax refundable 87,060 -
99,261 15,893
Provision for doubtful other receivables 24.3 (11,572) (11,572)
244 149,759 106,895

24.1 At 31 December 2018, the advances due from executives amounted to Rs. 0.12 million (2017;

24.2 This represents claims receivable from insurance companies, suppliers and product claims amounting

2018 2017
(Rupees in '000)
24.3 Movement in provision for doubtful
other receivables

Ralance as at (1 January 11,572 9,407
Provision for the year - 2,165
Balance as at 31 December 11,572 11,572

24.4 All the above balances are interest free and unsecured.

(2 TSI



(5]
w

27

2018

2017

Note (Rupees in '000)
Cash and bank balances
Balances with banks
- in current accounts 25.1 47,808 198,080
- in profit and loss sharing account 252 40,349 407
88,157 198,487
Cash in hand 253 17,090 93,160
105,247 291,647
25.1 These include bank account of Rs. 0.3 1 million (2017: Rs. 1.93) maintained under Shariah compliant

25.2 Rate of return on saving account ranges from 3.5% to 5% (2017: 3%) per annum.

25.3 This includes cash in transit of Rs. 9.23 million (2017: Rs. 84.69 million) representing the balance

Sales - net

Sales

- local

- export
Sales return

Sales tax
Trade discount

Cost of sales

Opening stock - finished goods
- own manufactured
- purchased for resale

Purchases
Acquisition through business combination
Cost of goods manufactured

Closing stock - finished goods
- own manufactured
- purchased for resale

Less: Export Rebate

(@ O

Noie

(%)
1

2018

2017

(Rupees in '000)

10,284,933 4,790,762
14,186 2419
(30,209) (20,445)
10,268,910 4,772,736
(972,008) (480,559)
(780,886) (606,554)
(1,752,894) (1,087,113)
8,516,016 3,685,623
1,058,503 285,313
192,055 52,324
1,250,560 337,637
1,425,517 486,553
- 540,379
4,784,505 2,474,827
7,460,582 3,839,396
(1,076,713) (1,058,505)
(262,004) (192,055)
(1,338,717) (1.250,560)
(54) (497)
6,121,811 2,588,339
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27.1

2711

Cost of goods manufactured

Raw and packing materials and stores consumed

Salaries, wages and other benefits
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Fuel and power

Insurance expense

Repairs and maintenunce

Printing and stationery

Provision against slow moving and damaged stock

Travelling and conveyance
Rent, rates and taxes
Communication
Entertainment

Work-in-process

Opening stock

Acquisition through business combination
Closing stock

Cost of goods manulactured

Note

2711
19.1.4

22.2

2018

2017

(Rupees in "000)

4,110,226 2,110,890
383,298 229,161
108,080 70,283

67,215 40,327
18,433 9,733
32,117 10,104
16,183 4,769
; 1,790
3,498 1,793
46,736 679
886 657
728 -

4,787,400 2,480,186

161,946 36,023

. 120,564
(164,841) (161,946)
(2,895) (5,359)
4,784,505 2,474,827

These include provision of Rs. 2.84 millien (2017: Rs. 0.76 million), Rs. 1.84 millien (2017: Rs. 0.50
million) and Rs. 9.51 million (2017: Rs. 2.57 million) in respect of gratuity, pension and provident

funds respectively.

Marketing, selling and distribution costs

Salaries and benefits

Salaries and benefits - sales staff

Rent, rates and taxes

Publicity and sales promotion

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Warranty obligations

Freight charges

Utilities

Printing and stationery
Travelling and conveyance
Amortization ol intangible assets
Communication

Repair and maintenance
Training and sundries

Insurance expense

Others

28.1

07 (T

Note

28.4
281

19.1.4
28.1

20.3

2018 2007
{Rupces in '0060)

{Revised)
91,398 189,828
355,672 145,806
156,396 113,935
191,442 86,526
4717 50,681
67,949 19,975
116,299 39,720
30,128 19,269
10,949 9,832
37,374 18,562
38,276 18,642
9,824 8,906
1,145 2,002
2,994 2,821
2,547 1,461

1,934 -
1,161,544 727,966

These include provision of Rs. 5.23 million (2017: Rs. 2.90 million), Rs. [.55 million (2017: Rs. 1.42
million) and Rs. 4.47 million (2017: Rs. 5.82 million) in respect of gratuity, pension and provident

funds respectively.




2018 2017

29 Administrative expenses Note (Rupees in '000)
Salaries and benefits 29.1 214,385 118,101
Legal and professional charges 46,827 25,856
Auditors' remuneration 202 4,590 3.956
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 19.1.4 38,532 15,850
Communication 10,464 6,681
Travelling and conveyance 14,012 5,211
Repair and maintenance 5,987 6,199
Utilities 8,819 4,553
Printing and stationery 8,076 2,987
Rent, rates and taxes 7,441 1,880
Insurance expense 9,711 2,843
Entertainment expense 3,147 1,227
Fees and subscription 900 668
Amortization of intangible assets 203 1,909 363
Charity and donations 29.3 470 56
Others 2,642 -

377,918 196,431

29.1  These include provision of Rs. 2.40 million (2017: Rs. 0.56 million), Rs. 1.55 million (2017: Rs. 0.36
million) and Rs. 4.28 million (2017: Rs. 1.93 million) in respect of gratuity, pension and provident funds

respectively.
2018 2017
29.2 Auditors' remuneration (Rupees in '000)
Audit fee 2,500 2,090
Audit fee for the financial statements of subsidiary companies 800 500
Audit fee for the six months period ended 30 June 2017 - 206
Fee for the review of interim fnancial information 385 135
Fee for the review of code of corporate governance and
other certifications/ reports under agreed upon procedures 320 440
Out of pocket expenses 585 383
4,590 3,956

29.3  None of the donations were made to an entity in which any director or his / her spouse had an interest.

2018 2017
Note (Rupees in '000)
30 Other expenses
Provision for doubtful debts and others assets - net 233 24.3 10.388 88,562
Workers' profits participation fund (WPPF) 143 27,331 9,947
Exchange loss - net 44,459 13,632
Research and development expenditure 3,637 1,591
ljarah rentals 1,447 1,447
Workers' welfare fund 0,118 3,581
Lass on property, plant and equipment and equipment .
- due to fire il 6,838 -
- due to disposal 5,550 -
108,768 118,760

ke



30.1  On 11 May 2018, a fire broke out at production facility located in Lahore [former *Cool Industries (Private)
Limited']. The fire started at the dispatch area and caused damage to the finished goods under dispatch,
production facility (i.c. Plant and machinery) along with its related building area and work-in-process which
were adequately insured. Although, the production of refrigerators and deep freczers was halted for a month,
however, sufficient finished goods inventory of these products was available at off-site warehouses for
uninterrupted supplies to the market. The production facilities of air-conditioners, microwave ovens and
washing machines remained un-affected and continued un-interruptedly.

The Holding Company filed insurance claim in respect of damaged assets and a surveyor was appointed by
the insurance company, who completed his survey and assessed the insurance claim at Rs. 432.06 million
including salvage value of Rs. 12,06 million scrap retained by the Company. As at 31 December 2018, the
Holding has received complete insurance claim including salvage recovery of Rs. 12,06 million. Detail of
insurance claim is as follows:
Note (Rupees in '000)
Carrying value of assets written off due to fire
Property, plant and equipment
Building 60,010
Plant and machinery 177,597
Furniture and equipment 12,164
193 249,777
Stock in trade
Finished goods 12,804
Raw material 94,535
Work in process 78,759
186,098
Repair and maintenunce adjustment 3,029
Carrying value of assets written off due to fire 438,904
Insurance claim reccived 420,000
Scrap value 12,0606
Net loss on insurance claim of assets written off due to fire 6,838
2018 2017
31 Other income Note (Rupees in '000)

Income from financial assets

Profit on a profit and loss sharing bank balance 46 &)

fucome from non-fingucial instrunenty

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment and

investment property - net - 456,951

Unrealized gain on fair value measurement of investment property - 30.800

Rental income - 3,150

Service income and others 6,379 3.818

Liabilities no longer payable written back 21,134 =

Scrap sales 3,408 1,084

Amortization of deferred income 13 6,322 2,452

Others 70 x

37,313 498,255
37,359 498,264

HPHL A
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2018 2017

Finance costs Note (Rupees in "000)
Islamiz mode of finanucing
-~ Short term tinancing 25,420 25,127
Fnterest / markeup on imerest / markeup busci foans
- Long erm finance 83,865 43,498
~ Short term (inance 273,932 200,348
- Finance leasc 6,825 4,469
Interest on employee retention money 4,260 3410
Interest an workers' profits participation fund 498 437
Mark up acerued on balance payahle 1o the provident fund - 351
Bank charges 35,703 18,595
430503 296235
Taxation
Details of the lax charge for the year is as foilows:
Curramt year IR 107,452 54,541
I'rior year (5,647 20,313
Drefested 12 26,629 (31,473}
128,432 232381
33.1 Represents the tax charge under the iinal tax regime and normal tax regime based on consolidated taxable income as the Holding Company has
opted for Group taxation under scction 59AA of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001,
2018 2017
332 Tax charpe reconciliation {Rupees in "'000)
Numgerical reconeilliation bebween Ly expense and accounting profit:
Protit before tax S10,507 350,589
Tax al the applicable tax rate of 20%. (2017; 30%) 148,047 105,267
Tae effect of perinanent differences:
- In respect of differentsal under nornal 1ax and final 1ax regime 1,040 1,236
- Other permanent differences (136) (100,812)
Tax eredil {41,742) -
Change in 1ax rale {56,519) -
Pripr year lax charge 60,662 20,313
Super tax 11,493 -
Others 5,587 (2,623)
128,432 23,381
33.3  In prior years, the Holding Campany (for the reason of carry forward (ax losses) has not recorded provision for minimum 1ax under the Income
Tax Ordinance, 2001 {Ordinance) amounting 1o Rs. 38.88 million, Rg. 15,10 millien and Rs. 16.86 million in respect of year ended 31 December
2017, 31 December 2015 and 3t December 2014 1espectively as the management expects 10 adjust the same agains! its future tax liability under
the normal tax regime within the ume limil as specified for adjustments of mininum tax in the Ordinance. Similarly for the year ended 3t
Deeember 2316, provision for Aliemate Carporate Tax (ACT} {being higher than the minimum tax) amounting to Rs. 23.07 has also nat been
recorded on the same basis.
334 As per management's assessment, e provision for 1ax made in the consolidated financial statements s sufTicient, A comparison of last three
years' of income [ax provisions with tax assessment is presented befow:
Tax provision  Tax as per
a3 per financial  assessment /
statemenls relurn
Tax Yenrs {Ruopees in '000)
2016 2,629 18,063
2017 2,383 24,770
2018 A4,541 48,892
Earnings per share - basic and diluted

The caleulation of eamings per share (hasic and diluted) is based on camings atiributable 10 the owners of ordinary shares ef the Group.

No figure for diluted eamings per shiare has been presented as the Group has not issued any instruments carrying oplions which would have 2n impact on
carnings per share when excercised.

Group's earnings per share has been caleulated as follows:

2018 2017
{Restated)
Profit for the year - {Revised) (Rutprees in 000 382,075 312,132
Weighted average number of ordinary shawes Shures 163,134 163,134
Eamangs per share - basic and diluted Rupees 134 1.51

72 AN
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36 Provideat fund related disclosure

36.1  Waves Singer Pakistan Limited (formerly Singer Pakistan Limited)
36.1.1 The Hokling Company operules approved contributory provident fund for all the employees eligible under the scheme.
Details of the net assets and investments out of this fund based on the unaudited financial statements are as follows:
(Unaudited) {Unaudited)
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
Note (Rupees in "000)
Size of the fund - net assets (invesiments at faic value) (a) 39,993 49.833
Cosi of the invesiment made 24,933 48.494
Fair value ol the investment made (b) 36.1.2 37,928 49,564
{Percentage)
Percentage of the invesiment made (ol the size of funds) (b/a) 24.8% 09.5%
Above details are of Singer Pakistan Limited.
36.1.2  Break up of fair value of iny cstments is:
31 December 2018 31 December 2017
{Rs. in '000) %o (Rs. in '000) Y
Bank balances 13,739 36% 1246 7%
Pakistan Investiment Bonds 24,189 64% 35425 1%
Treasury Bills - 0% 10,893 22%
37,928 100% 49,564 100%
The management, based on the un-audited Minancial statements of the fund, is of the view that the invesiments out of
provident lunds have bean made in accordance with the provisions of Section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the
rules formulaled there under.
36.2 Former Cool Industries (Private) Limited
36.2.1 Above Company operated approved contributory provident fund for all the employees eligible under the scheme.
Details of the net assets and investments out of this fund based on the unaudited financial statements are as follows:
(Audited} {Audited)
30 June 3 Junc
2018 M7
Note (Rupees in "000)
Size of the [und - net assets (investments at fair valuc) (a) 203,174 176.209
Cost ol the investment made 76416 73,990
Fair value of the investment made (b} 36.2.2 105,944 102.826
(Percentage)
Pereemage of the investment made (ol the size of lunds) (b/a) 82.15% 065.40%
36.2.2 Break up of'the fair value of investments are as follows:
30 Junc 2018 30 June 2017
{Rs. in '000}) % {Rs. in '000) %
Bank halances 10,352 10% 8.3i7 8%
Term Depaosil Receipt - with a bank 29,800 28% 29,000 28%
Mutual Funds 56,792 54% 56,509 35%
Defense Saving Certificates 9,000 3% 9,000 9%
105,944 100% 102,826 100%

KU

The management, based on the un-audited financial statements of the fund, is of the view ihat the invesiments oul of
provident funds have been made in accordance with the provisions of Section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the
rules formulated there under.
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Plant capacity and actual praduction

2018 2017
Actual Actual
Capacity production Capacity production
(Units) (Units) (Units) (Units)
Particulars
Refrigerators 125,000 114,377 115,000 68,639
Deep Freezer 115,000 84,664 90,000 32,870
Microwave ovens 60,000 12,670 60,000 1,711
Air conditioners 60,000 5,558 60,000 0,012
Washing Machines 40,000 5,762 - =
Gas appliances (water heater and cooking range
excluding microwave ovens) 25,000 9,717 25,000 6,723
Televisions 22,500 - 22,500 -
Water dispenser 20,000 800 6,000 1,300

Capacity reflects units expected to be produced on the basis of normal production hours (one shift of 8 hours).
The under utilization of capacity is mainly attributed to the fact that production was affected during the months
from April 2019 to June 2019 due to fire as fully explained in note 30.1. Other than refrigerators and decp
freezers, the production / capacity utilization is according to market demand.

Factory employees Total employees
2018 2017 2018 2017
(Number of persons) (Number of persons)
Number of employees
Total number of employees as at 31 December 1,431 1.450 3,045 2,585
Average number of emplovees 1,387 1,306 3,136 2.672

Operating segments

As per [FRS 8, "Operating Segments", Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal
reporting used by the chiel operating decision-maker. The Board of Directors (BOD) through the Chief
Exccutive OfTicer of the Group has been identified as the chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating scgments,

The Group has determined the operating segments based on the reports reviewed by the BOD and Chief
Executive Officer, which are used to make strategic decisions.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the Group's entire product portfolio and considers the business to
have two operating segments. The Group's asset allocation decisions are based on an integrated investment
strategy. The Group's performance is evaluated on the basis of two operating segments. The internal reporting
provided to the Chief Exccutive Officer for the Group's assets, liabilities and performance is prepared on a
consistent basis with the measurement and recognition principles of approved accounting standards as applicable
in Pakistan. Contributions to the employee retirement benefits and accrual of liability and expense are made in
accordance with the terms of employee retirement benefit schemes and actuarial advice (note 11), as applicable.
Contributions to the provident fund are made in accordance with the service rules.



Segment profit profit / (loss) before tax is used to measure performance because management believes that this
information is the most relevant in evaluating the results of the respective segments relative to other entities that
operate in the same industries.

The Group's operating segments consists of business related to Singer Brand and Waves Brand.

2018
Singer Waves Total
-------------------- (Rupees in "000) —=-mmmsmmmmmmmaeee

Revenue 2,049,541 6,466,474 8,516,015
Segment profit before tax 43,908 466,599 510,507
Interest income - 16 46
Interest expense 90,203 304,597 394,800
Loss on disposal of property plant and

equipment and investment property 9,233 3,155 12,388
Depreciation and amortization 63,931 170,082 234,013
Scgment assels 4,627,375 10,086,164 14,713,539
Segment liabilitics 1,062,398 5,262,015 6,324,413

2017
Singer Waves Total
cemmmammmmmmnnnmnnan (RUpEES N '000) =--mmmmsmmemeeeeeee

Revenue 1,731,095 3,041,641 4,772,736
Seament profit before tax 348,875 2,014 350.889
Interest income 79,357 - 79,357
Interest expense 159.565 136,670 296,235
Gain on disposal of property plant and

equipment and investment property 456,384 567 456,951
Depreciation and amortization §1,048 59,395 140,443
Segment assels 2,954,508 10,263,958 13,218.466
Segment liabilities 1,291,507 3,744,940 5.036.447

41.1  Revenue from refrigerators and deep freezers represent 47% and 36% (2017: refrigerators and deep

el T

freezers represented 29% and 33% respectively) of the total revenue of the Group.

41.2 Sales represents local sales of Rs. §,502.85 million (2017: Rs. 3,6853.20 million) and export sales of Rs.
14,17 million (20 !7: Rs. 2.42 million),

41.3 Al non-current assets of the Group at 31 December 2018 are located in Pakistan.

[PFetedan



42 Financial instruments

The Group's Board of Direciors (“the Board") has overall responsibility for establishment and oversight of the Group's risk
maunagement framework. The Board has developed a risk policy that sets out fundamentals of risk management {ramcwork.
The Group has exposure Lo the folluwing risks from its use of financial instruments:

« Credit risk
- Liguidity risk
- Market risk

This note presents information about the Group’s exposure o cach of 1he above risks, the Group’s objectives, policies and
processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Group’s management of capital,

42.1

42.1.1

42.1.2

Credit risk

Credit risk is the rigk thal the counterparty to a linancial instrument will cause a financial loss for the Group by
failing 1o discharge an obligation,

Exposure te credit risk

Credit risk of the Group arises principally from trade debts, advances, deposits, other receivables and bank
balances. The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.

The Group's customers mainly comprise of individuals, corporate entities and the dealers.The managemeni has
established a credit policy under which each new customer is analysed individually for credit worthiness.
including whether they are an individual or legal cniity, geographic location, aging profile, and cxistence of
previous financial difficulties before the Group’s standard payment and delivery terms and condilions arc offered.
‘The Group's cvaluation includes consideration of linancial position of customers and obtains references, wherever
required.

The carrying amount of linancial asscts represents the maximum credit exposure, The maximum exposure (o
credit risk before any credil enhancements at the reporting date was:

Carrying amount
2018 2017
{Rupees in '000)

Seccurity deposits 48,570 33,290
Frade debts 3,246,483 2,156,791
Other receivables 629 4,321
Balances with banks 88,157 198,487

3,383,839 2,412,889

Concentration of eredit risk

Concentralion of credit risk ariscs when a number of counter parties arc engaged in similar business aclivities or
have similar economic Teatures that would cause their abilities 1o meet contraciual obligation 10 be similarly
effected by the changes in economie, pelitical or other conditions. Concentration of credit risk indicate the
relative scasitivity of the Group's performance for developments affecting a particular industry. Maximum
exposure ta eredit risk by type of counterparty is as follows:

Net reccivable
{net of provisions)
2018 2017
(Rupees in "000)

Trade debts

- Retail 860,125 582,961
- Wholesale 2,386,358 1,573,830
Security Deposits

- individuals 45,536 24,632
- leasing 3,034 9,909
- utilities - 18,749
Insurance company (claims) 12,201 15,893
Banks 88,157 198,487

3,395,411 2,424,461




42.1.2 Credit quality and impairment

Credit quality of financial assets is assessed by reference 10 external credit ratings, where available, or historical information abowt the
counteeparty delault rates. All counterpartivs, wilh the exception of customers, have external credit ratings determined by various credit
rating agencics and ather regulatory authoritics. Credit quality of customer is assessed by reference to historical default rates and present
apes.

42.1.3fe}  Counterpartics with external eredit ratings

These include banking companics and financial institutions, which are connterpartics to cash depaosits and security deposits. The bank
balances (including security deposits) are held with banks and financial institutions counterpartics, which are rated as follows:

Rating Short Long 2018 2007
RBanks Agency term term {Rupces in '000}
Al Baraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited PACRA Al A L] 149
Allicd Bank Limiwed PACRA Al+ AAA 5625 2,498
Askari Bank Linited PACRA Al+ AAT 2.969 2,677
Bank Alfalah Limited PACRA Al+ ANt 3611 3,256
Bank Islami Pakistan Limited PACRA Al At 22 22
Bank of Khyber PACRA Al A M4 -
Bank of Punjab PACRA Al+ AA 1,815 364
Dubai [slamic Bank Limited R-¥IS A-l At 165 33,959
Faysal Bank Limited JCR-VIS Al+ AA 1,328 2,672
I1ahib Bank Limited JCR-VIS A-1+ AAA 49452 120,322
Habib Metropolitan Bank PACRA Al+ AAT 288 235
1.5, Bank Limited PACRA Al+ AA- 4 -
MCB Bunk Limited PACRA Al+ AAA 9,981 4,047
Meezan Bank JCR-VIS Al+ Ad+ 294 -
Mational Baok Of Pakistan PACRA Al+ AAA 1921 9,580
Silk Bank Limited JCR-VIS Al+ AA 393 .
Soneri Bank Limited PACRA Al+ AA- 1,046 748
Standard Chantered Bank PACRA Al+ AAA 1,211 8.526
Uniled Bank Limited JCR-VIS Al+ AAA 7,766 9,423
88,157 198,487
Secrrity Deposits
Bank of Punjah PACRA A+ AA 282 357
First Habib Modaraba PACRA Al+ AA+ - 444
Orix Leasing (Pakistan} Limited PACRA Al+ AA+ - 3707
Sindh Leasing Company Limnited ICR-VIS At A-l 2,752 54H
3,034 9,909
91,191 208,196

2.1.3¢b}  Counterpartics without external credit ratings

These include customers which are counter partics 1o trade debts. The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each cuslomer / dealers, The Group establishes an allowance for impairment that represents iis estimate of
incurred tosses in respect of trade debis. The analysis of age of irade debs at the reporting date is as follows:

2018 2017
Gross Impatirment loss Gross Impaimient oss
{Rupees in "000) {Rupecs in '000)
Mot yel due 1.003.868 - 532,522 -
Past due 1 - 60 days 653,498 - 797,735 -
Past due 61 days - | year 1,192,686 - 740,512 -
Past due | - 2 years 396,431 - 86,022 -
Past due by more than 2 year 274,365 274,365 263,977 263,977
Tatal 3,520,848 274,365 2,420,768 263,977

At 31 December 2018, provision relates 10 numerous individual customers, dealers and corporale ¢ntities and it has been determined by
the management in accordance with the approved policy based on the ageing of the customer halanoes and historical bad debt siatistics.
Based on the past experience, considerstion of financial position, past track records and subsequent recoverics, the management belicves
that the unprovided amounts are recoverably. None of the other financial assets of the Group are past due.

None of the financial assets of the Group are secured or impaired except as thase mentioned in these consolidated Rnancial statements.

e~
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4.3

Market risk

Market risk is the risk thaw changes in market price, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices
will effeet the Group's income ar the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The Groug is exposed Lo currency
risk and interesi rate risk.

41.3.t  Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk 1o Lhe extent that there is a mismaich between the currencies in which sales

and purchascs are denominated and (he respective [unclional currency of the Group. The functional ¢urrency of the

Group is Pak Rupee. The currencies in which these transactions are primarily denominaled are Euros and US dollars.
42.3.}(a} Exposure to currency risk

The Company is mainly expesed to currency tisk on import of raw materials and merchandise denominated in US

dallars. The Company's exposure 1o foreign currency risk at the reporting date is as follows:

2018 2017 2018 2017
{Rupees in '000)

Trade and other payables - rade creditors {USD in "000) 2,180 TR0 303,207 86,128
Trade and other payables - trade creditors {Euro in '000) 14 23 2,227 3,042

Off balance sheet items

Owstanding Ietiers of credit (USD in "0D0Q) 1,782 - 247,882 -

42.3.2

Following signilicant exchange rates have been applied:

Average rate Reporting date Spot rate

18 2007 2018 2007
USD 10 PKR i21.62 105.43 139.10 110.42
EUR 10 PKR 143.35 124.68 159.10 132.25

Sensitivity analysis
Al reporting date, if the PKR had sirengthened by 10% against the US Dollar with all other variables held constant,
profit for the year would have been lower by the amount shown below, as a result of net foreign exchange gain on

translation of loreign curency bills payables. Following significant exchange rates have been applied:

2018 2017
(Rupeces in '000)

Effect on statemeant of protil or loss 30,547 8917

The weakening of the PKR by 10% against US Dollar would have had an equal bul opposite impact on the profit for
the year,

The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on profit for the year and liabilitics of the
Group.

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that fair values or future cash Nows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of

changes in interest raics. Sensitivity o interest rate risk arises from mismatch of financial asscts and financial
liabilitics that mature or re-price in a given period.



42.3.2(a) Fuir valie sensitivity analysiy for fived rote fusteaments

The Group does not account lor any ixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through statement of profit or loss. Therefors & change in
interest rate at the yeporting dale would net allect slatement of prafit or loss.

2018
Currying Interesi henring / Non-interest
amount variahle hearing / fixed
rate financial rafe financial
42,3.20) Mistnaich of interest rate sensirive finnncial assets and financial labilities instraments instrumenlts
---------------------- {Rupecs n "000) ----n-mmmmassenssamnes
Finncial avsefy
Security deposits 48,570 - 48,570
Trade debts 3.246,483 - 3,246,483
Other teceivables 629 - 629
Cash and bank balanees 105,247 - 105,247
3.400,929 - 3,410,929
Financial lHihifitivs
Long lerm loans - secured (1,083,521} {1,013,521} .
Liabilities against assels subject 1o nance lease (65,528) (65.528) -
Emplovee retirement benefit ({13 X)) - {61,823)
Trade and ather payables (1,577,876) (88,623) (1,489,253)
Mark-up accrued on bortowings (97.318) - {27.335)
Short term borrowings - sceured amd unsecured (2.995,286) £2,995,284) -
(5.811,372) (4,162,958 (1.648.414)
(2.410,443) (4.162.958) 1,752,515
2017
Carrying [iterest bearing / Non-interest
amount variable bearing
rale {inancial linancial
instruments instruments
Einpncial pysefs wrermrn et e {Rupees in D00 - -—--serseaneoninn
Security deposits 33,290 - 51,290
Trade debis 2,156,791 - 2,156,791
Other receivahles 4321 - 4,321
Cash and bank balance 291,647 - 391,647
2,506,049 - 2.506,049
Finavicim lihilities
Long term loans - secured (649.458) (649.458) -
Liakilities against assels subject to Ninance lease {35,654) (33.654) -
Employee retirement benefit (34.52M - (54,527
Trade und other piyables {1,035,629) (70,649 (964 ,980)
Mark-up accrued an borrowings (73,766) - {73.766)
Short term borrowings - secured and unsecured {2,748.916) (2.748.916) -
{4,617,950) (3,524,677) (1.093,273)
(2,111,901} (3.524.677) 1,412,776
42.3.2(c} Effective interest / mark-up rates fur the linancial asscts and financial liabilities are as follows: 2018 2017
Percentage
Financinl linhilities
Lang lerm loans - seeured 0.16% 1o 13.40% 9.15%
Liabilivies against asse1s subject Lo 1inance leasc 8.43% 10 14.07%  Tl4% w0 l1%

Shon term borrowings - secured and unsecured

7.66% t0 12.94%

7.29% 10 10.16%

A change of 10D basis poimts in wierest rates al the reporting dale would have increased / {decreased) profit for (he year by Rs. 40.55 million
(27 Rs. 34.34 million). This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant. The analysis is

performed on the same basis for 2117,

42.3.3  Other price risk

Other price risk is the risk that the Fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluciuate because ol changes in market prices (other
than thase arising from interest rate risk or currency risk). A1 reporting date the Group did not have linancial instruments exposed te other price

risk

A TN
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Capital risk management
The Group's objectives when managing capital are:

a) to safeguard the entity's ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and

b) to provide an adequate return to shareholders.

The Group manages the capital structure in the context of economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may, for example, adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets
to reduce debt. The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio calculated as total debt
(current and non-current borrowings) to debt plus equity.

The debt to equity ratios were as follows: 2018 2017
(Rupees in '000)

Total debl 4,008,807 3,398,374
Total equity and debt 12,397,932 11,565,017
Debt to equity ratio 2% 29%

The Group is not subject 1o externally imposed capital requirements.

Events after the reporting date

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on have proposed a final cash
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2018 of Rs, ~ per share (2017: Rs, 1.25 per share),
amounting to Rs. ~million (2017: Rs. 177.32 million) for approval of the members at the
Annual General Meeting to be held on . These consolidated f{inancial statements do

not reflect this dividend.
Corresponding figures

Corresponding figures have been re-arranged and re-classified, where necessary, for the purpose of comparison
and better presentation as per reporting framework. However, no significant reclassification has been made.

Date of authorization of issue

These consolidated financial stalements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors in their meeting
held on

(wtm/i“u

Lahore Director Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer



-INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the members of Waves Singer Pakistan Limited

Report on the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed unconsolidated financial statements of Waves Singer Pakistan Limited
(“the Company”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018, and the
statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity,
the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the unconsolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state
that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and
belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
statement of financial position, statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part
thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and
respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 31 December 2018 and
of the profit, the comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then
ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the unconsolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.



Following are the Key audit matters:

Refer to note 5.15 and 28
unconsolidated financial statements.

The Company principally generates
revenue from manufacturing and assembly
of domestic consumer appliances along-
with retailing and trading of the same.

to the

1%1;;. Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our audit
1. Valuation of intangible assets Our audit procedures, amongst others, included
Refer to note 53 and 20 to the the following:
unconsolidated financial statements. * obtaining an understanding of the process
. and testing the design and implementation
(Private) Limited and Linkwel (Private) valuation of intangible assets;
Limited. Provisional goodwill arising from | ¢ assessing the appropriateness of the
this acquisition was recognized amounted Company’s  accounting policy for
to 2,975.12 million, which represented the recognition of separately identifiable
excess of the consideration paid over the intangible assets and goodwill and
Company’s share of the fair value of the compliance of the policy with applicable
identifiable net assets. accounting and reporting standards;
During the year ended 31 December 2018, | * evaluated the professional valuer’s
the fair values of separately identifiable competence, capabilities and objectivity
intangible assets were assessed by the and assessed the appropriation of
management based on the valuation methodology used by the professional
prepared by an external valuation expert valuer to estimate the value of identifiable
which required the exercise of significant intangible assets;
judgement  and  estimation,  hence | |, biaini d i " h luati
provisional goodwill was revised and other obtaining and inspecting the valuation
intangible assets i.e. brand value and report prepared by the external valuer
customer relationships were identified. engaged by the Company and on which the
management assessment of the fair value of
The Company annually tests the carrying the separately identifiable intangible assets;
value of goodwill and intangible assets. The | & . h h C ,
testing is subject to estimates and judgments 1SCussIng IZV it the Ompezlny’ S
made by the management of the Company meinagement Slyl assurgptlons | use llln
with respect to future sales growth and va uﬁitlon. {no N anf h testzin% the
profitability, cash flow projection and mathematical accuracy of the model;
selection of appropriate discount rate. * involving our internal valuation specialists
. . . to assist us in assessing the valuation model
We identified the valuation of separately o - .
identiﬁe.lbl.e intgngible as§ets and goodwi!l ?l?élgzlr%{clﬁs ag;}e)lsitégla;gs,tﬁzsu&alf)&;ct)irz)snalz)(%
and their impairment testing as a key audit intangible assets and goodwill on the date
matter because significant degree of of acquisition and assessing the
management judgement is involved in recoverable amount at the year end,
making the above assessment and in including ~ discount = rate, ~growth rate,
forecasting the future cash flows of the te;mmal Value‘lagfl attri(tIOI} frate, w lth
Company which are inherently uncertain. reference to avatlable market information;
» comparing the recoverable amount with the
goodwill and intangible assets recognized
to identify impairment, if any; and
* assessing the adequacy of disclosure made
in the unconsolidated financial statements
in accordance with the requirements of the
applicable accounting standards.
2. Sales Our audit procedures, amongst others, included

the following:

obtaining an understanding of the process
relating to recording of sales and testing the
design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of relevant key internal
controls over recording of sales;




Sr.

No.

Key audit matters

How the matter was addressed in our audit

We identified revenue recognition as a key
audit matter because it is one of the key
performance indicator of the Company and
gives rise to an inherent risk of
misstatement to meet expectations or
targets.

assessing the appropriateness of the
Company’s  accounting  policy  for
recording of sales and compliance of the
policy with applicable accounting and
reporting standards;

comparing a sample of sale transactions
recorded during the year with sales orders,
sales invoices, delivery challans and other
relevant underlying documents;

comparing a sample of sale transactions
recorded near the year end with the sales
orders, sales invoices, delivery challans
and other relevant underlying
documentation to assess if the sale was
recorded in the appropriate accounting
period;

inspecting on a sample basis, credit notes
issued near to and subsequent to year end
to evaluate whether the adjustments to sales
had been accurately recorded in the
appropriate accounting period; and

scanning for any manual journal entries
relating to sales recorded during and near
the year end which were considered to be
material or met other specific risk based
criteria  for  inspecting  underlying
documentation.

Valuation of Stock in trade

Refer notes 5.8 and 24 to the unconsolidated
financial statements.

As at 31 December 2018, the Company’s
gross carrying amount of stock-in trade
amounts to amounts to Rs. 2,996.65 million
against which net realizable value
adjustment of Rs. 5.34 million has been
recorded.

We identified valuation of stock in trade as
a key audit matter as it involves significant
management judgment in determining the
carrying value of stock in trade.

Our audit procedures, amongst others, included
the following:

assessing the appropriateness of Company’s
accounting policy for valuation of stock in
trade and compliance of the policy with
applicable accounting and reporting
standards;

obtaining an understanding of internal
controls over valuation of stock in trade and
testing, on a sample basis, their design,
implementation and operating effectiveness;

obtaining an understanding and assessing
reasonableness of the management’s
determination of net realizable value (NRV)
and the key estimates adopted, including
future selling prices, future costs to
complete work-in-progress and costs
necessary to make the sales and their basis;
and

comparing the NRV, on a sample basis, to
the cost of stock in trade to assess whether
any adjustments are required to the value of
stock in trade in accordance with the
accounting policy.




Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. Other information comprises the information
included in the annual report for the year ended 31 December 2018, but does not include the
unconsolidated and consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of Management _and Board of Directors for the Unconsolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the unconsolidated financial
statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the
requirements of Companies Act, 2017(XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the unconsolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the unconsolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the unconsolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these unconsolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the unconsolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events



or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the unconsolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the unconsolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the unconsolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the unconsolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act,
2017(XIX of 2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes
thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in
agreement with the books of account and returns;

¢) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the
purpose of the Company’s business; and

d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980) was deducted
by the Company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that
Ordinance

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Mr. Bilal Ali.

Lahore KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Date: 5™ April, 2019
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Waves Singer Pakistan Limited

Unconsolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended 31 December 2018

2018 2017
Note (Rupees in '000)

Sales - net of sales return 8,835,894 4,224,648
Sales tax and trade discount on invoices (2.846,284) (1,218,131)
Sales - net 28 5,989,610 3,006,517
Cost of sales 29 (5,423,108) (2,621,131)
Gross profit 566,502 385,386
Marketing, selling and distribution costs 30 (185,083) (297,462)
Administrative expenses 31 (125,613) (128,512)
Other expenses 32 (108,768) (45,209)
Other income 33 666,013 505.360

246,549 34,177

813,051 419,563
Earned carrying charges - 51,989
Finance costs 34 (423,474) (296,096)

(423,474) (244,107)
Profit before taxation 389,577 175,456
Taxation 35 63,092 13,002
Profit for the year 452,669 188,458

(Restated)

Earnings per share - basic and diluted (Rupees) 36 2.77 1.64

The annexed notes | to 48 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

Whuudy

Lahore Director Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer



Waves Singer Pakistan Limited

Unconsolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 December 2018

2018 2017
(Rupees in '000)

Profit for the year 452,669 188,458
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
- Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment - 144,262
- Related deferred tax on surplus - (42,919)
- Deferred tax reversal on investment property - 45899
- Actuarial gain / (loss) on employee retirement benefits 15,197 (15,749)
- Related tax effect - s

15,197 131,493
Total comprehensive income for the vear 467,866 319951

The annexed notes 1 to 48 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements,

WA

Lahore Director Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer



Waves Singer Pakistan Limited

Unconsolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Far the year qded 31 Devember 2014

Capitul Reserves Revenue Heserve
Issuieil, subseribed Baci 1o e Tsicd Surplus an (Accumulated
il paid-up i Share premium Other capital | revaluation of land losses) / Total
vapital n:ul i rescrve reserve and Unappropriated
& building profits
(Reg 000)
As at 01 January 2017 provieasly reportad 454,056 - - 3,000 - (150,252) 308 504
Impast of change in policy as explained m note £ =) - - - 1,008 NES - 1,005 885
As 3t 01 January 2017 « rectared 454,056 - - LR 1,005 RES (150,252) 1,404 659
wturl wehicnvive income for the y
Profit after taxation 2 - . . . 16,458 158,458
Dther comprehensive income for the year .
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation - . . . - (15,74%) 15,749)
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and
cquiprcnt ansen - - - - 144 262 - 144,261
Related deferred tax on surplus ansen - - - - (42919 - 42,919
Deferred tax reversal on mvestment propernty - - - - 45899 . 45899
- - - - 147,242 172,708 319,951
Nurplus transferred to gocumulaty 1]
Transfer against sale of land and building - nct of tas - - - - (1,072,432) 1,072,432 .
Transfer of related deferred tax - - - - - 356,966 356966
Incremental depreciation relating to -
surplus on revaluation = net of tax - - - - (11,165) 11.165 5
i - - - (1,083.5097) 1,440,563 356,966
Transaitivns with owemers of the Comparny
Shares to be Bsued pursuant 1o amalgamation - 964,500 5,038,548 - - - 6,008,048
Balance as at 31 December 2007 - restated 454,056 064,500 5,038,548 S0 159,500 1,463,020 5,084,624
msive inco or the year
Profit after taation - - - - - 432,669 452,660
.1 chenvive income for the year
Remcasurement of defined benefit obligation - - B - - 15,187 15,197
Nupplus trams 1o wecimuluted profits
Transfer agaimst sale of land and building « net of tax . - - = (967} 967 =4
Ingremenal depreciaticn relatmg 1o
surplus on revaluation - net of s . - - - (137 137 -
Effect of change in tax rate on account of surplus
on property, plant and equipment - - - = 129 - 129
- - - - (975) 468,970 467995
Trunsactions with awners of the Company
Sharey insued under scheme of amalgamation 964,500 (964.500) . * = = -
Sharcs issued as fully paid bonus sharcs @ 15% 212,784 - 212,783) = - - *
Funal dividend for the vear ended
31 Decamber 2017 @ Rs 125 per share - - - - . (172.320) (177.320)
1,177,254 (964, 500) T R21L,784) - - (177,320 (177,320)
Balunce as a1 31 December 2018 1,631,340 - 4 !15I7H 5,000 ISS}E 1,754,670 5,375,299

The annexed notes | 1o 48 form an mtegral part of these wiconso hdated financial statements

e ulen

Lahore Director Chiel Excentive Officer Chief Financial Officer




Waves Singer Pakistan Limited

Unconsolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Cash flows fram operating activities

Profit before taxation

Adyustments for non-cash items:
Depreciation on property, plant and equipmient
Amortisation of intangible asset
Finance costs
Net loss on insurance claim of fixed assets written off due to fire
Loss of inventory due to fire
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Unrealised gain on investment property at fuir value
Workers' Profit Participation Fund
Interest on Workers' Profit Participation Furd
Amortisation of deferred income
Liabilities no longer payable written back
Provision against stock-in-trade
Provision against trade debts and other reccivables
Provision for employee retirement benefits
Dividend income from subsidiary company

Profit before working capital changes

Effect on cash flows due to working capital ehunges

(Increase) / decrease in current assets
Stores, spares and loose tools
Stock-in-trade
Trade debts
Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables

Increase / (decrease) in trade and other payables

Cash used in operations

Income tax - net

Workers' Profit Participation Fund paid
Employee retirement benefits paid
Long term deposits - net

Net cash used in operating activitics

Cash fTows from investing activities

Capital expenditure

Net proceeds against insurance claim against assets written off due to fire
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

Dividend received from subsidiary company

Net cash flows from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Lease rentals paid - net

Finance costs paid

Dividend paid

Short term finances availed - net

Long term loans - net

Net cash flows from financing activities

Net (decrease) / inerease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents acquired in a business combination
Cash and eash equivalents at end of the year

The annexed notes | 1o 48 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

HRULR W

Lahore Director Chiefl Executive Officer

Note 2018

2017

(Rupees in '000)

389,577 175,456
19.1.4 157,750 115,850
203 9,445 3,629

k2] 423,972 296,096
6,838 2
(186,098) )
5,550 (456,951)
(4,799) (34,676)
27,331 12,248
498 437
(6,321) (2452)
(21,134) 2
" 1,790
10,388 15011
10,281 12,649
(540,000) -
283,278 139,006
(8,117) 9,033
(431,771) (214.963)
(722,228) (214332)
(303,715) 63615
524,664 (477.030)
(941,167) (833,677)
(657,889) (694,381)
7,392 (34,542)
(12,746) (7,119)
- (25,846)
6,820 (4.218)
(656,423) (766.306)
(498,319) (186,525)
429,037 i
12,601 2,048292

540,000 .

483,319 1,861,767

(13,639) (10,657)

(400,400) (305.266)
(175,803) :
(414,989) 207,859
364,063 (396,875)
(640,768) (504,039)
(813,872) 590,522
(625,334) (749.304)
- (466.552)
37 (1,439,206) (625.334)

Chief Financial Officer




Waves Singer Pakistan Limited

Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2018

(=]

Status and nature of business

Waves Singer Pakistan Limited ("the Company") is incorporated in Pakistan under the repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017) as a public company limited by shares and is quoted on the
Pakistan Stock Exchange. The Company is principally engaged in the manufacturing and assembly of domestic
consumer appliances along with retailing and trading of the same and other light engineering products. The
registered office of the Company is located at 9-K.M, Hanjarwal, Multan Road, Lahore.

Geographical locations of the manufacturing facilities of the Company are located at:
- 9-K.M, Hanjarwal, Multan Road, Lahore.
- Dina Nath, Mouza Rakh Serai Cheenba, Tehsil Pattoki, District Kasur.

Summary of significant events and transactions in the current reporting period

2.1 The Company's financial position and performance was particularly affected by the following events and
transactions during the reporting year:

- Effective 01 July 2017, the Honourable Sindh High Court through its order dated 22 May 2018
approved the Scheme of Arrangement as proposed and granted sanction order for the amalgamation
of Cool Industries (Private) Limited (CIPL) and Link Wel (Private) Limited (LWPL) with and into
Singer Pakistan Limited (now Waves Singer Pakistan Limited) and demerger of retail business from
the Company and amalgamate the same into the Electronics Marketing Company (Private) Limited
(a wholly owned subsidiary company), The Board of Directors of the Company, in their meeting
held on 27 November 2017, approved and resolved to present the Scheme of Arrangement with and
into the Company before the shareholders of the Company for their approval. Approval of the
secured creditors was obtained on 29 December 2017, while the sharcholders of the Company
approved the Scheme of Arrangement in their Extraordinary General Meeting (EOGM) held on 29
December 2017. In consideration, the Company issued 96,450,000 ordinary shares of the Company
in aggregate in favour of the shareholders of CIPL (93,975,000 shares) and LWPL (2,375,000) of
the Company on the basis of swap ratio of 1 (one) ordinary share of the CIPL for every 1.79
ordinary shares of the Company and 1 (one) ordinary share of the LWPL for every 0.33 ordinary
shares of the Company.

The Company expects several benefits after this merger including the synergies of operations,
(merging entities being engaged in the similar nature of business), utilization and the benefits of the
"Waves" brand (held by CIPL) along with the Singer brand already held by surviving company,
enhancement of the marketing and advertising opportunities, increased market penetration, a large
equity and asset base of the merged entity and reduction in administration cost, etc.

For the purpose of demerger, 24,800,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each of EMCPL have been
allotted and issued by EMCPL to the Company.

- As fully explained in note 32.1, a fire broke out at production facility located in Lahore causing
damage to the finished goods under dispatch, production facility (i.e. Plant and machinery) along
with its related building area and work-in-process which were adequately insured. Consequently, the
Company has written off property, plant and equipment and stock in trade with carrying value of Rs.
24978 million and Rs. 186.10 million respectively.



Subsequently, the Company has incurred capital expenditure amounting to Rs. 498.32 million in
aggregate (building and plant and machinery) for the replacement and expansion of its current
manufacturing facility.

- Change in accounting policy for surplus on revaluation of land and buildings as detailed in note 5.1
to these unconsolidated financial statements.

- Due to the first time application of financial reporting requirements under the Companies Act, 2017,
including disclosure and presentation requirements of the fourth schedule of the Companies Act,
2017, the Company has presented additional disclosures in these financial statements and
represented certain comparative figures.

- For detailed discussion about the Company's performance, please refer to the Director’s report.

3 Basis of preparation

3.1

3.2

3.3

Separate financial statements

These financial statements are the separate financial statements of the Company in which investments in
subsidiaries are accounted for on the basis of direct equity interest rather than on the basis of reported
results and net asscts of the investees. Consolidated financial statements of the Company are prepared
and presented separately.

The Company has the following long term investments:
2018 2017
(Direct holding percentage)

Name of subsidiary companies
- Waves Marketing (Private) Limited 100 100
- Electronics Marketing Company (Private) Limited 100 100

Statement of compliance

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan comprise of:

—  International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

—  Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017; and

—  Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan as notified under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS
Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

Basis of measurement

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except
for land and buildings (including the investment property) which are stated at revalued amounts less
subsequent depreciation and impairment losses as referred to in note 19, recognition of lease liability and
employee retirement benefits as referred to in note 10 and 11 at present value respectively.

'3 ST



34 Funetional and presentation currency

These unconsolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupee which is also the Company's
functional and presentation currency and have been rounded off to the nearest thousand.

Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of these unconsolidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards
requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under circumstances, and the
results of which form the basis for making judgment about carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognized in the period in which estimates are revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the Company's financial statements or where
judgment was exercised in application of accounting policies are as follows:

Note

- Residual value, market values and useful lives of

property, plant and equipment 5.2
- Useful lives of intangible assets 5.3
- Investment property 35
- Provision for employee retirement benefit plans 5.6
- Stock in trade and stores and spares and loose tools

at net realisable value / net of impairment losses 5.7& 5.8
- Provision for impairment of trade debts 59
- Valuation of investment in subsidiary company 3.10
- Provisions 313
- Provision for warranty obligation 5.4
- Taxation 5.16
- Impairment of financial and non-financial assets 518

Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these
unconsolidated financial statements, except as disclosed in note 5.1.

5.1 Change in accounting policy

Up to 31 December 2017, surplus on revaluation of land and building was being measured under the
repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984. The surplus arising on the revaluation was credited to the surplus
on revaluation account. With effect from 01 January 2018, Companies Act, 2017 has become applicable
and section 235 of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 relating to treatment of surplus arising on
revaluation of fixed assets has not been carried forward in the Companies Act, 2017. Accordingly the
management has changed the accounting policy to bring accounting of revaluation surplus in accordance
with the requirements of IAS 16 "Property, plant and equipment". The effect of this change in accounting
policy, which is applied with retrospective effect, has resulted in transfer of surplus on revaluation of
property, plant and equipment - net of tax amounting to Rs. 159.50 million and Rs. 1,095.86 million as at
31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 respectively to statement of changes in equity.

(73 SURPVALY



5.2

elundn

Property, plant and equipment

Owned

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if
any, except for the land which is stated at revalued amount less impairment loss, if any, and buildings
which are stated at the revalued amounts less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.
Cost includes expenditure directly atiributable to the acquisition of an asset.

Land and Buildings are revalued by professionally qualified valuer with sufficient regularity to ensure
that the net cartying amount does not differ materially from the fair value (market value). In case of
revalued assats, any accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is eliminated against the gross
carrying amount of the asset and the net amount restated at the revalued amount of the asset.

Depreciation is charged 1o the statement of profit or loss applying the straight-line methed whereby the
depreciable amount of an asset is depreciated over its estimated useful life. Depreciation on additions is
charged from the month in which the asset is available for use and up to the month of disposal. Amount
equivalent to incremental depreciation charged for the year on revalued assets is transferred from surplus
on revaluation of property, plant and equipment to retained eamnings. The rates of depreciation are stated
in note 19.1 1o these unconsolidated financial statements.

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if impact
on depreciation is significant. Normal repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of profit or
loss as and when incurred.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only ‘when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in
the item of property, plant and equipment. Gains and losses on disposal of assets are taken to the
statement of profit or [oss. When revalued assets are sold, the amount included in surplus on revaluation
of property, plant and equipment is transferred to retained earnings.

Leased

Leases in terms of which the Company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Upon initial recognition, an asset acquired by way of finance lease is stated at
an amount equal to the lower of its fair value and the present value of minimum lease payments,
determined at the inception of the lease. Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is stated at the amount
determined at initial recognition less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

Each minimum lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost s0 as to achieve a
constant rate on the balance outstanding, The interest element of the rental is charged to statement of
profit or 1oss over the lease term,

The related rental obligations, net of finance cost, are included in liabilities against assets subject to
finance lease as referred to in note 10. The liabilities are classified as curvent and non-current depending
upon the timing of the payment. :

Depreciation is charged on the same basis as used for owned assets.
Sale and lease back
Where the sale and lease back transactions result in a finance lease, any excess of sale proceeds over the

carrying amount is deferred and amortised over the lease term. However, sale proceeds less than the
carrying value is immediately recognised in the statement of profit or loss.



Capital work in progress

It is stated at cost less impairment losses, if any. It includes expenditure incurred and advances made in
respect of assets in the course of their construction and installation. These cost are transferred to relevant
assets category as and when assets are available for intended use.

53 Intangible assets and goodwill
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of business represents future economic benefits arising from assets
that are not capable of being individually identified and separately recognized. Goodwill is initially
recognized at cost which is determined as the excess of the cost of business combination over the
Company’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of
the acquiree. Subsequent to initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Gooduwill is annually tested for impairment.

Other Intangible asset

Other intangible assets, including customer relationship, that are acquired by the Company and have
finite useful lives are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses. Intangible assets such as brand value that have infinite lives are measured at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives and is generally recognised in profit or loss. The rates of amortization are stated in
note 20.1 to these unconsolidated financial statements.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in
the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditures, including expenditure on internally generated
goodwill and brands, is recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Amortisation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if
appropriate.

Gain or loss from derecognition of intangible assets is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

5.4 Business combination

As per the requirement of International Financial Reporting Standards 3, business combinations are
accounted for by applying the acquisition method (other than those of the businesses / entities under
common control unless it is transitory in nature). The cost of acquisition is measured at the fair value of
assets given, equity instruments issued and the liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of acquisition.
The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement, if any.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilitics assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The excess of the consideration transferred over the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. I this is less than the fair value of the net assets acquired in the
case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognized directly in the statement of profit or loss.
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5.5

5.6

Investment property

Property, comprising land or a building or part thereof, held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or
both are classified as investment property. These are not held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes. The Company's business model i.e. the Company's intentions
regarding the use ol property is the primary criterion for classification as an investment property.

Investment property is initially measured at cost (including the transaction costs). However when an
owner occupied property carried at fair value becomes an investment property because its use has
changed, the transfer to the investment property is at fair value on the date of transfer and any balance of
surplus on the revaluation of the related assets, on the date of such a transfer continues to be maintained
in the surplus account on revaluation of property, plant and equipment. Upon disposal, any surplus
previously recorded in the revaluation surplus account is directly transferred to retained earnings /
accumulated losses and the transfer is not made through the statement of profit or loss. However any gain
or loss on disposal of investment property (calculated as the difference between the net proceeds from
disposal and the carrying amount of the item) is recognised in the unconsolidated statement of profit or
loss.

The transfer to investment property is made when, and only when, there is a change in use, evidenced by
the end of owner occupation. In case of dual purpose properties, the same is classified as investment
property, only if the portion could be sold or leased out separately under finance lease.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the Company measures the investment property at fair value at each
reporting date and any subsequent change in fair value is recognised in the statement of profit or loss (i.e.
in case where the owner occupied property carried at fair value becomes an investment property, the fair
value gain to be recognised in the statement of profit or loss would be the difference between the fair
value at the time of initial classification as investment property and fair value at the time of subsequent
remeasurement). The revaluation of investment properties are carried out by independent professionally
qualified valuers on the basis of active market price.

Employee retirement and other service benefits

Defined benefit plans

The Company operates a funded defined benefit pension scheme for the eligible executives and managers
and a funded gratuity scheme for all of its eligible employees (old Singer Pakistan Limited's employees)
other than field staff. Provisions / contributions are made in the unconsolidated financial statements to
cover obligations on the basis of actuarial valuation carried out annually under the Projected Unit Credit
Method.

Amount recognised in statement of financial position represents the present value of defined benefit
obligations as reduced by the fair value of the plan assets, if any. All actuarial gains and losses are
recognised in 'Other Comprehensive Income' as they occur. Past service cost resulting from the changes
to defined benefit plan is immediately recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Current service cost
together with net interest cost are also charged to the statement of profit or loss.

Calculation of gratuity and pension require assumptions to be made of future outcomes which mainly
includes increase in remuneration, expected long term return on plan assets and the discount rate used to
convert future cash flows to current values. Calculations are sensitive to changes in the underlying
assumptions.
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Defined contribution plan

The Company operates a recognised provident fund scheme covering all eligible employees. The
Company and employees make equal monthly contributions to the fund.

Staff Compensated absences

The Company recognises the liability for compensated absences in respect of employees in the period in
which they are earned up to the reporting date on the basis of un-availed earned leaves balance at the end
of the year.

Stores, spares and loose tools

These are valued at lower of cost determined on first-in-first-out basis and impairment losses if any,
Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon up to the
reporting date less any impairment losses.

Provision for obsolete and slow moving stores, spdres and loose tools is determined based on
management's estimates. These are based on their future usability. Provision is made for any excess of
carrying value over the estimated net realizable value and is recognised in the unconsolidated statement
of profit or loss.

Stock-in-trade

Stock-in-trade is valued at the lower of cost determined on first-in-first-out basis and net realisable value
except for stock in transit which is stated at invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon up to the
reporting date. Cost in relation to work in process and manufactured finished goods represent direct cost
of materials, direct wages and appropriate allocation of manufacturing overheads. Cost of goods
purchased for resale comprises of purchase price, import duties, taxes (other than those subsequently
recoverable by the entity from tax authorities) and other directly attributable cost wherever applicable.

Cost comprises of all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less estimated cost of completion and the estimated cost
necessary to be incurred to make the sale.

The management continuously reviews its inventory for existence of any items which may have become
obsolete. Provision is made for slow moving inventory based on management’s estimation. These are
based on historical experience and are continuously reviewed.

Trade debts

These are initially recognised at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Provision for doubtful debts is established where there is objective evidence that the Company will not be
able to collect amount due according to the original terms of the receivable is based on management's
assessment of anticipated uncollectible amounts based on Company’s past experience, historical bad
debts statistics and ageing analysis. Debts are written off when considered irrecoverable.

%
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5.15

Investment in Subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are measured at cost less impairment, if any, in the Company’s separate
financial statements. At subsequent reporting date, the recoverable amounts of investments are estimated
1o determine the extent of impairment losses, if any, and carrying amounts of investments are adjusted
accordingly, lmpairment losses are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit or loss.
Investments in subsidiaties that have suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of
impairment at each reporting date. Where impairment losses are subsequently reversed, the camying
amounts of the investments are increased 10 the revised recoverable amounts but limited to the extent of
initial cost of investments. Impairment losses recognised in the statement of profit or loss on investments
in subsidiaries are reversed through the statement of profit or loss.

The Company is required to issue consolidated financial statements along with its separate financial
statements, in accordance with the requirements of IAS 27, ‘Separate Financial Statements’.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand, and deposits held with banks with original
maturities of three months or less and where these are held for the purpose of meeting short term cash
commitments rather than for investments or other purposes, Short term running finance facilities availed
by the Company are also included as part of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow
staternent, ’

Trade and ather payables

Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for goods and services that have been acquired in the
ordinary course of business from suppliers, Account balances are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycles of business if longer). If not,
they are classified as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other pavables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method. Exchange gains and losses arising on translation in respect of
liabilities in foreign currency are added to the canrying amount of the respective liabilities.

Provisions

A provision is recognised in the statement of financial position when the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect current
best estimates,

Warranty obligations

The Company accounts for its warranty obligations based on histarical trends when the underlying
products or services are sold.

Revenue recognition

. Sales are stated net of sales tax, rebate and sales return and are recognised when persuasive evidence
of a sale exists. The key area of judgment in recognising revenue is the timing of recognition, which
reflects the point ar period when the Company has transferred significant risks and rewards of
awnership to third parties. Revenue from sale of goods is measured at fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and is recognised as revenue on dispatch of goods to customers.

WA LS
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- Revenue from services rendered is recognised in statement of profit or loss when the related services
are performed.

- Carrying charges representing the difference between the cash sale price and hire purchase price are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss using the effective interest rate method over the period
of the sale under the hire purchase arrangement.

- Income on investments and profit and loss sharing bank accounts are recognised on accrual basis
using the effective interest rate method,

- Rental income from investment property is recognised as other income on a straight-line basis over
the term of lease.

Taxation

Income tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity /
surplus on revaluation of fixed assets or in other comprehensive income.

Current

Current tax is the amount of tax payable on taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date, and any adjustment 1o the tax payable in respect of previous
years. Provision for current tax is based on current rates of taxation in Pakistan after taking into account
tax credits, rebates and exemptions available, if any. The amount of unpaid income tax in respect of the
current or prior periods is recognized as a liability. Any excess paid over what is due in respect of the
current or prior periods is recognized as an asset.

The Company has opted for Group Taxation under section 39AA of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.
Under this approach, the Company is accounting for the related taxes under standalone taxpayer
approach. Under this approach, current and deferred taxes are recognised as if the entity was taxable in
its own right.

Deferred

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet method in respect of all temporary differences
arising from differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of the taxable profit. However, deferred tax is
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of transaction neither affects accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax
assets are recognized 1o the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilized.

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences
reverse based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date. The carrying amount of all deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asscts to be utilized. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the statement of profit or loss,
except in the case of items credited or charged to other comprehensive income or equity in which case it
is included in other comprehensive income or equity.
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Borrowings

All interest bearing borrowings are initially recognized at the fair value of the consideration received less
directly attributable transaction costs. After initial recognition, interest bearing borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. Borrowings are
classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional / contractual right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date.

Finance cost are accounted for on an accrual basis and are included in accrued finance cost to the extent
of the remaining amount unpaid. '

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognized in statement of
profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Financial instruments

The Company recognises a financial asset or a financial liability when it becomes a party to the
contractual provision of the instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are recognised initially at cost,
which is the fair value of the consideration given or received respectively. These are subsequently
measured at fair value or amortised cost, as the case may be depending on the particular accounting

policy.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual right to cash flows from the asset expire, or when
substantially all the risks and reward of ownership of the financial asset are transferred. Financial liability
is derecognised when its contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled or expired. Gain or loss on
derecognition is recognised in unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.

A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is objective evidence that it
is impaired. A financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset, and that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated
future cash flows of the asset.

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilitics

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the unconsolidated
financial statements only when the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts and the Company intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Impairment
Financial assets

A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective evidence
that it is impaired. A financial asset is impaired if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and that loss event(s) had an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably. Objective evidence
that the financial asset is impaired includes default or delinquency by a debtor, restructuring of an amount
due to the Company on the terms that the Company would not consider otherwise, indications that a
debtor or issuer will enter bankruptey, adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers or issuers,
econotmic conditions that correlate with defaults or the disappearance of an active market for a security.
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An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the
difference between its carrying amount and the present value of estimated cash flows discounted at the
original effective interest rate. When an event occurring after the impairment was recognised causes the
amount of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is reversed through
unconsolidated profit or loss.

Individually significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. All impairment
losses are recognised in unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets other than deferred tax assets and stock in trade, are
assessed at each reporting date to ascertain whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised. as an
expense in the statement of profit or loss, for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. Value in use is assessed through discounting of the estimated future cash flows using a
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). An impairment loss for goodwill, if any, is
not reversed. For other assets, an impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Foreign currency transactions and translation

Transactions and halances

All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees using the exchange
rate at the reporting date. Exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translations at the year end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are taken to profit or loss. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currency that are measured in terms of historical cost are translated using the exchange rates as at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency that
are measured at fair value are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined. Exchange differences are generally included in the statement of profit or loss.

Dividends and appropriations to reserves

Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recognised in the financial statements in the period in which
these are approved. Transfer between reserves approved subsequent to the reporting date is considered as
non-adjusting event and is recognised in the financial statements in the period in which such transfers are
made.

Earnings per share

As required under International Accounting Standard 33 Earnings Per Share, basic EPS is calculated by
dividing the profit after tax attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. The Company is not exposed to the dilutive effect
on EPS.
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Common control transactions

A business combination (or a demerger for that purpose) involving entities or businesses under common
control is a business combination in which all of the combining entities or businesses are ultimately
controlled by the same party or parties both before and after the combination. Such common control
transactions have been excluded from the scope of International Financial Reporting Standards 3 dealing
with Business Combinations. Accordingly, as an accounting policy choice, the assets acquired and
liabilities assumed ' assets and liabilities transferred are recognized under the book value basis (carry-
over basis) of accounting.

Grant in aid (deferred income)

Grant in aid represcnts the amount received from the World Bank under a project to phase out the Ozone
Depleting Substances (ODS) by acquiring asset (production facility) which manufactures such products
which are free from such substances. This grant is classified as deferred income and is being amortized
over the useful life of such asset.

Operating lease assets and assets obtained under Ijarah arrangement

Rentals paid for the assets obtained under the operating lease, if any are recognized as an expense of the
period to which these relate to.

Leased assets which are obtained under Ijarah agreement are not recognized in the Company’s statement
of financial position and are treated as operating lease based on Islamic Financial Accounting Standard
(IFAS) 2 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and notified by Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan vide S.R.O. 43(1) / 2007 dated 22 May 2007. ljarah Payments under
the agreement are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit or loss on a straight line basis over
the lease period of Ijarah agreement.

Operating segments

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the Board of
Directors of the Company that makes the strategic decisions. Segment results that are reported to the
Board of Directors include items directly attributable to a segment as well as allocated on reasonable
basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly of corporate assets, head office expenses and tax assets and

Allocation of expenses

Certain expenses are allocated by the Company to its subsidiaries in accordance to a basis approved by
the Board of Directors of the Company and the subsidiaries.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved International Financial
Reporting Standards

The following International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) as notified under the
Companies Act, 2017 and the amendments and interpretations thereto will be effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after 01 January 2019:

— IFRIC 23 *Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 01 January 2019) clarifies the accounting for income tax when there is uncertainty over income
tax treatments under IAS 12. The interpretation requires the uncertainty over tax treatment be
reflected in the measurement of current and deferred tax. The application of interpretation is not
likely to have an impact on the Company’s financial statements.
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— IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after
01 July 2018). IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much
and when revenue is recognized. It replaces existing revenue recognition guidance, including IAS 18
‘Revenue’, IAS 11 *Construction Contracts” and IFRIC 13 ‘Customer Loyalty Programmes’. The
Company is currently in the process of analysing the potential impact of changes required in revenue
recognition policies on adoption of the standard.

— IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ and amendment — Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation
(effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 July 2018 and 01 January 2019 respectively).
IFRS 9 replaces the existing guidance in IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement. [FRS 9 includes revised guidance on the classification and measurement of financial
instruments, a new expected credit loss model for calculating impairment on financial assets, and
new general hedge accounting requirements. It also carries forward the guidance on recognition and
derecognition of financial instruments from [AS 39. The Company is currently in the process of
analysing the potential impact of changes required in classification and measurement of financial
instruments and the impact of expected loss model on adoption of the standard.

— IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ (effective for annual period beginning on or after 01 January 2019). IFRS 16
replaces existing leasing guidance, including IAS 17 ‘Leases’, IFRIC 4 ‘Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease’, SIC-15 *Operating Leases - Incentives’ and SIC-27 ‘Evaluating the
Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease’. IFRS 16 introduces a single, on-
balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognizes a right-of-use asset
representing it's right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability representing it's obligation to
make lease payments. There are recognition exemptions for short-term leases and leases of low-
value items. Lessor accounting remains similar to the current standard i.e. lessors continue to
classify leases as finance or operating leases. The Company is currently in the process of analysing
the potential impact of its lease arrangements that will result in recognition of right to use assets and
liabilities on adoption of the standard.

—~  Amendment to 1AS 28 ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’ - Long Term Interests in
Associates and Joint Ventures (effective for annual period beginning on or after 01 January 2019).
The amendment will affect companies that finance such entities with preference shares or with loans
for which repayment is not expected in the foreseeable future (referred to as long-term interests or
‘LTI"). The amendment and accompanying example state that LTI are in the scope of both IFRS 9
and IAS 28 and explain the annual sequence in which both standards are to be applied. The
amendments are not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.

—  Amendments to IAS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’ - Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement
(effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2019). The amendments clarify that
on amendment, curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan, a company now uses updated
actuarial assumptions to determine its current service cost and net interest for the period; and the
effect of the asset ceiling is disregarded when calculating the gain or loss on any settlement of the
plan and is dealt with separately in other comprehensive income. The application of amendments is
not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.

—  Amendment to IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’ — Definition of a Business (effective for business
combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of annual period beginning
on or after 01 January 2020). The IASB has issued amendments aiming to resolve the difficulties
that arise when an entity determines whether it has acquired a business or a group of assets. The
amendments clarify that to be considered a business, an acquired set of activities and assets must
include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that together significantly contribute to
the ability to create outputs. The amendments include an election to use a concentration test. The
standard is effective for transactions in the future and therefore would not have an impact on past
financial statements.

VISVIPVN



—  Amendments to IAS | Presentation of Financial Statements and 1AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes
in Accounting Estimates and Errors (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January
2020). The amendments are intended to make the definition of material in IAS 1 easier to
understand and are not intended to alter the underlying concept of materiality in IFRS Standards. In
addition, the IASB has also issued guidance on how to make materiality judgements when preparing
their general purpose financial statements in accordance with IFRS Standards.

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle. The new cycle of improvements addresses
improvements to following approved accounting standards:

— IFRS 3 Business Combinations and IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements. The amendment aims to clarify the
accounting treatment when a company increases its interest in a joint operation that meets the
definition of a business. A company remeasures its previously held interest in a joint operation when
it obtains control of the business. A company does not remeasure its previously held interest in a
joint operation when it obtains joint control of the business.

— 1AS 12 Income Taxes. The amendment clarify that all income tax consequences of dividends
(including payments on financial instruments classified as equity) are recognized consistently with
the transaction that generates the distributable profits.

— 1AS 23 Borrowing Costs. The amendment clarify that a company treats as part of general
borrowings any borrowing originally made to develop an asset when the asset is ready for its
intended use or sale.

The above amendments are effective from annual period beginning on or after 01 January 2019 and are
not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.

2018 2017 2018 2017
Note " (Number of shares) (Rupees in '000)
Share capital
6.1 Authorized share capital 6.1.1 175,000,000 _ 145,000,000 1,750,000 1,450,000

6.1.1 During the year, the Company has increased its authorized share capital by 30,000,000 shares. The
authorized share capital thus stands enhanced at Rs. 1,750 million, divided into 175,000,000 shares of
Rs. 10 each, and accordingly the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company have been
amended.

6.2 Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

2018 2017 2018 2017
(Number of shares) (Rupees in "000)
Fully paid-up ordinary shares o
Rs. 10 each
Issued for cash 11,461,568 11,461,568 114,616 114,616
Issued for consideration other than cash 703,733 703,733 7,037 7,037
Issued as paid bonus shares 54,518,664 33,240,321 545,187 332,403
Issued under scheme of amalgamation 96,450,000 - 964,500 -
163.133.965 45,405,622 1,631,340 454,056




6.3 Reconciliation of ordinary shares

2018 2017 2018 2017
Note (Number of shares) (Rupees in '000)

Balance as at 01 January 45,405,622 45,405,622 454,056 454,056
Ordinary shares issued

under scheme of arrangement 6.5 96,450,000 - 964,500 -
Ordinary shares issued

as fully paid bonus shares 6.6 21,278,343 - 212,784 -
Balance as at 31 December 163,133,965 45,405,622 1,631.340 454,056

6.4  Ordinary shares of the Company held by associated persons and undertaking at year end are as follows:

2018 2017 2018 2017
(Percentage held) (Number of shares)
*Poseidon Synergies (Private) Limited 6.00% 18.74% 9,785,377 8,509,024
Chief Executive Officer and
his spouse and minor children
- Haroon Ahmad Khan (CEQ) 37.95% 15.42% 61,916,108 7,002,209
- Nighat Haroon Khan (Wife of CEO) 15.64% 6.39% 25,518,500 2,900,000
- Dependent children of CEO 1.66% 5.17% 2,702,500 2,350,000
61.25% 45.72%

*

Owned by Chief Executive Officer and his wife.

6.5  Pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement, approved by Honourable Sindh High Court through its Order dated
22 May 2018, the authorized share capital of Singer Pakistan Limited has been merged and combined
with the authorized share capital of each of Cool Industries (Private) Limited and Link Wel (Private)
Limited. The Company has issued 96,450,000 shares to the shareholders of Cool Industries (Private)
Limited and Link Wel (Private) Limited pursuant to the same scheme.

6.6 During the year, Company has announced 15% bonus shares in lieu of dividend to its existing
shareholders, in proportion of their shareholding.

6.7 The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared (if any), and are entitled to
one vote per share at meetings of the Company.

6.8 13,509,024 shares having face value of Rs. 10 each are pledged as security with a financial institution.

Share premium

This represents excess of market value over the face value of shares issued under the scheme of arrangement as
explained in note 2.1. This reserve can only be utilized by the Company for the purpose specified in Section
81(2) of the Companies Act, 2017.
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2018 2017

Note {Rupees in '000)

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment - net of tax
Surplus on revaluation of leaschold land and buildings - as on 01 January 161,564 1,462 460
Surplus on revaluation of land recognised during the year - 134,854
Sutplus on revaluation of buildings recognised during the year - 9,408
Surplus on sale of leascheld land transferred 10 retgined eamings 8.1 - (1,416,606}
Surplus on sale of buildings on leasehold land 1ransferred to retained eamings 8.1 - (12,792}
Surplus on salz of buildings on freehold land transferred to retained eamings (1,248) -
Incremental depreciation transferred to equity {193) (15,760)

160,123 161,564
Deferred tax liability - as on 01 January (2,064) {366,605)
Deferred tax on revaluation recognised during the year - 42,919
Tax effect on sale of Teasehold land transferred to retained eamings on sale ’ - 353,891
Tax effect on sale of buildings on leasckold land transferred to retained camings - 3,075
Tax effect on sale of buildings on freshold land transferred to retained eamings 281 -
Deferved tax reversal on investment property - 45,899
Tax effect on transfer of incremental depreciation to retained eamings 56 4,595
Adjustment resulting from change of tax rate 129 -
Deferred tax lability {1.598) (2,06%)
Balance as at 31 December: land; Rs. | million (2017: | million) and building:
Rs. 157.52 million {2017: Rs, 158.50 million) &2 158,525 159,500

8.1  During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company sold its entire factory land and building of Singer Pakistan Limited and acvordingly
surplug on revaluation of the land and building have been transferred 1o equity. This includes balence of Rs. 202.753 million and Rs. 2.245
million representing surplus on the revaluation of the portion of land and building respectively earlier classified as investment property.

82  This includes balance of Rs. 153.49 million representing surplus on revaluation of buildings classified as investment property during the year
ended 31 December 2017. The balance was as of 30 June 2017 / stast of business on 01 July 2017, the date when the buildings were classified
as investment property.

8.3  The latest revaluation was carried omt on 31 December 2017. Freehold land was revalued on the basis of current market value wheress
building on freehold land was revalucd on the basis of depreciated mariet values. The most significant input into this valuation approach is
price per kanal for land and price per square foot for buildings and other assets.

2018 2017
Novte (Rupees in '000)
Long 1erm loans - Secured
Long term loans - Banking Company af 568,209 649,458
Long term loans - Non-banking Company o4 45312 -
Current maturity presented under current liabilitics 17 {281,250) {31,182)
732271 568,276

9.1  Long term finances utilized under mark-up arrangements from banking and non banking companies are composed of:

- 2018 2017 Tenure and basis of principal
Note Bank Name Facility Rupees Rupees Mark-up as per Agresment repayment
9.1.1 Sindh Bank Limited Term 568,209 649,458 3 Months KIBOR plus 3% per Balance payable in 7 semi-
Finance annum, payable quarterly. annually instalments ending on 16
Mareh 2022,
9,1.2 Pak Brunei Investment Term 445,312 - 3 Months KIBOR plus 3% per Balance payable in I5 quarterly
Company Finance annum, payable quarterly. ingtalments ending on 30 August

2022.

9,1,1 This facility is secured by way of first parri passu charge of Rs 1,267 million on present and future fixed assets of the Company and personal
guarantees of the directors of the Company. This facility has been obtained to meet long term working capital requirentents of the Company.

9.1.2 This facility is secured by way of first parri passu charge of Rs. 967 million on present and future fixed assets of the Company and personal

gugrantees of the directors of the Company. This facility has been obtained to meet long term working capital requirements and balance sheet
re-profiling of the Company.
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Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease

The future minimum lease payments and their present values 1o which the Company is committed under various Jease arrangements are as

follows:

2018 2007
Minimum Finance Present Minimum Finance Presem
lease charge value of lease charge value of
paynients minimum payments minimum
lease lease
payments payments
(Rupees in "000)
Not later than one year 28,885 - 5811 23014 20,974 3,574 17,400
Later than one year and not later
than five years 46,950 4,496 42,454 41,154 2,900 38,254
75838 10,307 - 65,528 62,128 6474 55,654

The above tepresents finance leases entered into with certain financial instiwtion for plant and machinery and vehicles. Monthly payments of
leases carry mark-up rates at KIBOR plus 1.5% 10 5% per annum (2017: KEBOR plus 1 % to 5% per ansum). KIBOR is one, three and six
months average ask side. At the year-end the applicable rates ranged between 8.43% to 14.07% (2017: 7.14% to 11%) per annum.

During the cutrent year, the Company entered into lease arrangements of assets amounting 1o Rs. 38.5 million. These obligations are payable in
monthly instalments of Rs. 0.13 million (o Rs. 0.53 million and carry mark-up rate at 6 month KIBOR plus 3% per annum.

The company iniends to acquire the assets at the end of the lease term through adjustment of lease security deposit. Taxes, repair and
maintenance and insurance costs are beme by the Company. ’

Employee retirement benefits

Classified under non-current Habitlries

Employee raiirement benefits - abligation
- Pension fund
- Gratuity fund - permaneat employces

Classified under non-current assets

Employee retirement benefits - obligation
- Pension fund

11.1

2018 2017
Note (Rupses in "000)
11.2 - 5713
112 42,480 31,723
42480 37,436
11.2 9,960 -

Pension scheme is available 10 all permanens full-time employees in the executive and manager grades including the full-time working

directors but excluding persons working as temporary, trainees or apprentice employees. Minimum years of service for qualifying to
pension is 15 years. Employces are entitled 1o Pension on retirement at 57 years of age. Gratuity to the permancnt employees is payable
on nonnal retirement at the age of 57 years, naturat death, etc. and is payable only on the minimumn completion of 3 yeafs of service
with the Company. Both of these benefits relate only to old employces of former Singer Pakistan Limited (before the effective daic of

amalgamation).

The details of employee retizement benefits based on actuarial valuations carried out by an independent actuary as at 31 December 2018

undes the Projected Unit Credit method are given below.

‘The principal assumptions used in the actuarial valuation are as follows: -

Penston Fund ) Gratuity
Permanent employees Field staff (unfunded)
2018 2017 s 2017 2018 2017
(%) (%) (%) (%) (%)} %)
1y Discount rate par snnum 1325 815 13.25 825 - 8.25
2) Expected per ansum ra1¢ of increase in
future salaries / commission 1125 6,25 1125 623 . 5.25
3 Expected rate of increase in pension Nil Nil
4) Morcality rates SLIC SLIC SLIC SLIC SLIC
{2001-05)-1 (2001-05)  (2001-08)-1 (2001-05) * (2001-05)
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Deferred income Note

Details of the movement in the halance

Balance as at 01 January

Gross balance of deferred income

Accumulated amortisation

Unamortized balance of deferred income as on 01 January

Transactions during the year

Sale and lease back arrangement 13.1
Grant for the asset recognized on business combination 13.2
Amartisation for the year
- on sale and lease back arrangement 13.1
- on grant 13.2

Unamortized balance of deferred income

Current portion of deferred income
- on sale and lease back arrangement 13.1
- on grant 13.2

Balance as at 31 December

Reconciliation:

Gross balance of deferred income
Accumulated amortisation
Unamortized balance of deferred income

Details of the closing balance

Unamortized balance of the excess of sale proceeds over the

carrying value of assets 13.1
Unamortized balance of grant 13.2
13.1

13.2

2018

2017

(Rupees in '000)

32,580 18,627
(16,868) (14,416)
15,712 4211

17,949 -

E 13,953
(5,236) (1,871)
(1,085) (581)
(6,321) (2,452)
27,340 15,712
(4,955) (1,871)
(2,170) (1,162)
(7,125) (3,033)
20,215 12,679
50,529 32.580

(23,189) (16,868)
27,340 15.712
15,053 2,340
12,287 13,372
27,340 15,712

The Company has entered in sale and lease back arrangements of specific items of plant and
machinery resulting in a deferred income (representing excess of sale proceeds over the carrying
amount of respective assets) of Rs. 17.95 million recognised during the year. The deferred income

will be amortized and recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the lease term.

Grant in aid represents the amount received from the World Bank under a project to phase out the
Ozone Depleting Substances (ODS) by acquiring asset (production facility) which manufactures
products that are free from such substances. This grant is classified as deferred income and is being
amortized over the useful life of the asset. Amortization for the year is based on 8.33% of the balance
in accordance with the depreciation charged on plant and machinery for which the grant was

received.
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Trade and other payables

Trade creditors

Bills payable

Accrued liabilities

Advance from dealers

Security deposits from dealers
Provisions in respect of warranty obligations
Sales tax and excise duty - net

Workers' profits participation fund
Workers' welfare fund

Advance from empleyees against vehicle
Income tax deducted at source

Payable to the provident fund

Others

Note
4.4

14.2

14.3

144
38
4.5

2018 2017
(Rupees in "000)

739,901 552,625
519,182 229,843
222,924 199,497
11,371 14,681
9,266 39,026
538 1,767
- 8,510
27,33 12,248
9,118 6,071
10,835 2,098
55,774 15,709
8,434 14,397
69,265 62,853
1,683,939 1,165,325

14.1 This includes balance of Rs. Nil (2017: Rs. 25.95 million) payable to Waves Marketing (Private)
Limited against purchase of goods (a subsidiary company).

14.2 The Company is in the process of transferring this amount to separate bank account to comply with

the requirements of Companies Act, 2017.

14.3 Workers' profits participation fund

Balance as at 01 January
Add: Allocation for the year

Interest on WPPF accrued during the year
Acquisition through business combination

Less: Payment made during the year
Balance as at 31 December

14.4 Amount of Rs. 27.38 million has been paid subsequent to year end.

Noie

32

2018 2017
(Rupees in "000)
12,248 6,682
27,331 9,947

498 437
- 2,301
40,077 19,367
(12,746) (7,119)
27,331 12,248

14.5 Included in other liabilities are provisions aggregating to Rs. 61.74 million (2017: Rs 61.74 million)
in respect of probable loss from pending litigation of the Company against Income Tax, Sales Tax
and Custom Authorities (the authorities). The above provisions have been made as per the
management’s best estimate against various demands raised by the authorities that are being contested

by the Company at various forums as explained in note 18.

Mark-up accrued on borrowings

Mark-up based borrowings from banking companies

- Long term loans - secured
- Short term borrowings - secured

- Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease

Mark-up based borrowings from non-banking companies

- Long term loan from financial institution

- Short term borrowing from financial institution

- Loan from a private group

Isfamic mode of borrowings
- Short term borrowings - secured

tebuui™y

2018

2017

(Rupees in '000)

19,655 12,445
62,837 36,068
. 447
5,101 -
. 17,653
. 975
19,745 6,178
97,338 73,766



2018 2017

16 Shert term borrowings Note (Rupecs in '000)

From banking companies - secured :
Running finance under mark-up arrangements 16.1 1,529,866 868,507

Finance against trust receipt : /6.3 1,032,528 837,277
Short term borrowings under Murahaba arrangement 16.4 197,892 306,101

From non banking companies

2,960,286 2,011,885

Short term borrowings from associated undertaking - unsecured  16.6 35,000 -

Short term borrowings from a financial institution - secured 16.7 - 725,000

Loan from a Private Group - unsecured 6.8 - 12,031
35,000 737,031

16.1

16.2

16.3

16.4

16.5

16.6

2,995,286 2,748,916

Particulars of borrowings

Interest / mark-up based borrowings 2,597,394 2,442,815
Islamic mode of borrowings 397,892 306,101
2895286 _ 3748916

Short term running finance

This represents utilized amount of short term running finance facilities under mark-up arrangements
availed from various commercial banks aggregating to Rs. 1,536 million (2017; Rs, 1,362 million).
These facilities are secured by way of equitable mortgage charge on owned shops, freehold land and
building on frechold land of the Company, charge over all current assets and fixed assets of the
Company and personal guarantees of the directors of the Company and carry mark-up ranging from
8.91% to 11.88% (2017: 7.65% to 9.15%) per annum, payable quarterly in arrears. These facilities
are expiring on various dates (Latest by March 2019 and maximum by September 2019).

Payment Against Trust Receipt

This represents Payment Against Trust Receipt (FATR) available from commercial banks aggregating
to Rs. 1,854 million (2017: 1,165 million), These facilities are secured against charge over all current
assets and fixed assets of the Company and personal guarantees of the directors of the Company and
catry mark-up rate ranging between 8.66% 10 12,94% (2017: 8.65% to 10.16%). These borrowings
are repayable between 26 February 2019 to 29 June 2019.

Islamic mode of borrowings

This represents utilized amount of Murabaha / [stisna borrowings available from banks aggregating to
Rs. 417 million (2017: Rs. 352 million). These facilities are secured against charge over all current
assets and fixed assets of the Company and personal guarantees of the directors of the Company and
carry mark-up rates ranging from 7.66% to 12.41% per annum (2017: 7.29% to 10.16%). These
borrowings are repayable between 13 January 2019 to 28 November 2019,

Unavailed credit facilities

The facilities for opening of letter of credits and guarantees as at 31 December 2018 amounted to Rs.
1,916 million of which remaining unutilized amount was Rs. 1,101 million.

Short term borrowings from associated undertaking

This represents an interest free loan obtained from Poseidon Synergies (Private) Limited, an
associated undertaking, for working capital requirement and is repayable on demand.
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16.7

Short term borrowings fram a financial institution

This represents short term finance facility from a Development Financial Institution up to a limit of
Rs. 725 million (2017: Rs. 725 million). This carries interest at 6 months KIBOR plus 350 basis
points per annum, carrying mark-up rates ranging from 9.66% to 10.54%. The amount was repayable
by 30 August 2018. The outstanding balance of Rs. 475 million as on 30 August 2018 was converted
into a long term finance facility as referred to in note 9.1,

16.8 Loan from a Private Group
During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company received Rs. 80 million from a Private
Group. The principal amount of Rs. 68 million was paid off by the company during the same year as
pet the agreed repayment schedule and remainitig amount was paid during the cument year. The
borrowing carried fixed profit at 26.15% per annum payable on quarterly basis for each principal
repayment.
2018 2017
Current portion of leng term liabilities . Note (Rupees in "000)
Long term loans - secured 9 281,250 81,182
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease 10 23,074 17,400
Defetred income _ i3 1,125 3,033

311,449 101,615

Contingencies and commitments

18.1
18.1.1

kemuy,

Contingencies

The Company has filed a Constitutional petition before the Honourable Sindh High Court at Karachi,
challenging the vires of Rule 58T of the Sales Tax Special Procedure Rules relating to 2% extra sales
tax on certain home appliances. This is based on the view that the said vires are not applicable on the
Company. The case is pending before the Honourable Sindh High Court. An interim order was
received in favour of the Company. The Company is confident that no liability is expected to occur.
Amount involved is Rs. 84.80 million as of 31 December 2018 against which no provision has been
made as the Company, based on the legal advisor's advice, is confident of a favourable decision,

During the financial year 2014, the Company received a show cause notice from the Federal Board of
Revenue (FBR) in respect of short payment of 2% exira sales tax under the Sales Tax Procedures
Rules, 2007 as amended by SRO. 896(1)/2013 dated 4 October 2013 and deduction of input tax more
than the limit defined under section 8 read with chapter IV of Sales Tax Rules, 2006. The tax
authority in the said notice raised a demand of Rs. 19.91 million and Rs. 11.15 million respectively
for the period from 1 January 2014 to 30 September 2014. The Company after consultation with its
tax advisors has replied and submitted explanation with the tax authorities along with revised
workings for the apportionment of input tax which in the case of the Company for the above period
was Rs. 0.52 million (regarding the 2% extra sales tax matter, please refer the above paragraph).
Since then, no further action has been initiated by the tax authorities.

The Company had earlier received a sales tax recovery order from the sales tax authorities amounting
to Rs. 195.63 million, for the financial year ended 31 December 2010 against which the Company
had filed an appeal with the Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A). CIR-A had deleted
one item while the remaining matters were set aside. Moreover, the management, based on
consultation with its tax advisor, is of the view that matter would be decided in favour of the
Company. However, CIR has filed an appeal against Company on the matters of SRO 647/2007
regarding input tax adjustments against 90% output tax and payment of sales tax on instalment sales
at the time of receipt of instalment instead at the time when instalment sales are actually being made
for which no hearing has yet taken place. Amount involved is Rs. 171.71 mitlion. However, as
mentioned above no potential liability is expected to oceur.



18.1.2

18.1.3

18.1.4

18.1.5

Income tax assessments of the Company have been finalised up to and including the tax year 2007.
The Company had applied for Income tax refund for the tax years from 2006 to 2011. Income tax
refund orders were earlier determined for the tax years 2009, 2010 and 2011. Income tax refund was
released for the tax year 2009. However, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR)
amended the decmed assessed orders under section 122 (5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for
the tax years from 2009 to 2012 and raised additional income tax demand of Rs. 19.98 million.
However, the Company had filed an application for the rectification of orders after which the net tax
additional demand was reduced to Rs. 2.02 million (after the adjustment of the refund of related
years) under scction 221 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Appeals have been filed to
Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A) against these orders.

Company has received appellate orders for the tax years from 2009 to 2012, dated 29 June 2015,
where the CIR-A has set aside certain issues for reassessment, deleted certain items and maintained
certain disallowances. The financial impact of the items set aside for reassessment and continued
disallowances amount to Rs, 43.72 million. Appeal has been filed with Appellate Tribunal Inland
Revenue (ATIR) against these issues. The Company based on the merits of matters is of the view that
ultimate decisions are expected in its favour. However, adequate provision is held in the
unconsolidated financial statements in respect of the above balance.

The Finance Act, 2017 introduced a tax under section 5A of the Income Tax ordinance, 2001 on
every pubic company other than a scheduled bank or Modarba, that derives profit for the tax year and
does not distribute at least 40% of the after tax profit within six months of the end of said tax year
through cash or bonus issue. Under the earlier section tax was not mandatorily leviable in case the
Company's reserves were not in excess of the paid up capital (which was the case with the Company
as it had accumulated losses), Provision for the above referred tax amounting to Rs, 9,35 million has
not been paid as the Company's management is of the view that the amendment was made after the
closure of Company's financial year ended 31 December 2016 and for certain other legal reasons. The
Company has filed a Constitutional petition before the Honourable Sindh High Court at Karachi
challenging the vires of Section 5A of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and a stay order has been
granted against any coercive action against the Company under the newly inserted Section SA.

Former - Cool Industries (Private) Limited (CIPL)

The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR), via order dated 30 April 2014, under section
161(1) and 205(3) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the tax year 2014 raised a tax demand of
Rs. 0.83 million for non deduction of advance income tax for the period from 01 November 2013 to
30 April 2014 under section 236(G) and 236(H) of the aforesaid Ordinance. CIPL filed an appeal
before the Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A) which was remanded back to DCIR.
The Company filed an appeal against the order of CIR-A in Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue
(ATIR), which is pending adjudication. However, adequate provision is held in the unconsolidated
financial statements in respect of the above balance.

During the financial year 2015, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR), vide order
dated 30 April 2015, under section 122(5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the tax year
2010, raised an amended demand of Rs, 7.85 million after disallowing certain expenses amounting to
Rs. 29.15 million. CIPL filed an appeal for the rectification of order before Commissioner Inland
Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A) who vide its order dated 30 December 2015 deleted certain items
amounting to Rs. 19.94 million, ACIR has filed an appeal before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue
(ATIR) against the order of CIR-A which is pending adjudication. However, adequate provision is
held in the unconsolidated financial statements in respect of the above balance.



18.1.6

18.1.7

18.1.8

18.1.9

18.1.10

18.1.11

During the financial year 2014, the Company received a notice by Commissioner Inland Revenue -
Zone 1 for selection of audit under section 214C for the tax year 2012. The Company filed an appeal
against the said notice before Honourable Lahore High Court which was decided against the
Company and audit proceedings were initiated. The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue issued an
amended assessment order under section 122(1) and 122(5) through which certain additions were
made and demand order was raised amounting to Rs. 48.10 million. Being aggrieved, the Company
has filed an appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A) against the above order
which is pending adjudication.

During the year, the Company received a show cause notice issued by Deputy Commissioner Inland
Revenue under section 161 for the tax year 2017 on non deduction of withholding tax amounting to
Rs. 6.03 million on payments against purchase of plant and machinery, packing material and other
miscellaneous payments. The Company filed an appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue -
Appeals (CIR-A) where the case was remanded back to the Department, Being aggrieved, the
Company filed an appeal before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) which is pending
adjudication.

The Taxation Officer, after conducting audit under section 177 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001
(the Ordinance) for the tax year 2014, passed an amended assessment order under section 122 of the
Ordinance raising tax demands of Rs. 25.29 million during the year alleging that the Company
suppressed its sales and adjusted inadmissible expenses. Being aggrieved, the Company has filed
appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A).

Former - Link Wel (Private) Limited (LWPL)

During the financial year 2016, the Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue raised an order under
section 161/205 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for non-deduction of tax amounting Rs. 6.45
million and Rs. 3.76 million for tax years 2009 and 2010 respectively. CIPL filed an appeal before
the Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A) which was decided against the Company. The
Company filed an appeal against the order of CIR-A in Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR),
which is pending for adjudication. However, adequate provision is held in the unconsolidated
financial statements in respect of the above balance.

During the financial year 2017, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) amended the
deemed assessed return vide its order dated 19 June 2017 under section 122(5A) of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 for the tax year 2011, The ACIR disallowed certain expenses amounting to Rs. 9.58
million and raised the additional income tax demand of Rs. 1.02 million. LWPL filed an appeal
before the Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A) which is pending for adjudication.
However, adequate provision is held in the unconsolidated financial statements in respect of the
above balance.

During the financial year 2014, the Assistant Commissioner Inland Revenue imposed penalty vide
order dated 27 April 2014 under section 182(1) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 amounting Rs.
0.91 million for the tax year 2013 for the late filling of income tax return under section 114 of the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. LWPL filed an appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals
(CIR-A) against the above order. The CIR-A decided the matter against LWPL vide order dated 25
March 2014. LWPL filed an appeal before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) against the
order of CIR-A which is pending adjudication. However, adequate provision is held in the
unconsolidated financial statements in respect of the above balance.



18.1.12

18.1.13

18.1.14

18.1.15

During the financial year 2017, Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) issued an amended
assessment order under section 161/205 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and certain additions
were made due to non-deduction of withholding tax amounting Rs 122.54 million for tax year 2015,
The Company filed an appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A) against the
order where the Company was granted stay of tax demand. The CIR-A passed an order in which
demand against purchases and discounts have been deleted and amended demand of Rs. 33.85 million
has been raised. LWPL filed an appeal before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) against the
order which is pending adjudication. However, adequate provision is held in the unconsolidated
financial statements in respect of the above balance.

During the year, the Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) issued an amended assessment
order under section 122(1) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 raising a tax demand of Rs. 30.41
million for the tax year 2015. Being aggrieved, the Company filed an appeal before Commissioner
Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A) against the order. The CIR-A, via order dated 27 July 2018,
directed DCIR to apply minimum tax under section 113 at the rate of 0.2% instead of 1% and
remanded back the case to DCIR. LWPL filed an appeal before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue
(ATIR) against the order which is pending adjudication.

During the year, the Company received three show cause notices issued by Additional Collector
Customs for payment of Rs 7.33 million and Rs. 6.18 million against Goods Declaration No. LAPR-
EB-20087-25-05-2018 and Goods Declaration No. LAPR-EB-22231-27-06-2018 respectively
alleging short payment due to misclassification of imported glass for refrigerator doors outer part.
The Company is in process of making suitable response against the said notices.

During the year, the Company received a show cause notice issued by Collector of Customs for
payment of Rs. 9.42 million alleging that the Company cleared consignment of Polymethylene
Isocynate by erroneously taking benefit of SRO 659/2007 dated 30 June 2007. The Company is in
process of making suitable response against the said notice.

Based on the opinion of the legal and tax advisors handling the above litigations, the management believes that
the Company has strong legal grounds against each case and that no financial liability is expected to accrue.
Accordingly, no provision (in addition to already held in respect of certain cases of former CIPL and former
LWPL as explained above) has been made in these financial statements.

18.2

18.2.1

18.2.2

18.2.3

Commitments

Commitments, for the import of stock in trade, outstanding at year end were for Rs. 247.88 million
(2017: Rs. 516.75 million).

Commitments, for capital expenditure, against irrevocable letters of credit outstanding at year end
were for Rs. 14.33 million (2017: Rs. Nil)..

Commitments in respect of Ijarah rentals payable in future period as at 31 December 2018 amounted
to Rs. 0.76 million (2017; Rs, 2.38 million) for vehicles and plant and machinery,

2018 2017
(Rupees in '000)
Not later than one year 764 1.447
Later than one year and not later than five years - 931
764 2,378
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19.1.1

19.1.2

19.1.3

19.1.4

19.1.5

192

Had there been no revaluation of the freehold land and buildings thereon, the net book value as of 31 December

2018 would have been as follows:

Land
Buildings

2018 2m7
(Rupees in *000)

2,364,500 2,364,500
431,922

393,316
256 __ 219642

The latest revaluation was carried on 31 December 2017 by Asif Associates (Private) Limited. As per the
revaluation report, forced sale value of frechold land and buildings on free hold land was Rs. 2,128.10 million and

Rs, 287.70 million respectively.

Particulars of immovable property (i.e. land and building) in the name of Company are as follows:

) Total arca Covered area
Location Usage of immovable property (Kanals) (Square Feet)
9-K.M, Hanjarwal, Multan Road, Lahore,  Head Office and manufacturing
facility 61.90 340,134
Dina Nath, Mouza Rakh Serai Cheenba,
Tehsil Patioki, District Kasur. Manufacturing facility 845 18,069
2018 2017
Note (Rupees in *000)
Depreciation for the year has been allocated 2s follows:
Cost of sales 29.1 108,080 70,283
Marketing, selling and distribution costs 30 16,343 29,726
Administrative expenses 31 33,327 15,850
157,750 115,859

el e

During the year, fire at production facility damaged certain items of property, plant and equipment with canrying
value of Rs. 249.78 million. The Company has received claim against such loss from its insurance provider in

accordance with relevant insurance policies as referred to in note 32.1

Capital work-in-progress

Balance as at 01 January

Additions during the year

Acquisition through business combination
Transfers to operating fixed assets
Balance as at 31 December

Breakup of capitat work in progress is as follows:
~ Building

- Plant and machinery

~ Electric installation

- Advance against purchase of land / vehicle

il

2018 2017
(Rupces in '000)
86,363 72,148
128,853 72,762
- 86,561
(181,709) {145,108)

T sy 636

3,770 -
18,400 85,364

1,155 -
10,182 999
33,507 86,363



193  Disposal of operating fixed assets

Cost/

Particrlars of Particutars of Relationship with Revalued Net hook Netsale  Gain / (loss) on Mode of
asiets parchaser Company value proceads disposal dispasal
amount
(Rugpees in "¢33)
Buiidlag Jubilee Insurance Insurance provider 61,555 60016
Plant ang machinery Jubilee Insurance fnsurance provider | 190,845 177.597 242939 (6,838) | Insurance clairm
Furaitoes gad cavloment Jubilee [nsurance insucance provider 13,513 12,164
265,912 249777 242939 (6,838)
Plant and machingry
Phasphate Tank Zohaib Third party sale 1,020 [ 152 ()| Wegotiation
Water Rising Tank Zohaib -do- 428 s 152 (163) -do-
55 Tank Zohaib -do+ 1,156 1.003 152 {851) -do-
Paint Shop Oven Zohaib -do- 1,481 1,310 187 (1,123) +do.
Heat Exchange System For Qven  Zohaib ~do- 2,600 2,375 250 {2,125} -do-
Power Tester Zohaib -do- 9 75 6 (69} -do-
Hydrolic Press Assyline Zohaib -do- 2,124 363 55 (308)] ~da-
Television Machinery Zohaib -do- 15,466 3387 397 {2,991} =do-
Green Gas Plam Zohaib ~do- L1712 - 46 16 -do-
Motching Mzchine Zohaib -do- 10,696 998 275 (723} -do-
Water Tank Zohaib -do- 440 215 11 (204} =do -
ulpuren

Glass Parition Zohaib -do- { 396 ][ 97]] 66 [ Gyl -de-
Yehkcles
Jaguar Car Salman Mahboob Third party sale 2,000 1,467 3,800 2333 Negoliation
Toyota Corolla Yasin Amin Sundal -do- 1,000 783 1,300 517 ~do -
Honda City Yagin Amin Sundal -do- 1,000 783 976 193 -do-
Toyota Corolla GLi Yasin Amin Sundal -do- - 860 627 873 b2 13 add -
Suzuki Cultus Yasin Anvin Sundal -do- 350 27 407 133 -do -
Suzuki Mehran Yagin Amin Sundal -do~ 50 274 267 (7) -do .
Suzuki Alto Yasin Amin Sundal -do- 350 274 33 39 -do-
Suzuki Alto Yagin Amin Sundal -do- 150 24 kri} 47 -do-
Suzuki Alo Yasin Amin Sundal +do- 350 2% 308 34 -do-
Suzuki Alto Yasin Aniin Sundal -do- 250 196 236 40 -da-
Honda CG 125 Muhammad Iftikhar -do- 40 30 40 10 -do -
Honda CD 70 Muhammad Zaman «do- X 15 19 4 -do-
Honda CD 70 Muhamiad Zaman -do- p-1J 15 9 4 =do-
Yamaha Muhammad Zaman -do- [} 14 19 5 -do-
Honda CD 70 Muhammad Zaman -do- 15 It 13 2 -do-
Honda CD 70 Muhammad Zaman ~da- 15 n 13 2 -do-
Honda CD 70 Muhamnd Zaman -do - 15 1] i3 2 -do-
Honda CD 70 Muhammad Zaman -do- 15 n 13 b ~do-
Honda CD 70 Muhaminad Zaman ado- 15 1 13 2 ~do-
Pak Hero 70 Muhammad Zaman -do- 15 t 14 3 -do-
Fak Hero 70 Muhammad Zaman ~do- 15 11 14 3 ~-do-
Honda CD 70 Muhammad Zaman ~do- 10 8 9 | «dos
Honda CD 70 Mubammad Zaman ~do- 10 8 9 1 -do -
Honda CD 70 Muhammiwd Zaman «do- 10 8 9 1 «do.
Honda CD 70 Mubammiad Zaman -dio- 8 ] 7 1 -do -
Pak Hero 70 Muhamiriad Nasir -do- 5 4 7 3 -do-
Suar DS 70 Muhammad Nasir ~do- . H 4 ? 3 -do-
Star DS 70 Muhamtnad Nagir -do. ‘s 4 ? 3 -do-
Honda CD 70 Mubamad Zaman ~do- 5 4 s ] -do-
Pak Hero 70 Muhammad Zaman -da- 5 4 5 1 -do-
Pak Hero 70 Muhammad Zaman -do- 5 4 5 1 -do-
Pak Hero 70 Muhammad Zaman -do- 5 4 5 1 -do-
Soheab 70 Muhammad Magir «da- 3 2 7 5 -do-
Yamaha 70 Muhammad Zaman «do- 3 2 3 1 -do-
Sohrab 70 Arshad Ali «do- k] 2 5 49 -do-
Suzuki Cultus Massoor Ahmed -do- 712 356 400 “4 ~do-
Suzuki Swift DLX EFL] General [nsurance  Insurance provider 1,463 1,341 1,300 @yl _-do-
Dekstops, laptops and printers  Rahat Camputers Thied party sale [ 1802 | a5~ _25][ Wegotistion |

2018 S 261937 S0 (L)

2017 3012, 461 510, GTH
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wis 017

Nate (Rupees In "840)
Tmtangibie axseis and gosdwill .
Software . 6474 18,716
Gaodwill 1.070,706 1,070,206
Brand value 1582147 1.582,147
= lationships (subsidiary company) = =

it 3,869,034 LE71.063
20,1 Reconciliotion af carrying omoums

10.3

Customer
Deserlpiion Nose Sofiware Goodwill Heand value '("":m:::’ Total

tampany)

(Rupees in "000)

Con : (Revised) {(Revited) {Revived)
Balnace o1 01 Jansary 2017 19,761 . - - 49,761
Acquisition threugh
busingss combinaton - provisional 202 - 2,975,122 - - 2975,122
Balance a1 31 December 2017 . 49,761 297512 - - 3,014,883
Allocation of intangible assets 0.2 - (1,904,916) 1,582,147 322,769 .
Teansfer to i in subsidiary 21 - . - {311,768 (322.?69!
Batante a5 at 31 December 2007 . 49,761 1,070,206 1582147 - L0LI4
Additons during the year 27406 - - . 27406
Balzece at 31 December 1018 'nllsr _m [ 147 - 51'19&
ACCHINN AT e ot RATTON SN I f i
Balance 11 01 January 2017 : ' {27.416) . - . (27.416)
Amortisation for the year (3:629) . - - (3.629)
Balanse ot 31 December 3017 {11,045) - - - {31,045)
Amonisatioa for the year (9.443) . - + . (9.434)
Balssre at 31 December 1618 (40489 - B - [089)
Carrying amounts:
Al 31 December 2017 _18s 1,070,206 1,562,147 - 2.671.06%
At 31 Dececnber 2008 ﬁ‘ﬂ Iﬂyﬂi l&ilﬂ - 2&&1
Rates of amoriization 10.20% Nil Nil L0.5 years

Goodwill and ether tntangibie 2sseds acquired in butdness combination

Effective 01 July 2017, Singer Pakitian Limited (Tthe Company™) completed a “Scheme of Ammangement’ a4 app d by the Hi e Sindh High Coun through its Order
died 22 May 2018 for the amalgamation of Coal Indasmies (Private) Limited [CIPL) and Link Wed (Private) Limited [LWPL] with and ineo the Company and demerger of
retail business from the Campany and amalyamate the same into the subsidiary, This repressats excess of the amount paid over the fiir value of the net assets of CIPL, and
LWEL on ity acquisitian as of the start of business on 01 July 2017, Internatianal Financiol Reporting Suandard 3, (IFRS 3) “Busincss Combinations”, requincs that all
identified nasets and liabilities stquired in 2 business combination should be carried at fair values in the acquirer’s sutersent of financial position and any intangible asses
atquired in the businets combination are tequired (o be separately recoguised and carried gt fair values. FRS 3 allows the acquirer a maximum pesiod of one year from the
dae of acquisition 1o finalite the determination of the faie values of the acsets and Nabilithes and to detennine the valse of zny inangible assets scparately ideatified. The fair
walustion exercise of the recorded tangible assets and lishilities was completed a1 the time of acquisition resuhing in recognitian of provisicna) goodwill ameunting to Rs.
2,975.12 million #¢ the detenminstion of separately identifiable imangidle assers wad in progoess atas 31 December 1017,

During the year, the Cempany engaged an independent valaer for determination of separntcly identifiable intangible ancs. Bated oa the valustion report, provisianal
geodwill has been allocated to ‘Goodwill' ansounting to Rs.1,070.21 million, 'Brand valus' amoanting to Rs. 1,582.15 million and ‘Customers relations’ (Subsidiary cofmparty)
ameunting to Rs. 322.77 million inkine with the requirements of ntemational Accaunting Standard 38, (IAS-38) ‘Iuangible Assets’. As at 30 June 2017, e Company, infine
with the requirements of IFRS 3 relating to change in recognition of aeeets and lisbilisies within measurement period, has retrospectively adjusted he change i provisioaal
amount recognized a1 the sequisition dote to reflect new iafonmation obtained about facts and circumstances that exisied as of the acquisition dste. Accordingly, comparitive
infornation has been revised due v recognitiaa of additianal intongible assets as tabulated in note 20.) above.

Fallowing key assumption has been usced for valuation of ‘Brand volue and ‘Customer relations’, wheteas ‘Gooduill has been taken as differential amount:

Brand value:
FM'BmdvaIue,'Rnyaliynunmhod’hnshmmdwiﬂlmyahyraleofu%omomdmmmf«umdzmmfmchimml?hiﬂnmﬁnnl
growth rate for cevettus of 3% from fimancial year 2023 1o 2037, discount rate of 1 7.66% with an infinite uschul life.

Customer relationships (Subsidiory company):

Fot ‘Customer relationships, ‘Multi period excess caming method' bhas been used with iteration rate of 2.5%, compound annual growth rate for revenus of 22% from financial
year 2017 10 2022, terminal growih rate for revenice of 3% from Rnancial year 2023 to 2027, discount rate of 17.66%% with useful life of 10.5 years.

Impairment testing
mmmmemmo“omnmmngmmm:mmuMumdmwmm&ummmmwmmammwmmmwm
impairoent a3 a1 31 December 2018, by allocating the amount of goodwill and intnagible assets to respective assets on which i arose, based on valuc in use in accordance

willumszs"Impaimmofﬁmu‘.Therecovmhlemmwuml:uhwdmduhuisdﬁumuhuhmplmapmdlvymcnonrdorbinmuwhichiududcu
comprehensive analysis of existing operational deployments of the Company aleng with qic busiaess plans and business growth. The value in use caleriations are based
mcﬁﬂwwnjnﬁmmmmu‘ﬂemmmn%mumwmﬂﬁwmwnﬁnauﬂdySAMMm.mmhMm
discoutited wsing 2 discoum saie of 14.99% (goadwill) and 18.43% (intangibles) for use in calculation of vabue in use which is seusitive to discount rate and Jocal inflation
ses. Blased on this cabendation no impainment is requited 0 be sccounted for againgt the camying amount of goodwill and ather intangible asscts.

1018 017
Amartisation for the year has been allocared as follows:; Nate {(Rupees in *000)
Marketing, sclling and diswibution costs . 0 753 3,266
Adminisgative expenses i i 1,905 363
X XN

(FX S VIPriy]
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Investment property

The Company has rented out the owned shops to its subsidiary company {Electronic Marketing Company
(Private) Limited}, effective from 01 July 2017, the effective date of the Scheme of Arrangement. Balance as of
31 December 2018 comprised of shops of Rs. 173.50 million (2017: Rs 169.63 million) and revaluation gain of
Rs. 4.80 million (2017: Rs 3.87 million) based on the revaluation / fair value of the owned shops determined on
31 December 2018. This change in the fair value is recognized in the statement of profit or loss as 'Other
income' as referred to in note 33.

Rent income of Rs. 4.08 million (2017: Rs 1.92 million) has been recognized on the above property during the
vear ended 31 December 2018. Agreements for the rent are valid up to 10 years and are renewable. Surplus on
revaluation of the above properties amounting to Rs 153.49 million as of 30 June 2017 continues to be
maintained in the "Surplus on Revaluation of assets” mentioned in note 8 to these unconsolidated financial
statements.

The fair value of investment properties as of 31 December 2018 has been determined by an external independent
property valuer M/s Asif Associates (Private) Limited based on independent inquiries from active local realtors,
recent experience in the location and the records of the valuer. The fair value measurement of the investment
property had been categorized as a level 3 fair value based on the input to the valuation technique used.

2018 2017
Investment In subsidiaries Note (Rupees in '000)
(Revised)

Electronics Marketing Company (Private) Limited - at cost

2,500,000 (2017: 2,500,000) fully paid ordinary

shares of Rs. 10 each 22,7 250,000 250,000
Equity held: 100% (2017: 100%)
Chief Executive Officer - Nadeem Mahmood Butt

Waves Marketing (Private) Limited 222 323,769 323,769
Equity held: 100% (2017: 100%)
Chief Executive Officer - Moazzam Ahmad Khan

573.769 573,769

22.1  Electronics Marketing Company (Private) . Limited (EMCPL), a wholly owned subsidiary, was
incorporated on 09 September 2016, The principal activity of the subsidiary company is to carry out
distribution / wholesales and retail business of all kinds of electronic appliances, its components and
accessories ete. The registered office of the subsidiary company is located at 10th Floor, Right Wing,
NIC Building, Abbasi Shaheed Road, Karachi. Net assets of the subsidiary company as at 31 December
2018 were Rs. 265.15 million.

222 Waves Marketing (Private) Limited (WMPL), a wholly owned subsidiary, was incorporated on 10 April
2017. The principal activity of the subsidiary company is to carry out businesses of distributors,
marketers, merchants, wholesalers, retailers, traders, indentures, stockiest, suppliers, agent for product
of manufacturers of other principals, local or foreign. The registered office of the subsidiary company is
located at 15/3 A, Model Town, Lahore. Net assets of the subsidiary company as at 31 December 2018
were Rs, 68.47 million. Investment comprises of 100,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each and fair value
of customer relationships acquired of Rs. 322,77 million.
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2018 2017

Note (Rupees in '000)
23 Long term deposits
Deposits
- leases 2,752 9,572
- other long term deposits 1,427 1,427
4,179 10,999
24 Stock-in-trade
Raw and packing materials
- in stores (in hand) 637,537 494,510
- in third party premises - 7,677
- in bonded warehouse 24.1 341,054 477,664
- in transit 639,419 229,841
1,618,010 1,209,692
Work in process 164,841 161,946
Finished goods
- own manufactured 242 950,659 1,025,714
- purchased for resale 287,668 192,055
1,238,327 1,217,769
Provision for slow moving and damaged stock 24.3 (29,868) (29,868)
' 2,991,310 2,559,539
24.1  Stock amounting to Rs. 65.63 million (2017: Rs. 426.42) million was cleared subsequent to the year end.
24,2 Finished goods having cost of Rs. 424.16 million (2017: Rs. 589.66 million) have been written down by
Rs. 5.34 million (2017: Rs. 32.79 million) to its net realizable value.
2018 2017
(Rupees in '000)
24.3  Movement in provision for slow moving
and damaged stock
Balance as at 01 January 29,868 28,078
Provision for the year - 1,790
Balance as at 31 December 29,868 29,868
244 During the year, fire at production facility damaged certain items of stock in trade with carrying value of

T

Rs. 186.10 million. The Company has received claim against such loss from its insurance provider in
accordance with relevant insurance policies as referred to in note 32.1
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25  Treade debis Note {Rupees in *000)
25.1  Retail network - unsecured
Considered good
Hire purchase
= Retail - 611,695
- Institwiional (employees of the cocporale entitics) - 160,778
- 772,473
Unearned carrying charges - (62,859)
- 709,614
Considered doubtful 166,993 166,993
166,993 876,607
Provision for doubtful debts and other receivables (166,993) {166,993)
- 709,614
Assets transferred to the subsidiary company
under the Scheme of Arrangement ' 253 - (109,614)
25.2  Wheolesale - unsecured
Dealers
Considered good ' 25.4 1,982,771t 1,285,791
Considered doubtful 33,321 23,433
2,016,592 1,309,224
Balance transferred to the subsidiary company under the .
Scheme of Amrangement (balance as of 30 June 2017) - {14,860)
2,016,592 1,294,364
Provision for doubtful debts 25.6 (33,821} (23,433)
1,982,771 1,270,931

25.3  Under the Scheme of Arrangement effective 01 July 2017 as explained in note 2, the trade balance of retail network net of
provision was transferred to Electronics Marketing Company (Private) Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary.

254  This includes related parties from whom the debts are due and their ageing is as under:

Lessthan 1 o onths  Crodter than 6 2018 2017
months . maonths
Rupees ‘000
Waves Marketing (Private)
Limited {WMPL) 405,738 695,777 - 1,101,515 52915
Electronics Marketing Company
{Private) Limited (EMCPL) 169,704 394,046 69,958 633,708 248,106
575442 1,089,823 69,958 1,735,223 777,821
255 Maximum outstanding balance with reference to month end balances:
In the | In the 2018 2017
month of month of (Rupees in '000)
Waves Marketing (Private) Limited (WMPL) May-18 Dec-17 2,733,577 529,715
Electronics Matketing Company (Private)
Limited (EMCPL) ~ Dec-18 Dec-17 607,321 248,106
2018 2017
{Rupees in *000)
25.6 Movement in provision for doubtful debts
Balance as at 0] January 190,426 177,580
Provision for the year 10,388 12,846
Balance as at 31 December 200,814 190,426
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2018 27
Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables Note (Rupees in '000)
Advances - considered good
- Employees and executives 26.1 6,527 7,700
= Suppliers 5,054 32,609
- Against letter of cradit 4,107 53,565
15,688 45874
Deposits
~ Shops and leases 18,069 337
= Customs 5,761 23,197
- Lhilities : - 18,749
= Others 611 900
' 24,451 43,183
Prepayments 7311 4,948
Other receivables
= Claims 246.2 12,201 15,893
~ Sales 1ax refundsble 37,928 -
= Receivable from subsidiary companies 26.3 916,138 660,104
1,026,267 675,997
Provision for doubtful other receivables 26.4 {11,572) {11,572)
| 2.5 1062165 78430
26.1 At 31 December 2018, the advances due from execulives amounted to Rs. 0.12 million (2017: Rs.0.29 million). The
maximum aggregaic amount of advances due from executives at the end of any month during the year was Rs. 0.29 million
(2017: Rs. 0.29 millien). '
26.2  This represents claims receivable from insurance companies, suppliers and product claims amounting to Rs. 12.20 million
(2017: Rs. 15.89 million) against which provision of Rs. 1 1.57 million (2017: Rs. 11.57 million) is held.
26.3  This represents amounts due from subsidiary companies, on account of expenses allocated 1o them / incurred on their behalf in

accordance to a basis approved by the Board of Directors of the Company, Cut of total receivable of Rs, §60.10 mitlion as at
31 December 2017, Rs, 362.25 million due for the retail businass transferred 1o the subsidiary company under the Scheme of
Arrangement net of recoveries during the six months period ended 31 December 2017 and Rs. 1.92 miltion for rent receivable,
The balance is unsecused and receivable on demand.

26.3.1 Ageing of the receivable is as under:

Less than 6 Greater than 6 2018 2017
months maonths
Rupees ‘000
Waves Marketing (Private) : '
Limited (WMPL) 353,388 - 353,388 .
Ekectronics Marketing Company
(Private) Limited (EMCPL) 572,750 - 572,750 660,104
26.3.2 Maximum outstanding balance with reference to month ead balances:
Tn the " Inthe
7
moath of month of a8 2o
Waves Marketing (Private) Limited (WMPL) Dec-18 - 353,388 .
Electronics Marketing Company (Privale) :
Limited (EMCPL) Dec-18 Dec-17 572,750 660,104
2018 2017
264  Mavement in provision for doubtful other receivables (Rupees in '000)
Balance as at 01 January 11,572 9,407
Provision for the year - 2,165
Balance as at 31 December 11!512 ll£572
26.5  All the above balances are intcrest free and unsecured other than in note 26.3

V5 VEAACN



27 Cash and bank balances _ Note

Balances with banks

- in current accounts o 27.1

- in profit and loss sharing account 27.2
Cash in hand ' : 27.3
27.1

27.2  Rate of return on saving accounts range from 3.5% to 5% (2017: 3%) per annum.
27.3  This includes cash in transit of Rs. 9.25 million (2017: Rs. 84.70 million) representing the balance
held with the outlets and were deposited in the bank accounts subsequent to the year end.
2018 2017
28 Net revenue o Note (Rupees in "000)
Sales
- local 8,839,696 4,241,624
- export 14,186 2,419
Sales return {17,988) {19,395)
8,835,894 4,224,648
Sales tax {966,824) (480,559)
Trade discount (1,879,460) (737,572)
(2,846,284) (1,218,131)
29 Cost of sales
Opening stock - finished goods
- own manufactured 1,025,714 285,313
- purchased for resale 192,055 52,324
1,217,769 337,637
Purchases 659,215 486,553
Acquisition through business combination - 540,379
Cost of goods manufactured 29.1 4,784,505 2,474,828
6,661,489 3,839,397
Closing stack - finished goods
- own manufactured (950,659) (1,025,714)
- purchased for resale (287,668 (192,055)
(1,238,327) (1,217,769)
Less: Export rebate (54) (497}
YR X TNEY
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2018 2017
(Rupees in '000)
.21 150,606
40,349 407
74,570 151,013
16,090 92,160
90,660 243,173

—_—t——

These include bank account of Rs. 0.31 million (2017: Rs. 1.93) maintained under Shariah

compliant arrangement.
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29.1  Cost of goods manufactured

Raw and packing materials and stores consumed

Salaries, wages and other benefits

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

Fuel and power
Insurance expense
Repairs and maintenance
Printing and stationery

Provision against slow moving and damaged stock

Travelling and conveyance
Rent, rates and taxes
Communication
Entertainment

Work-in-process

Opening stock

Acquisition through business combination
Closing stock

Cost of goods manufactured

Note

20.1.1
1914

243

2018 2017
{Rupees in '000)
4,110,226 2,110,850
383,298 229,161
108,080 70,283
67,215 40,328
18,433 9,733
32,117 10,104
16,183 4,769
- 1,790
3,498 1,793
46,736 679
886 657
728 -
4,787,400 2,480,187
161,946 36,023
- 120,564
{164,841 {161,946)
(2,895) (5,359)
4,784,505 2,474,828

29.1.1 These include provision of Rs. 2.84 million (2017: Rs. 0.76 million), Rs. 1.84 million (2017: Rs. 0.50
million) and Rs, 9.51 million (2017: Rs. 2.56 million) in respect of gratuity, pension and provident

funds respectively.

Marketing, selling and distribution costs

Salaries and benefits

Salaries and benefits - sales staff
Rent, rates and taxes

Publicity and sales promotion
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Warranty obligations

Freight charges

Utilities

Printing and stationery
Travelling and conveyance
Amortisation of intangible assets
Communication

Repair and maintenance
Training and sundries

Insurance expense

Others

Note

30!
301
19.1.4

30.7

203

2018

2017

(Rupees in '000)

43,797 69,003
20,004 45,324
24,524 48,203
28,976 39,172
16,343 29,726
7,718 19,975
15,645 20,057
4,875 6,743
3,071 5,854
7,454 5,777
7,536 3,266
3,670 1,600
154 1,015
621 1,009
344 738
261 -
185,083 297,462

30.1 These include provision of Rs. 2.40 million (2017: Rs. 2.20 millicn), Rs. 1.55 million (2017: Rs. 1.42
million) and Rs. 2.16 million (2017: Rs. 4.55 million) in respect of gratuity, pension and provident

funds respectively.




2018 2017

Administrative expenses Note (Rupees in '000)
Salaries and benefits 311 31,979 60,172
Legal and professional charges 38,001 25,841
Auditors' remuneration 31.3 3,790 3,750
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 19.1.4 33,327 15,850
Communication 2,537 4,661
Travelling and conveyance 2,991 3,844
Repair and maintenance 806 3,408
Utilities 1,709 3,274
Printing and stationery 1,876 2,295
Rent, rates and taxes . 3,227 1,980
Insurance expense 1,306 1,642
Entertainment expense 424 708
Fees and subscription 906 663
Amortisation of intangible assets 20.3 1,909 363
Charity and donations 312 470 56
Others 355 -
125,613 128,512

31.1  These include provision of Rs. 2.40 million (2017: Rs. 0.56 million), Rs. 1.55 million (2017: Rs, 0.36
million) and Rs. 1.87 million (2017: Rs. .44 million) in respect of gratuity, pension and provident funds
respectively.

31.2  None of the donations were made to an entity in which any director or his / her spouse had an interest.

2018 2017
(Rupees in "000)
3.3 Auditors' remuncration

Audit fee 2,500 2,090
Audit fee for the six months period ended 30 June 2017 - 500
Fee for the review of interim financial information 385 135
Fee for the review of code of corporate governance and
other certifications/ reports under agreed upon procedures 320 440
Out of pocket expenses 585 585
3,790 3,750
Other expenses Note
Provision for doubtful debts and others assets - net 256& 264 10,388 15,011
Workers' profits participation fund (WPPF) 14.3 27,331 9,947
Exchange loss - net 44,459 13,632
Research and development expenditure 3,637 1,591
ljarah rentals 1,447 1,447
Workers' welfare fund 9,118 3,581
Loss on property, plant and equipment and equipment
- due to fire 2.0 6,838 -
- due to disposal 5,550 -
108,768 45,209




32.1 On 11 May 2018, a fire broke out at production facility located in Lahore [former ‘Cool Industries (Private) Limited’]. The
fire started at the dispatch area and caused damage to the finished goods under dispatch, production facility (i.c. Plant and
machinery) along with its related building area and work-in-process which were adequately insured. Although, the
production of refrigerators and deep freezers was halted for a month, however, sufficient finished goods inventory of these
products was available w1 off-site warchouses for uninterrupted supplies to the market. The production facilities of air-
conditioners, microwave ovens and washing machines remained un-affected and continued un-interruptedly.

The Company filed insurance claim in respect of damaged assets and a surveyor was appointed by the insurance company,
who completed his survey and assessed the insurance claim at Rs. 432.06 million including salvage value of Rs. 12.06
million serap retained by the Company. As at 31 December 2018, the Company has received complete insurance claim
including salvage recovery of Rs. 12.06 million. Detail of insurance claim is as follows:

Nate (Rupees in
Carrying value of assets written off due to fire '000)
Property, plant and equipment
Building on frechold land 60,016
Plant and machinery 177,597
Furniture and equipment 12,164
19.3 249,777
Stock in trade
Finished goods 12,804
Raw material 94,535
Work in process : 78,759
186,098
Repair and maintenance adjustment 3,029
Carrying value of assets written off due to fire 438,904
Insurance ¢laim received 420,000
Scrap value 12,066
Net loss on insurance claim of assets written off duce to fire 6,838
' 2018 2017
33 Other income Note (Rupees in '000)
Tucome from financial assets
Profit on a profit and loss sharing bank balance 24 9
Income from non-financial instruments
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment and
investment property - net ¥ - 456,951
Unrealized gain on fair value measurement of investment property 21 4,799 34,676
Dividend income 33.1 540,000 -
Mark-up on reccivables from subsidiary companies 33.2 79,797 -
Rental income 21 4,080 6,370
Service income and others 6,379 3,818
Liabilities no longer payable written back 21,134 -
Scrap sales 3,408 1.084
Amortisation of deferred income 13 6,322 2,452
Others 70 E
665,989 505,351
666,013 505,360

33.1 This represents dividend income received from Waves Marketing (Private) Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary.

33.2  This represents mark-up charged against net amount receivable from the subsidiary companies (note 25 and 26.3). Mark-up
is calculated at an averace quarterly borrowing rate of the Company. The quarterly borrowing rate is applicd on the
outstanding balance receivable that exceeds the credit period of 30 days.

lePre
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2018 2017
Finance cosia Note (Rupees in "000)
Islamic mode of financing
- Short term borrowings 25,420 25,127
Interest / mark-up on interest / mark-up based louns
- Long term lpans 83,865 43,498
« Short term horrowings 173932 200,348
- Finance lease 4,825 4,469
[nterest on employee retention money - 340
[nterest on workers' profits pacticipatien fund 498 437
Mark up acerucd on balance payable to the provident fund - 35
Bank charges 32,934 18.456
23474 96,09
Taxation
Current:
- for the year 354 5,497 4,268
- prior year (5:549) 20313
(152) 24,581
Deferred:
- group faxatian (86,430) .
- others 2 23,490 (37.583)
(62,940 (37.583%)
(§_L_CI92! {13,002

351  Represents the tax charge under the final wax regime. The Company hos opted for Group taxation and the Group falls under normal tax regime.
Accordingly, no provisien for current 1ax under the narmal tax regime has been made as the Compasy has taxable loss on standalone basis.

2018 017
352  Taxcharge reconciliation (Rupees in *000)

Numerical reconcilliation between tax expense and accounting profil:
Profit before tax 389,577 (75456
Tax at the applicable tax rate of 26% (2017; 30%) 112977 52,637
Tax effect of permatent differences:
- In respect of differential under normal tax and finel tax regime (6,845) 2,182
-~ Extmpt income - dividend from subsidiary {exempt due 10 group taxation) {156,600) -
- Other permanent differences (136) {87,604)
Tax credit {41,742) -
Change in tax rate {48,525) -
Prior year tax charge 53,164 20,313
Qihers 22,616 {1,100)

(63,092' (13,00

353 In prior years, the Company (for the reason of cany forward tax losses) has not recorded provision for minimum tax under the Income Tax Ordinance,

2001 (Ordinance) amounting to Rs. 38 83 million, Rs. 15.10 million and Rs. 16.86 million in respect of year ended 31 Deccmber 2017, 31 December
2015 and 31 December 2014 respectively as the management expects to adjust the same sgainst its future tax lishility under the normal tax regime
within the time limit as specified for adjusiments of minimum tax in the Ordinance, Similarly for the year ended 31 December 2016, provisian for
Aliernate Corporate Tax {ACT) (being higher than the minimum 1ax) amounting 1o Rs. 23.07 has also not been recorded on the same basis.

354 As per management's assecsmaent, the provision for tax made in the financial statements is sufficient. A comparison of last three years' of income tax
provisions with tax assessmenl is presented below:
Tax provision Taxas per
e, o
statements retarn
Tax Years {Rapces in '000)
2016 2,622 18,062
2017 2383 24,770
2618 4,268 45,892

Earnings per share - basic and diluted

The calculation of earnings per share (basic and diluted) is based on eamings atiributable to the owmers of ardinary shares of the Company.

No ligure for diluted eamings per share has becn presenied as the Company has not issued any instrumenis carrying options which would have an impact on

camings per share when excercised.
Company’s eamnings per share have been caleulaied as follows:
2018 207
(Restated)
Profit for the year Rupees in '000 452,669 188,458
Weighted average number of ordinary shares Shares . 163,13 114,909
Eamnings per share - basic and diluted Rupees .77 1.64

% TSN
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38 Provident fund related disclosure
38.1  Waves Singer Pakistan Limited (formerly Singer Pakistan Limited)
38.1.1 The Company operates approved contributory provident fund for all the employees eligible under the scheme. Details
of the net assets and investments owt of this fund based on the unaudited financial statements are as follows:

{Unaudited) {Unaudited)
31 December 31 December

2018 2017
Note (Rupees in '000)
Size of the fund - net assets (invesiments at fair value) (a) ) 39,993 49,833
Cost of the investment made ] 24!933 483494
Fair value of the investment made (b} 3812 37!928 49,564
(Percentage)
Percentage of the invesiment made (of the size of funds) (b/a) . 94.8% 99.5%
Above details are of Singer Pakistan Limited.
38.1.2 Break up of fair value of invesiments is:
- 31 December 2018 31 December 2017
(Rs. in '000) % (Rs. in '000) %
Bank balances 13,739 36% 3,246 1%
Pakistan Invesiment Bonds 24,189 64% 35,425 90%
Treasury Bills - 0% 10,893 9%
37,928 100% 49,564 £00%

The management, based on the un-audited financial statements of the fund, is of the view that the investments out of
provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of Section 218 of the Companics Act, 2017 and the
rules formulated thereunder.

382  Former Cool Industries (Private) Limited

38.2.1 Above Company operated approved contributory provident fund for all the employees cligible under the scheme.
Details of the net assets and investments out of this fund based on the audited financial statemenits are as follows:

{Audited) {Audited)
30 June 30 June
2018 2017
Nore (Rupees in "600)
Size of the fund - net assets (invesiments at fair value) (a) = . 203,171 179,209
Cost of the investment made ) ’ 76,416 73,990
Fair value of the investment made (b) 3822 105,944 102,826
‘ (Percentage)
Percentage of the investment made (ot the size of funds) (b/a) 52.15% 57.38%
38.22 Break up of the fair value of investments are as follows:
30 June 2018 30 June 2017
(Rs. in "000) % (Rs. in '000} %
Bank balances 10,352 10% 8317 8%
Term Deposit Receipt - with a bank 29,800 ) 28% 29,000 28%
Mutual Funds 56,792 54% 56,509 5%
Defense Saving Certificates 9,000 8% 9,000 9%
105,944 100% 102,826 100%

The management is of the view that the investments oul of provident flind have been made in accordance with the provisions of
Section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the rules formulated thereunder.
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Plant capacity and actual production

Capacity Production
2018 2017 2018 2017
sanenanness (Units) - {Units)
Refrigerators 125,000 115,000 114377 68,639
Deep Freezer 115,000 90,000 84,664 32,870
Microwave ovens 60,000 60,000 12,670 1,711
Air conditioners 60,000 60,000 5,558 9,012
Washing Machines _ 40,000 - 5,762 -
Gas appliances (water heater and
cooking range excluding
microwave ovens) : 25,000 25,000 9,717 6,723
Televisions 22,500 22,5060 - -
Waler dispenser 20,000 6,000 800 1,300

Capacity reflects unils expected to be produced on the basis of normal production hours (one shift of § hours).
The under utilization of capacity is mainly attributed to the fact that production was affected during the months
from April 2019 to June 2019 due to fire as fully explained in note 32.1. Other than refrigerators and deep
freezers, the production / capacity utilization is according to market demand.

Factory employces Tatal employces
2018 2017 018 2017
Number of employecs (Number of persons) (Number of persons)
Total number of employees _ .
as at 31 December - 1,431 1,450 2,490 2,184
Average number of employees 1,387 1,306 2,581 2,271

Operating segments

As per IFRS 8, "Operating Segments", Operating segments are reported in 2 manner consistent with the
internal reporting used by the chief operating decision-maker. The Board of Directors (BOD) through the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company has been identified as the chief operating decision-maker, who is
responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments.

The Company has determined the operating segments based on the reports reviewed by the BOD and Chief
Executive Officer, which are used to make strategic decisions.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the Company's entire product portfolio and considers the
business to have two operating segments. The Company’s asset allocation decisions are based on an integrated
investment strategy, The Company's performance is evaluated on the basis of two operating segments. The
internal reporting provided to the Chief Executive Officer for the Company’s assets, liabilities and performance
is prepared on a conmsistent basis with the measurement and recognition principles of approved accounting
standards as applicable in Pakistan. Contributions to the employee retirement benefits and accrual of liability
and expense are made in accordance with the terms of employee retirement benefit schemes and actuarial
advice (note 11), as applicable. Contributions to the prcmdcm fund are made in accordance with the service
rules.

Segment profit / (loss) before tax is used to measure petformance because management believes that this
information is the most relevant in evaluating the results of the respectwe segments relative to other entities
that operate in the same industries.

(4 YA



43.1 The Company's operating segments consist of business related to Singer Brand and Waves Brand.

2018
Singer Waves Total
—esmmeamaneneaaanae (Rupees in '000)

Revenue 1,577,642 4,411,968 5,989,610
Segment profit before tax 79,018 310,559 389,577
Interest income from subsidiary companies 35,587 44,210 79,797
Interest expense (85,943) (304,597) {390,540)
Loss on disposal of property plant and

equipment (9,233) (3,155) (12,288)
Unrealized gain on fair value measurement

of investment property 4,799 - (4,799)
Depreciation and amortization (33,058) (134,137) {167,195)
Segment assets 2,991,971 11,387,230 14,379,201
Segment liabilities 889,487 5,114,415 6,003,902

2017
Singer Waves Total
(Rupees in "000) --—---—-——-

Revenue 1,287,206 1,691,942 2,979,148
Segment profit / (loss) before tax 287,866 (112,410) 175,456
Interest income 51,989 - 51,989
Interest expense 159,616 136,480 296,096
Loss on disposal of property plant and

equipment and investment property 456,384 567 456,951
Unrealized gain on fair value measurement

of investment property 34,676 - 34,676
Depreciation and amortization 60,093 59,395 119,488
Segment assets 3,298,335 9,610,834 12,909,169
Segment liabilities 1,079,605 3,744,940 4,824,545

43.2 Revenue from refrigerators and deep freezers represents 39% and 35% (2017: refrigerators and air
conditioners represented 29% and 33% respectively) of the total revenue of the Company.

43.3  Sales represents local sales of Rs. 5,975.44 million (2017: Rs. 3,004.10 million) and export sales of Rs.
14,17 million (2017: Rs. 2.42 million).

43.4  All non-current assets of the Company as at 31 December 2018 are located in Pakistan.
43.5  Sales (gross) to the subsidiary companies amounts to Rs. 6,336.49 million (2017: Rs. 1,354.65 million).

Amount % of Company's

{in '000) sales
Waves Marketing (Private) Limited 4,555,404 65.48%
Electronics Marketing (Private) Limited 1,781,084 25.60%

VUM



44 Financial instruments

The Company’s Board of Directors (“the Board") has averall responsibility for establishment and oversight of the Company’s
risk management framework. The Board has developed a risk policy that sets out fundamentals of risk management framework.
The Company has exposure to the {ollowing risks from its use of financial instruments:

- Credit risk
- Liquidity risk
- Market risk

This note presents information about the Company's exposure 10 each of the above risks, the Company’s objectives, policies
and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Company's management of capital,

4.1

44.1.2

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the Company by
failing to discharge an obligation.

Exposure to credit risk

Credit risk of the Company arises principally from trade debts, advanées, deposits, other receivables and bank balances.
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.

The Company's customers tmainly comprise of individuals, corporate entities and the dealers, The management has
established a credit policy under which each new customer is analysed individually for credit worthiness, including
whether they are an individual or legal entity, geographic location, aging profile, and existence of previous financial
difficulties before the Company's standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered. The Company’s
evaluation includes consideration of financial position of customers and obtains references, wherever required.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk
before any credit enhancements at the reporting date was:

Carrying amount
2018 2017
(Rupees in "000)
Security deposits . 22,869 30,985
Trade debis ' 1,982,771 1,270,931
Other receivables 926,767 664,425
Balances with banks 74,570 151,013

3,006,977 2.117.354

Concentration of credit risk

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counter parties are engaged in similar business aclivities or have
similar economic leatures that would cause their abilities to meet contractual obligation to be similarly effected by the
changes in econamic, political or other conditions. Concentration of ¢redit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the
Company's performance for developments affecting a panicutar industry. Out of total receivable, 96% (2017: 64%)
relates to receivable from subsidiary companies, Maximum exposure to credit risk by type of counterpariy is as follows:

Net receivable
(net of provisions)
2018 2017
(Rupees in '000)

Trade debis
- others - . 247,548 493,110
- subsidiary companies : 1,735,223 777.821
Security deposits ‘
- individuals 19,835 2327
+ lease 3,034 9909
- utilities - 18,749
Other receivable from subsidiary company 926,138 586,553
[nsurance company (claims) 629 17872
Banks . 74,570 151,13

3,006,977 2,117,354

vt {1y



44.1.3

Credit quality and impalrment

Credit quality of financial asscts is assessed by reference to external credit ratings, where available, ot historical information about
the counterpany defaull rates. All counterpantics, with the exception of customers, have extemal credil ralings determined by
various credit rating agencics and other regulatory authoritics. Credit quality of customer is assessed by reference to histosical
default rates and present ages, T

44.1.3(a) Counterparties with external credit ratings

These include banking companies and financial institations, which are counterparties to cash deposits and security deposits. The
bank balances (including security deposits) are held with banks and financial institutions counterparties, which are rated as

Rating Short Leng 2018 2017
Banks _Agency terimn lerm {Rupees in '000)
Al Baraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited PACRA Al A 52 148
Allied Bank Limited PACRA Al+ . AAA 1.313 1,750
Askari Bank Limited PACRA Al+ T AA+ 2,969 2,677
Bank Alfalah Limited PACRA Al+ Ad+ 3én 3,256
Bank [slami Pakistan Limited PACRA Al A+ ] 22
Bank of Khyber PACRA Al A 214 -
Bank of Punjab PACRA Al+ AA 1815 364
Dubai Istamic Bank Limited R-VIS A-l A+ 165 33,958
Faysal Bank Limited JCR-VIS Al+ AA 1,328 2,672
Habib Bank Limited JCR-VIS A-l+ AAA 45,618 771,766
Habib Metropolitan Bank PACRA Al+ AMt 236 238
J.S. Baok Limited PACRA Al+ . AA- 4 -
MCB Bank Limited PACRA Al+ © O AAA 7,737 4,047
Meezan Bank JCR-VIS Al+ AA+ 294 -
National Bank Of Pakistan PACRA Al+ AAA 1,921 9,589
Silk Bank Limited JCR-VIS Al+ AA 393 -
Soneri Bank Limited PACRA Al+ AA- 1,046 748
Standard Chartered Bank PACRA Al+ . AAA L2 8526
United Bank Limited JCR-VIS Al+ AAA 4,621 5,255
' 74&70 151,013
Secucity Deposits
Bank of Punjab PACRA Al+ AA 282 357
First Habib dModaraba PACRA Al+ AA+ - 444
Orix Leasing (Pakistan) Limited PACRA Al+ AA+ - 3,707
Sindh Leasing Company Limited JCR-VIS At Al 1,752 3401
3,034 9,909
77,604 160,922

4£.1.3(6) Counterparties without external credis rasings

These include customers which are counter parties to trade debis. The Company’s exposuare to ¢redit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of cach customer / dealets. Major partion of sales made to customers are 1o the subsidiary companies.
‘The Company establishes an allowance for impairmen that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade debts. The
analysis of age of trade debis at the reporting date is as follows:

: 2018 2017
Gross Impairment loss Gross Impaisment loss
------- (Rupees in *000) - - ----- =enae-s(Rupeesin'G00) v rn--
Not yet due 599,509 - 66,951 -
Past due | - 60} days 816,640 - 533,952 -
Past due 61 days - | year 356,396 - 638,020 -
Past due 1 -2 years 187,581 - 32,008 .
Past due by more than 2 year 223,459 200,814 190,426 190,426
Total 2.183& 200,_24_ 1,461,357 150,426

Al 3t December 2018, provision telates to numerous individual customers, dealers and corporate enlities and it has been
determined by the management in accordance with the approved policy based on the ageing of the customer balances and historical
bad debt siatistics, Based on the past expericnce, consideration of Ginancial position, past teack records and subsequent recoveries,
the management believes that the unprovided amounts are recaverable. None of the other financial asscts of the Company are past
due.

None of the financial assets of the Company are secured or. impaired excepl as those mentioned in these unconsolidated financial
statements, ’

AW R
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44.3 Market risk

Market risk is the risk tha changes in market price, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices
will effect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The Company is exposed to
cureency risk and interest rate risk.

44.3.1  Currency risk
The Company is exposed 1o currency risk to the extent that there is a mismaich between the currencies in which sales
and purchases are denominated and the respective functional currency of the Company. The functional currency of

the Company is Pak Rupec. The currencies in which these transactions are primarily denominated are Euros and US
dollars. :

44.3.1(a) Exposure to currency risk

The Company is mainly exposed to currency risk on impon of raw materials and merchandise denominated in US
dollars. The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk at the reporting date is as follows:

2018 2017 2018 2017
(Rupees in *000)
Trade creditors {USD in "000) 2,180 780 303,238 86,128
—— ——— - — ]
Trade creditors (Euro in '000) 14 23 2,117 3,042
b~ ———————— ]
Off balance sheet items
Qutstanding letters of credit (USD in '000) 1,782 - 247,876 -
. — -  — B — |
Following significant exchange rates have been applied:
Average rate Reporting date Spot rate
2018 2017 2018 2017
USD w PKR - 121.62 105.43 139.10 1 l:g
EUR 10 PKR 143.35 124.68 159.10 132

Sensitivity analysis

At reporting date, if the PKR had strengthened by 10% against the US Dollar and Euro with all other variables held
constant, profit for the year would have been lower by the amount shown below, as a result of net foreign exchange
gain on translation of foreign currency bifls payables,

2018 2017
(Rupees in '000)
Effect on statement of profit or loss : 30,547 8917

The weakening of the PKR by 10% against US Dollar would have had an equal but opposite impact on the profit for
the year.

The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on profit for the year and liabilities of the
Compaay.

44.3.2 Interest rate risk
laterest rate risk is the risk that fair values or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of

changes in interest rates. Sensitivity to interest rate risk arises from mismatch of financial assets and financial
liabilities that mature or re-price in a given period.

letmuan



44.3.2(a) Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through statement of
profit or loss, Therefore a change in interest eate at the reporting date would not affect statemem of profit or loss.

44.3.2(b) Mismatch of interest rate sensitive financial assets and financlal llabilities

The Company’s interest / mark-up and non-interest / mark-up bearing bearing financial instruments as at the reporting
date are as follows:

2018
Carrying Interest bearing/  Non-interest
amount variable bearing / fixed
rate financial rate financial
instruments instruments
(Rupees in *000)
Financial assets
Security deposits 22,869 - 22,869
Trade debis 1,982,711 - 1,982,771
Other receivables 926,767 - 926,767
Cash and bank balances 90,660 - 90,660
3,023,067 - 3,023,067
Financlal fiabilitles
Long term Joans - secured (1,013,521) (1,013,521) -
Liabilitics against assets subject to finance lease (65,518) (65,518) -
Employce retirement benefit ' (42,480) - (42,480)
Trade and other payables ‘ (1,475,747) . (1,478,747)
Mark-up accrued on borrowings (97,338) 97,338)
$hort term borrowings - secured and unsecured (2,995,286) (2,995,286) -
(5,689,900) {(4,074,335) (1,615,565)
(2,666,833) (4,074,335} 1,407,502
2017
Carrying [nterest bearing / Non-interest
amount variable bearing
rate financial financial
instruments instroments
Financial assets (Rupees in '000) saennnmnnnas
Security deposits 30,985 - 30,985
Trade debts 1,270,931 - 1,270,931
Other receivables ' : 664,425 . 664,425
Cash and bank balance 243,173 - 243,173
‘ 2,209,514 - 2,200,514
Financtal ligbilitles
Long term loans - secured : (649,458) {649,458) -
Liabilitics against assets subjuct to finance lease (35,654) (55,654) -
Employee retirement benefit (37,436) - (37,436)
Trade and other payables (822,742) . (822,742)|
Mark-up accrued on borrowings (73,7686) - (73,766}
Short term borrowings - secured and unsecured _ {2,995,286) (2,995,286) -
(4,634,342} (3,700,398) (933,944)
(2,424,827) (3,700,398) 1,275,570
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Capital risk management
The Company's objectives when managing capital are:

a) to safeguard the entity's ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and

b) to provide an adequate return to shareholders.

The Company manages the capital structure in the context of economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Company may, for example, adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, or
sell assets to reduce debt. The Company monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio calculated as
total debt (current and non-current borrowings) to debt plus equity,

The debt to equity ratios were as follows: 2018 2017
(Rupees in '000)

Total debt 4,015,932 3.401.,407
Total equity and debt 12,391,231 11.486.031
Debt to equity ratio 32% 30%

The Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

Events after the reporting date

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on have proposed a final cash
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2018 of Rs, per share (2017: Rs. 1.25 per share),
amounting to Rs, ~million (2017: Rs. 177.32 million) for approval of the members at the
Annual General Meeting to be held on . These unconsolidated financial statements

do not reflect this dividend.

Corresponding figures

Corresponding figures have been re-arranged and re-classified, where necessary, for the purpose of comparison
and better presentation as per reporting framework. However, no significant reclassification has been made.

Date of authorization of issue

These unconsolidated financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors in their meeting
held on

i

Lahore Director Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer



WAVES SINGER PAKISTAN LIMITED

Catagories of Shareholding required under Code of Corporate Governance (CCG)

As on December 31, 2018

No. of Shares

Sr. No. Name Held Percentage
Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties (Name Wise):

1 POSEIDON SYNERGIES (PVT) LTD. (CDC) 9,785,377 5.9984
Mutual Funds (Name Wise Detail) - -
Directors, CEO and their Spouse and Minor Children (Name Wise):

1 MR. UMAIR KHAN (CDC) 1,150 0.0007

2 MR. HAROON AHMAD KHAN (CDC) 61,916,108 37.9541

3 MRS. NIGHAT HAROON KHAN 25,518,500 15.6427

4 MR. MOAZZAM AHMAD KHAN 1,505,981 0.9232

5 MR. MUKHTAR AHMED (CDC) 1,150 0.0007

6 MR. ZAFAR UDDIN MEHMOOD (CDC) 500 0.0003

7 MR. YOUSUF MUHAMMAD FAROOQ (CDC) 1,150 0.0007
Executives: 2,685 0.0016
Public Sector Companies & Corporations: - -
Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non Banking Finance 1,000,000 2.2024
Companies, Insurance Companies, Takaful, Modarabas and Pension Funds:

Shareholders holding five percent or more voting intrest in the listed company (Name Wise)

1 MR. HAROON AHMAD KHAN (CDC) 61,916,108 37.9541

2 MRS. NIGHAT HAROON KHAN (CDC) 25,518,500 15.6427

3 MR. JAVAID AKTAR BUTT (CDC) 10,169,841 6.2340

4 POSEIDON SYNERGIES (PVT) LTD. (CDC) 9,785,377 5.9984
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WAVES SINGER PAKISTAN LIMITED
CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS
As on December 31, 2018

S.No. NAME HOLDING % AGE
DIRECTORS, CEO THEIR SPOUSE AND MINOR CHILDREN
1  MR. UMAIR KHAN (CDC) 1,150 0.0007
2  MR. HAROON AHMAD KHAN 2.540 0.0016
MR. HAROON AHMAD KHAN 52,156,008 31.9713
MR. HAROON AHMAD KHAN 1,707,560 1.0467
MR. HAROON AHMAD KHAN (CDC) 8,050,000 4.9346
3  MRS. NIGHAT HAROON KHAN 21,614,250 13.2494
MRS. NIGHAT HAROON KHAN 569,250 0.3489
MRS. NIGHAT HAROON KHAN (CDC) 3,335,000 2.0443
4 MR. MOAZZAM AHMAD KHAN 1,505,792 0.9230
MR. MOAZZAM AHMAD KHAN 189 0.0001
5 MR. MUKHTAR AHMED (CDC) 1,150 0.0007
6 MR.ZAFAR UDDIN MEHMOOD (CDC) 500 0.0003
7  MR. YOUSUF MUHAMMAD FAROOQ (CDC) 1,150 0.0007
88,944,539 54.5224
ASSOCIATED COMPANIES
1  POSEIDON SYNERGIES (PVT) LTD. (CDC) 9,785,377 5.9984
9,785,377 5.9984
NIT & ICP
1 NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN TRUSTEE DEPTT 46 0.0000
2 CDC - TRUSTEE NATIONAL INVESTMENT (UNIT) TRUST (CDC) 9 0.0000
55 0.0000
FINANCIAL INSTITUTION
1 SAMBA BANK LIMITED (CDC) 1,000,000 0.6130
1,000,000 0.6130
JOINT STOCK COMPANIES
1  CONTINENTAL FURNISHING COMPANY 366 0.0002
2 PAKISTAN AGENCIES LTD 366 0.0002
3 INDITRIAL ENGINEERS LTD. 366 0.0002
4  PARAMOUNT COMMODITIES (PRIVATE) LIMITED (CDC) 5,250 0.0032
5  ABRIS (PRIVATE) LIMITED (CDC) 15,000 0.0092
6 AXIS GLOBAL LIMITE D- MF (CDC) 30,000 0.0184
7  BABA EQUITIES (PVT) LTD (CDC) 500 0.0003
8  BACKERS & PARTNERS (PRIVATE) LIMITED - MF (CDC) 500 0.0003
9 BAWA SECURITIES (PVT) LTD. MF (CDC) 2,000 0.0012
10 BEST SECURITIES (PRIVATE) LIMITED - MF (CDC) 5,000 0.0031
11 BIPL SECURITIES LIMITED - MF (CDC) 359,000 0.2201
12 BMA CAPITAL MANAGEMENT LTD. - MF (CDC) 111,500 0.0683
13 CLIKTRADE LIMITED (CDC) 39 0.0000
14 DJM SECURITIES (PRIVATE) LIMITED (CDC) 375,000 0.2299
15 FANCY PETROLEUM SERVICES (PVT.) LIMITED (CDC) 47,725 0.0293
16 FDM CAPITAL SECURITIES (PVT) LIMITED (CDC) 30,250 0.0185
17 FDM CAPITAL SECURITIES (PVT) LIMITED (CDC) 15,250 0.0093
18 FIKREES (PRIVATE) LIMITED (CDC) 17,480 0.0107
19 GZ SYSTEMS (PRIVATE) LIMITED (CDC) 50,000 0.0306
20 HAMDARD LABORATORIES (WAQF0 PAKISTAN (CDC) 162,500 0.0996
21 HIGH LAND SECURITIES (PVT) LIMITED (CDC) 3,000 0.0018
22 JS GLOBAL CAPITAL LIMITED - MF (CDC) 203,500 0.1247



23 MAPLE LEAF CAPITAL LIMITED (CDC)

24 MARKET 786 (PRIVATE) LIMITED - MF (CDC)

25 MOHAMMAD MUNIR MOHAMMAD AHMED KHANANI SECURITIES (P)LTD - MF (CDC)
26 MRA SECURITIES LIMITED - MF (CDC)

27  MULTILINE SECURITIES (PVT) LIMITED - MF (CDC)

28 N.U. A. SECURITIES (PRIVATE) LIMITED - MF (CDC)

29 NCC - PRE SETTLEMENT DELIVERY ACCOUNT (CDC)

30 NH SECURITIES (PVT) LIMITED. (CDC)

31 PREMIER CABLES (PVT) LIMITED (CDC)

32 PREMIER CABLES (PVT) LIMITED (CDC)

33 PREMIER FASHINS (PVT) LTD (CDC)

34 R.T.SECURITIES (PVT) LIMITED (CDC)

35 RELIANCE SECURITIES LIMITED - MF (CDC)

36 RS PUBLISHERS (PRIVATE) LIMITED (CDC)

37 SEVEN STAR SECURITIES (PVT.) LTD. (CDC)

38  SHAFFI SECURITIES (PVT) LIMITED (CDC)

39 SHERMAN SECURITIES (PRIVATE) LIMITED (CDC)

40 SIZA (PRIVATE) LIMITED (CDC)

41 SOFCOM (PRIVATE) LIMITED (CDC)

42 SPECTRUM SECURITIES LIMITED (CDC)

43 SPECTRUM SECURITIES LIMITED - MF (CDC)

44  TOPLINE SECURITIES LIMITED - MF (CDC)

45  TRUST SECURITIES & BROKERAGE LIMITED - MF (CDC)
46  Y.H.SECURITIES (PVT.) LTD. (CDC)

47 Y.S.SECURITIES LIMITED - MF (CDC)

48  ZAFAR SECURITIES (PVT) LTD. (CDC)

49  ZILLION CAPITAL SECURITIES (PRIVATE) LIMITED (CDC)
50 ZILLION CAPITAL SECURITIES (PVT) LTD. (CDC)

51 NADEEM INTERNATIONAL (PVT.) LTD. (CDC)

52 MILLWALA SONS (PRIVATE) LIMITED (CDC)

OTHER COMPANIES
1 PUNJAB COOPERATIVE BOARD FOR LIQUIDATION FOR MERCANTILE
2 SUKKUR INSTITUTE OF BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION (CDC)

EXECUTIVE
1 MR. NADEEM MEHMOOD BUTT (CDC)
2  MOHAMMAD AZAM KHAN
3 MUZAFFAR MEHBOOB

SHARES HELD BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC (FOREIGN)
SHARES HELD BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC (LOCAL)

TOTAL:

SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING 10% OR MORE OF TOTAL CAPITAL

S. No. NAME
1 MR. HAROON AHMAD KHAN (CDC)
2  MRS. NIGHAT HAROON KHAN (CDC)

1 0.0000

5,000 0.0031
1,299,000 0.7963
151,000 0.0926
2,500 0.0015
30,000 0.0184
1,000 0.0006
1,748 0.0011
126,500 0.0775
250 0.0002
132,650 0.0813
25,875 0.0159
5,000 0.0031
16,100 0.0099
72,750 0.0446
4,500 0.0028
1,000 0.0006
63,250 0.0388
12,075 0.0074
35,000 0.0215
866,000 0.5309
463,500 0.2841
69,000 0.0423
27,500 0.0169
1,725 0.0011
287,500 0.1762
4,950 0.0030
1,800 0.0011

575 0.0004

5 0.0000
5,142,346 3.1522
589 0.0004

3,450 0.0021
4,039 0.0025
1,150 0.0007

65 0.0000

1,470 0.0009
2,685 0.0016

0 0.0000
58,254,924 35.7099
58,254,924 35.7099
163,133,965 100.0000
Holding % AGE
61,916,108 37.9541
25,518,500 15.6427
87,434,608 53.5968




SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING 5% OR MORE OF TOTAL CAPITAL

S. No. NAME Holding % AGE
1 MR. HAROON AHMAD KHAN (CDC) 61,916,108 37.9541
3  MRS. NIGHAT HAROON KHAN (CDC) 25,518,500 15.6427
3 MR.JAVAID AKTAR BUTT (CDC) 10,169,841 6.2340
4 POSEIDON SYNERGIES (PVT) LTD. (CDC) 9,785,377 5.9984

107,389,826 65.8292




WAVES SINGER PAKISTAN LIMITED
FORM OF PROXY

The Company Secretary
Waves Singer Pakistan Limited
9 KM, Multan Road, Hanjarwal,

Lahore
I/ We of being a member of Waves Singer
Pakistan Limited hereby appoint of as
my proxy in my absence to attend, speak and vote for me on my behalf at the Extra Ordinary/ Annual
General Meeting of the Company to be held on and at any adjournment thereof.
As witness my / our hand this day of 2019.
Rs. 5/-
Revenue
Stamp
Witness No.1
Name
Address:
CNIC No.:

Signature of Member(s)
Witness No. 2

Name
Address:
CNIC No.:
(Name in Block letters)
Folio No.
Participant ID No.
Account No. in CDC
Important:
1. CDC Account Holders are requested to strictly follow the guidelines mentioned in the Notice of Meeting.
2. A Member entitled to attend a General Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of him/her.
3. Members are requested:
(@) To affix Revenue Stamp of Rs. 5/- at the place indicated above.
(b) To sign across the Revenue Stamp in the same style of signature as is registered with the Company.
(c) To write down their Folio Numbers.
4. This form of proxy, duly completed and signed across a Rs. 5/- revenue stamp, must be deposited at the Company's

Registered Office not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the meeting.
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